County

AGENDA Council
CABINET
Monday, 14th June, 2010, at 10.00 am Ask for: Karen Mannering /
Geoff Mills
Darent Room, Sessions House, County Telephone: (01622) 694367/
Hall, Maidstone 694289

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting.

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1.  Declaration of Interests by Members in Iltems on the Agenda for this meeting

2. Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 May 2010 (Pages 1 - 2)

3. Revenue & Capital Budget Outturn 2009-10, Roll Forward and Key Activity
Indicators (Pages 3 - 74)

4. Response to Government Savings Announcement (Pages 75 - 78)

5. Treasury Management (Pages 79 - 92)

6. An Alcohol Strategy for Kent (Pages 93 - 116)

7. The BSF and Academies Programme - An Update Following Recent Government

Announcements (To follow)
8.  Other items which the Chairman decides are relevant or urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be
excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds that it involves the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Act.

9. The BSF and Academies Programme - An Update Following Recent Government
Announcements (To follow)

10. The Future of Older Persons' Provision in Kent County Council (Pages 117 - 130)

David Cockburn
Interim Chief Executive
Friday, 4 June 2010

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant
report.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET

MINUTES of a meeting of the Cabinet held in the Darent Room, Sessions House,
County Hall, Maidstone on Monday, 17 May 2010.

PRESENT: MrP B Carter (Chairman), MrNJD Chard, Mr G K Gibbens,
Mr R W Gough, Mr P M Hill, OBE, Mrs S V Hohler, Mr A J King, MBE, Mr R A Marsh
and Mr J D Simmonds

ALSO PRESENT: ClIr Mrs J Rook

IN ATTENDANCE: MrD Cockburn (Executive Director, Strategy, Economic
Development & ICT), Ms A Honey (Managing Director Communities), Ms L McMullan
(Director of Finance), Mr O Mills (Managing Director - Adult Social Services),
Ms R Turner (Managing Director Children, Families and Education), Ms M Peachey
(Kent Director Of Public Health), Mr R Hallett (Directorate Finance Manager) and
Mr G Mills (Democratic Services Manager (Executive))

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

1. Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 April 2010
(Item 2)

(1) The Minutes of the meeting held on 19 April 2010 were agreed and signed as a
true record.

(2) Mrs Hohler referred to minute paragraph 6 and said that a slight delay had
occurred in responding to the issues on child safeguarding raised by the Cabinet
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 9 April because of the need to ensure the
response was as full and complete as possible. The response was now complete
and a copy would be sent to all members of the Council.

2. Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Exception Report
(ltem 3- Report by Mr John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance; and Lynda
McMullan, Director of Finance )

(1)  Mr Simmonds said that the main point to note from this report was the gross
underlying revenue under spend (excluding schools and asylum) was now standing
at £7.6m but this was expected to increase by year end to some £7.86m (excluding
schools and asylum) Mr Simmonds highlighted some of the areas of potential
pressure in the Directorate budgets which would need to be closely monitored as the
year progressed. With regard to the Capital Budget, Mr Simmonds said there had
been some re-phasing but that was due to a number of reasons such as delays
through the planning process.

(2) The audited accounts would be submitted to the June meeting of Cabinet together
with recommendations on under spends

Page 1



(3) Resolved:

(@) that the forecast revenue and capital budget monitoring
position for 2009-10 together with changes to the -capital
programme be noted; and

(b)  that £6.109m of re phasing on the capital programme be
moved from 2009-10 capital cash limits to future years.

3. Operation Find & Fix - Road Maintenance Update (To follow)

(Iltem 4 - Report by Mr Nick Chard Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways and
Waste, Mr Mike Austerberry, Executive Director for Environment, Highways and
Waste and Mr John Burr, Director, Kent Highway Services) (The Chairman declared
consideration of this report to be urgent on the grounds that it contained for members
consideration the most up to date information regarding the ongoing operation to
repair potholes and to carry out larger patching maintenance work on the non-
principle road network throughout each district)

(1) Mr Burr gave a comprehensive briefing on the situation across the county
since the contracts to seven companies to undertake this work on a district by district
basis had been let on 13 April 2010. Each contract was subject to a weekly review
and the work was on track to be completed by the end of July or early August. Mr
Chard said that this work had been prioritised to ensure the worse roads had been
dealt with first. A key challenge now was for all to understand that working in such a
systematic way did mean that it may appear to be taking longer than some would
want to repair their road. However with 5 gangs operating in most districts the repair
rate was moving forward with work to date having been undertaken to the value of
some £630,000. At the current rate of spend the £2m set aside by the Council would
run out by the end of June so the report recommended to allocation of additional
money to ensure the repair programme could be completed. There would be a
further update to the July meeting of Cabinet.

(3) Resolved that:

(a) the report be noted and the approach of prioritisation and
planned working be supported;

(b) an additional allocation of £1m be allocated to the project
at this stage, to be funded from the remainder of the extra
government funding (0.44m), and £0.56m from KCC funds ( to
be taken from the additional £1m plus originally put against
repairs to winter damaged roads)

(c) a further report be submitted to Cabinet at its meeting in
July 2010

Page 2



Agenda ltem 3

To: CABINET — 14 June 2010

By: John Simmonds, Cabinet Member — Finance
Lynda McMullan, Director of Finance

(1) REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET OUTTURN 2009-10

(2) REVENUE BUDGET ROLL FORWARD

(3) CAPITAL BUDGET ROLL FORWARD

(4) 2009-10 FINAL MONITORING OF KEY ACTIVITY INDICATORS

(5) 2009-10 FINAL FINANCIAL HEALTH INDICATORS

(6) 2009-10 FINAL MONITORING OF PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

(7) IMPACT OF 2009-10 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN ON RESERVES

(8) CAPITAL BUDGET OUTCOMES & ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2009-10

1. Summary

1.1 This report sets out the provisional revenue and capital budget outturn for 2009-10. It details:

e where revenue projects have been rescheduled and/or are committed

e where there is under or overspending.

The provisional outturn on the revenue budget shows an underspend of £8.826m (excluding
schools). This is £0.959m higher than the projected underspend reported in May.

1.2 Details of the proposals for the use of £1.453m of the revenue budget underspending are
provided in Appendix 2. This identifies those projects where there is already a commitment to
spend in 2010-11. It is also recommended that £2m of the underspend is held in a new
Corporate Restructuring reserve and the balance of the underspending of £5.373m is set aside
in the earmarked Economic Downturn reserve.

1.3 Details of the capital roll forwards are provided in Appendix 3.

14 Final monitoring of key activity indicators for 2009-10 is detailed in Appendix 4.

1.5 The report also provides the year-end financial health indicators in Appendix 5, prudential
indicators in Appendix 6 and impact on reserves in section 3.6.

1.6 Capital Budget Outcomes and Achievements in recent years are detailed in Appendix 7.

2, Recommendations
Cabinet is asked to:

2.1 Note the provisional outturn position for 2009-10.

2.2 Agree the £1.453m requests for roll forward of the 2009-10 revenue underspending to fund
existing commitments, as detailed in Appendix 2.

2.3 Agree that £2m of the revenue underspending within the Finance portfolio is held in a new
Corporate Restructuring Reserve (further details are provided in section 3.4.1).

24 Agree that the £5.373m remainder of the 2009-10 revenue underspending is set aside in the
Economic Downturn reserve.

2.5 Note that £2.415m of capital re-phasing from 2009-10 will be added into 2010-11 and later
years, as detailed in Appendix 3 and the 2010-11 Capital Programme will also be adjusted to
reflect other 2009-10 variances as reported in the outturn.

2.6 Note the final monitoring of the key activity indicators for 2009-10 as detailed in Appendix 4.

2.7

Note the final financial health indicatorslggrg%OSQ-m as detailed in Appendix 5.



2.8

Note the final monitoring of the prudential indicators for 2009-10 as detailed in Appendix 6.

2.9 Note the impact of the 2009-10 provisional revenue budget outturn on reserves as detailed in
section 3.6.

2.10 Note the capital budget outcomes and achievements in 2009-10 as detailed in Appendix 7.

2.11 Note that the schools’ revenue and capital reserves have reduced by some £6.791m. Details are
provided in this report.

3. BUDGET OUTTURN 2009-10

3.1 INTRODUCTION

3.1.1  This report sets out the provisional revenue and capital budget outturn for 2009-10. There may
be minor variations in figures during the final stage of the closing of accounts process and the
accounts are also still subject to external audit.

3.1.2  For the 10" consecutive year the Council is able to demonstrate sound financial management,
by containing its revenue expenditure within the budgeted level (excluding schools).

3.2 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN 2009-10

3.2.1  The provisional outturn is a net underspend of £8.826m against portfolio budgets and a
£11.430m reduction in school reserves, giving a total overspend of £2.604m.

3.2.2 This -£8.826m outturn compares with the net variance of -£7.867m last reported to Cabinet at its
meeting on 17 May, which represents a movement since the last report of -£0.959m. In addition,
the 17 May report included a £2.780m pressure on Asylum which is nhow shown as breakeven
following negotiations with Central Government and funding from the Asylum reserve. This
approach is consistent with previous years. The net provisional outturn by portfolio and the
movement since the last report are shown below in table 1.

TABLE 1: PROVISIONAL FINAL REVENUE OUTTURN BY PORTFOLIO
Provisional Variance per
Portfolio Budget Outturn | Variance | lastreport | Movement
£k £k £k £k £k
CFE -697,871 -700,109 -2,238 -1,915 -323
KASS +335,122 +335,304 +182 0 +182
E,H&W +151,946 +151,226 -720 -645 -75
Communities +58,600 +57,782 -818 -450 -368
Localism & Partnerships +6,565 +6,451 -114 -22 -92
Corporate Support & Performance Mgmt +10,069 +9,238 -831 -530 -301
Finance +123,603 +119,460 -4,143 -4,122 -21
Public Health & Innovation +790 +676 -114 -124 +10
Regen & Economic Dev +8,096 +8,066 -30 -59 +29
SUB TOTAL (excl Schools) -3,080 -11,906 -8,826 -7,867 -959
Asylum "’ 0 0 0 +2,780 -2,780
TOTAL (excl Schools) -3,080 11,906 | -8,826 -5,087 -3,739
Schools "¢ +897,380 | +908,810 | +11,430 +6,000 +5,430
TOTAL +894,300 +896,904 +2,604 +913 +1,691

Note 1. The Asylum Service is now showing a nil variance as, following successful negotiations with Government

about future funding levels, we have funded the residual 09-10 pressure of £3.029m from the Asylum
reserve.

Note 2. Although schools reserves have reduced by £11.430m, this is made up of £14.702m drawdown of

reserves by schools against schools delegated budgets offset by an underspend on the unallocated
schools budget of £3.272m.

Page 4




3.2.3

3.24

3.2.5

The forecast has moved by -£0.959m (excluding Asylum & Schools) since the last monitoring
report to Cabinet. Detailed below are the main reasons for the movement in the portfolio
forecasts since the last monitoring report to Cabinet on 17 May, as shown in Table 1:

Children, Families & Education:

The overall position for the portfolio has moved by -£0.323m since the last report to Cabinet. The

main changes are:

e -£0.149m School Organisation — an increase in the underspend on this service to £0.178m
due to a combination of staff vacancies and other minor net variances.

e -£0.139m Mainstream Home to School Transport — an increase in the underspend to
£1.087m mainly due to on-going renegotiation of contracts.

e -£0.148m Local Children’s Services Partnerships — an increase in the underspend to
£0.304m resulting from a combination of further gross pressures of £0.739m which are more
than offset by additional income of £0.887m. The Children’s Centres have incurred additional
expenditure of £0.518m fully funded from additional external income. This has not been
previously forecast as each Centre variance is relatively small in isolation and therefore not
flagged up by them. The balance of both the gross (+£0.221m) and income (-£0.369m)
variances is due to other minor movements on various budgets within the LCSPs.

e -£0.468m SEN Home to School Transport — an increase in the underspend to £0.855m due
to the further renegotiation of contracts and revised figures on the impact of the heavy snow
in January and February which closed special schools for a number of days. Special schools
tend to be more prone to closure during bad weather due to the needs of the pupils and the
longer journeys involved. The closure of schools for even short periods of time can have a
significant impact on costs and many schools were shut for a number of days.

e +£0.256m Other Preventative Services — this is mainly due to £0.103m on unforeseen
section 17 payments and £0.102m on community based projects including day care.

e +£0.660m Grant income and contingency — this is mainly due to the unforeseen requirement
to increase the bad debt provision in line with the agreed protocol (+£0.505m) and the
cancellation of two very old accounts receivable invoices (+£0.150m).

There are a number of smaller movements, all below £0.1m, across the other budget lines within

this portfolio.

Kent Adult Social Services Portfolio:

The overall position for the portfolio has moved by +£0.182m since the last report to Cabinet.

The overall gross position for the portfolio has only marginally moved since the last report to

Cabinet, with a net reduction of £0.013m from the £0.195m last reported, however as highlighted

as a risk in recent reports to Cabinet, KASS were unable to achieve all of the management

action required to reach a balanced outturn position. However, within this there have been some
larger compensating movements between service lines. The main movements are:

o +£0.403m Older People Residential Care — approximately half of this movement relates to
the final adjustments to the bad debt provision. Although estimates of the impact on each
budget line are made throughout the year, it is only at year end that the split between client
groups is actually known, so there are always likely to be movements. Client numbers have
also increased from 2,729 in January to 2,740 in February and again to 2,751 by the end of
March with a subsequent impact on expenditure. There have also been small increases
against preserved rights, in-house provision and integrated care centres as well as a
decrease in the actual income against what was expected.

o +£0.421m Older People Nursing Care — this is mainly because an additional £0.134m is
required for the bad debt provision and there have also been increases in the number of
clients in permanent nursing care and the amount of non permanent weeks of care required.
The amount of income is approximately £200k less than previously expected.

o -£0.225 Older People Domiciliary Care — this is primarily as a result of releasing the balance
of the creditor provision made in 2008-09 in respect of the Transaction Data Matching (TDM)
system. The provision was made last year following a detailed review of payments to
suppliers against the number of hours ordered through Swift (the client activity system),
which suggested that additional costs could be invoiced for. The calculation of this provision
was agreed with the council’'s external auditors. The position has been monitored and
discussed with providers throughout the year and as a result some of the creditor has proved
not to be needed and has therefore been released to reduce the revenue position.

Page 5



3.2.6

3.2.7

3.2.8

3.2.9

3.2.10

3.2.11

e +£0.180m Learning Disability Residential Care — this is primarily due to income being lower
than expected.

e -£0.421m Learning Disability Domiciliary Care — of this movement £0.088m relates to the
TDM issue already referred to within Older People Domiciliary Care, and a further £0.060m
relates to re-phasing of expenditure against the Social Care Reform Grant.

e -£0.446m Learning Disability Supported Accommodation — of this £0.227m relates to
additional continuing healthcare funding for a placement following arbitration. The number of
clients is also less than anticipated with a number of placements not now starting until the
new year.

e -£0.114m Physical Disability Domiciliary Care — this is primarily as a result of releasing the
balance of the creditor provision made in 2008-09 in respect of the TDM issue referred to
above.

e -£0.161m All Adults Assessment & Related — this is mainly due to further slippage in posts
funded through the Social Care Reform and the Learning Disability Campus Grant.

e -£0.115m Strategic Business Support — this is mainly due to further slippage in posts funded
through the Social Care Reform and the Learning Disability Campus Grant.

e +£0.300m Specific Grant Income — this is because more grant income is being rolled forward
as a receipt in advance to cover the costs that have re-phased in to 2010-11, as referred to
above. Of this £0.170m relates to the Learning Disability Campus Grant and £0.130m relates
to the Social Care Reform Grant.

Environment, Highways & Waste Portfolio:
The overall underspend for the portfolio has increased by a further £0.075m, to £0.720m since
the last report to Cabinet, made up of a number of small movements across units.

Communities Portfolio:

The underspend on this portfolio has increased by £0.368m to £0.818m since the last report.

The main movements are:

e -£0.118m Registration Service — this is largely due to a lower shortfall in income for marriage
ceremonies than previously forecast due to more ceremonies performed during February and
March than previously anticipated and the writing back to revenue of a provision which is no
longer required.

e -£0.076m Kent Drugs and Alcohol Team - this is due to re-phasing on the S31 pooled
treatment budget and Partnership Support Grant. Under the terms of the partnership
agreement KCC have an obligation to contribute this funding to the KDAAT Board and
therefore this is included as a committed roll forward request in Appendix 2 of this report.

There are a number of smaller movements, all below £0.1m, across the other budget lines within

this portfolio.

Localism & Partnerships Portfolio:

The underspend on this portfolio has increased by £0.092m to £0.114m since the last report,
which is mainly due to re-phasing of Local Scheme spending recommended by Local Boards
and Member Community Grants. This is purely a timing issue and therefore is included in the
committed roll forward requests in appendix 2.

Corporate Support & External Affairs Portfolio:

The underspend for the portfolio has increased by £0.301m since the last report to Cabinet. This

is mainly due to:

e -£0.212m due to a large rates rebate within the Property Group relating to the last 5 years
rates paid for 17 Kings Hill Avenue and Invicta House.

e -£0.060m further income achieved within Legal Services.

e -£0.108m underspending on the External Audit and subscriptions budget.

Finance Portfolio:
The underspend for the portfolio has only marginally increased by £0.021m to £4.143m since the
last report to Cabinet.

Asylum:

The final pressure for the Asylum Service was £3.029m, which compares to £2.780m reported to
Cabinet in May. The reason for this change of £0.249m is an unforeseen backlog in invoices for
Agency Staff and Interpreting (£0.150m) and delays in receiving accommodation invoices
(£0.090m). Following successful negotiafft@éuith Government regarding future funding levels,



3.3

3.4
3.4.1

3.4.2

3.5
3.5.1

and an increase in the per capita grant and full funding for the intake team for 2008-09 and
2009-10, this residual pressure for 2009-10 of £3.029m has been funded from the Asylum
reserve.

In addition, the overall funding position for 2008-09 has improved by a further £0.075m since the
previously reported position to Cabinet in March of additional funding of £0.551m, due to a
revision of the 2008-09 special circumstances settlement and this has been repaid to the Asylum
reserve. Overall therefore the repayment to the reserve in 2009-10, in respect of 2008-09, was
£0.626m.

A reconciliation of the revenue gross and income cash limits to the last full monitoring report, as
reported to Cabinet on 29 March, is provided in Appendix 1.

REVENUE BUDGET ROLL FORWARD PROPOSALS

Table 2 below provides a summary of the revenue outturn position and shows that of the
£8.826m underspend, £1.453m relates to committed/re-phased projects, leaving £7.373m of
uncommitted underspending. It is recommended that this be used as follows:

e A sum of £2m is held in a new Corporate Restructuring Reserve to be held within the
Finance Portfolio. Given the anticipated savings required in Local Government over the next
years, it is recommended that a specific reserve will be vital to help us re-engineer our
business efficiently. The main funding is expected to be for "spend to save" projects that can
be supported by a robust business case. Some temporary staffing costs may also be
necessary.

e The balance of £5.373m is set aside in the earmarked Economic Downturn reserve, in the
light of the recent announcements on the £6bn efficiency savings in 2010-11 and the
imminent Emergency Budget.

TABLE 2: SUMMARY OF REVENUE ROLL FORWARDS:

Provisional Committed/ | transfers
Outturn re-phasing | tolfrom UNALLOCATED

PORTFOLIO Variance

£k £k £k £k
CF&E -2,238 -2,238
KASS 182 119 -301 0
E,H&W -720 77 -3
Communities -818 126 -692
Localism & Partnerships -114 256 -142 0
Corporate Support & -831 199 142 -490
Performance Management
Finance -4,143 301 -3,842
Public Health & Innovation -114 6 -108
Regen & Economic Development -30 30 0

-8,826 1,453 0 -7,373

Appendix 2 provides details of the £1.453m roll forward proposals, which identify projects that
have been re-scheduled and are committed — this is simply a matter of rolling budgets forward in
line with expected delivery. Cabinet is asked to approve these proposals.

DELEGATED SCHOOLS BUDGET

The previously forecast draw down from reserves of £6m was our estimate of the reduction in
schools reserves. Schools nine month monitoring returns indicated a much larger drawdown
than this but, based on past experience that their estimates tend to be significantly overstated,
the figure was scaled back. It is very difficult to predict this with any accuracy, especially this
year when factoring in the recovery of £0.762m from 8 schools earlier in the financial year and
the introduction of the tighter ‘balancpawtfol mechanism’. This process limits the level of



3.5.2

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

reserves that schools can carry forward from one year to the next and allows the LA to claw back
funding over and above a specified level. The introduction of the tighter rules has proved to have
the required effect with schools reducing their reserves by £11.430m in 2009-10. The CFE
Directorate is now going through the balance control mechanism process to review all schools
balances, as part of the 2009-10 closure of accounts, and early indications are that only 10
schools have exceeded the limit with a total anticipated recovery of around £0.2m.

The £11.430m reduction in schools reserves in 2009-10 is made up of £14.702m drawdown of
reserves by schools against schools delegated budgets and an underspend on the unallocated
schools budget of £3.272m, which is largely due to £1.083m rates rebates, £1m higher than
expected school recoupment income and £0.735m clawback of schools reserves as a result of
the balance control mechanism. This has reduced total school revenue reserves to £51.753m of
which £14m relates to unallocated schools budget. Of the remaining £37.8m, the schools returns
show that of this balance, £9.3m is committed for specific revenue projects, Standards Fund
phasing and contributing towards larger capital projects.

IMPACT ON RESERVES

These are provisional figures and are subject to change during the final stages of the closing of
accounts process.

Account Balance at Balance at
31/3/10 31/3/09

£m £m

Earmarked Reserves 110.9 102.0
General Fund balance 25.8 25.8
Schools Reserves 51.8 63.2

The general reserves position at 31 March 2010 is estimated at £25.8m, which is unchanged
from the position as at 31 March 2009, and amounts to 3.05% of the 2010-11 revenue budget
(excluding schools). This is reviewed formally as part of the annual budget process.

The provisional movement of +£8.9m in earmarked reserves since 31 March 2009 is mainly due

to:

Increase in Rolling Budget Reserve +£1.3m

Increase in the Economic Downturn Reserve +£7.7m reflects decisions
taken during 2009-10

Increase in the Prudential Equalisation Reserve +£4.7m to cover PEF 2 costs

New reserve for Turner Contemporary Investment +£3.4m to be used to provide
an annuity over the
next 20 years

Increase in the PF| Reserves +£2.5m to equalise costs

Increase in Commercial Services Earmarked Reserves +£1.5m

Increase in Workforce Reduction Reserve +£1.1m

Increase in the reserve for projects previously classified as +£1.0m includes Member

capital but now considered revenue Highway Fund

Reduction in Insurance reserve -£3.3m £1m budgeted
reduction & £2.3m to
cover deficit on
Insurance Fund

Reduction in the Supporting People Reserve -£2.8m

Reduction in the reserve to support next year’s budget -£2.6m

Reduction in the Asylum Reserve -£2.4m

Reduction in the Kingshill Smoothing Reserve -£2.0m

Reduction in the Performance Reward Grant Reserve -£0.9m

Reduction in the Elections Reserve -£0.8m

+£8.4m

Page 8



3.7
3.71

-_—

3.7.2

CAPITAL BUDGET OUTTURN 2009-10

The following changes have been made to the capital programme since the last report to

Cabinet:

Cash Limits as reported to Cabinet on 17th May

Re-phasing as agreed at Cabinet on 17th May

Children, Families & Education (CFE)

Kent Adult Social Services

Environment, Highways & Waste

Communities

Regeneration & Economic Development

Corporate Support Services & Performance Management
Harnessing Technology - now deemed as revenue funded, the
expenditure and funding has been transferred - CFE portfolio

Transformation in Adult Social Care - additional grant received -

KASS portfolio

Schools Devolved Capital — following the consolidation of the
schools accounts it is apparent that the capital resources
available to schools have increased:

- further grant funding from the DCSF

- additional external funding contributions

- additional revenue contributions from the schools delegated
budgets

Kent History Centre — transfer of lease, no expenditure
incurred, memorandum note below - CMY portfolio

PFI
Kent History Centre — transfer of lease, no expenditure
incurred, memorandum note - CMY portfolio

£000s £000s
2009-10 2010-11
353,583 486,032
-1,350 1,224
-134 134
-1,433 1,308
-1,969 1,849
-695 695
-528 584
-3,120 -2,050
730
14,508
2,473
-281
-1,830
359,224 490,506
54,983 27,101
1,830
416,037 517,607

The provisional outturn for the capital budget, excluding schools devolved capital and the Property
Enterprise Fund is £297.1m, a variance of -£1.703m. This outturn compares with the variance
(after re-phasing) of -£0.921m last reported to Cabinet at its meeting on 17 May. In addition, the
Schools’ have underspent their available capital resources by some £14.1m, having previously
forecast a balanced position. The provisional outturn by portfolio and the movement since the last

report are shown below in table 3.

Page 9



TABLE 3: PROVISIONAL FINAL CAPITAL OUTTURN BY PORTFOLIO

Variance
per last
Provisional report exc
Portfolio Budget Outturn | Variance |re-phasing| Movement
£k £k £k £k £k
CFE +171,124 +169,798 -1,326 -1,061 -265
KASS +3,708 +3,398 -310 -350 +40
E,H&W +98,645 +99,151 +506 +413 +93
Communities +12,046 +12,381 +335 +20 +315
Regen & ED +4,331 +4,018 -313 -387 +74
Corporate Support & PM +8,284 +7,695 -589 +511 -1,100
Localism & Partnerships +665 +659 -6 -67 +61
TOTAL (excl Schools) +298,803 +297,100 -1,703 -921 -782
Schools +60,421 +46,314 -14,107 0 -14,107
TOTAL +359,224 +343,414 -15,810 -921 -14,889
Property Enterprise Fund 1 +121 +121 +121
Property Enterprise Fund 2 +530 +530 +530
TOTAL incl PEF +359,224 +344,065 -15,159 -921 -14,238

3.7.3
Fund has been funded.

TABLE 4: PROVISIONAL FUNDING OF CAPITAL OUTTURN

Table 4 shows how the capital spend of £344.065m, including Schools and Property Enterprise

Capital Cash Limit Capital Variance
Propert
KCC | Schools | rqp,, | KCC | Schools Ente?pri:e TOTAL
Funding Source portfolios | Devolved portfolios| Devolved Fund (182)
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Supported Borrowing 61,596 61,596 438 438
Prudential 39,125 39,125 758 758
Prudential/Revenue (directorate funded) 9,690 9,690 513 513
PEF2 11,411 11,411 -11,411 -11,411
Grant 152,819 | 47,652 | 200,471 -1,650 | -13,867 -15,517
External Funding - Other 11,728 3,050 | 14,778 -386 -240 -626
External Funding - Developer contributions 5,051 5,051 547 547
Revenue & Renewals 4,188 9,719 | 13,907 -1,671 -1,671
Capital Receipts 2,330 2,330 -300 -300
General Capital Receipts 865 865 -732 121 -611
(generated by Property Enterprise Fund 1)

PEF2 Capital Receipts 0 0 12,191 530 | 12,721
TOTAL 298,803 | 60,421 | 359,224 -1,703 | -14,107 651 | -15,159
3.7.4 The main reasons for the movement in the forecast since the last monitoring report to Cabinet

on 17 May, as shown in table 3, are as follows:
3.7.5 Children, Families and Education Portfagle: 10




3.7.6

The overall capital position for the portfolio (excluding capital devolved to schools) has moved by
-£0.265m since the last report. The main movements are:

Childrens Centres and Early Years (-£1.587m): the major rephasings on this programme are:
a. Play Equipment — round 2 shop (-£0.861m): two of the elements of this project (the
grants to childminder and phase 2 of the online shop) have been delayed due to
administration difficulties and delays in processing orders. Both elements will be

rolled out in the new financial year.

b. Round 2 Childrens Centre builds (-£0.743m): this rephasing is mainly due to the
Brent YMCA and East Stour (South Willesborough Childrens Centre) projects where
lease and grant agreements are still being finalised by the KCC legal team

c. Development & Sustainability (+£0.404m): the programme is progressing ahead of
schedule due to private providers completing works ahead of the original dates they
submitted.

d. Sensory Boxes (-£0.192m): due to shipping problems encountered this project has
rephased.

e. Round 3 Childrens Centre builds (-£0.113m): this is due to the recharging to revenue
for abortive development fees on the earlier stages of the programme and the delays
whilst decisions were being taken on how Phase 3 should progress.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.082m on this project.

Building Schools for the Future & Academy development fees (+£1.003m): most of this
overspend (+£0.870m) relates to Wave 5 development costs where a significant amount of
additional work on planning and the outline business case has been required by
Partnerships for Schools. There is also a further overspend (+£0.418m in total) on Wave 3
and 4 and New Line Learning development costs which is due to a greater reliance on
external consultants than anticipated. This is offset, by a saving of -£0.131m on the internal
team costs.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.154m on this project.

Building Schools for the Future Wave 3 build costs (-£0.147m): the main variances on this
project are detailed below:-

a. King Ethelbert and Charles Dickens (total -£2.457m) is a result of the collapse of the
contractor, William Verry, during the year.

b. Work on Herne Bay High School, although behind schedule, has progressed better
than projected, resulting in an overspend of +£1.146m.

c. Account has been taken of the work in progress at St George's leading to an
overspend of +£0.870m.

d. Expenditure on ICT is slightly lower than projected (-£0.641m) as a direct result of
the construction programme.

e. There were small variations on contracts at Dane Court Grammar School and The
Community College Whitstable (total +£0.956m).

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.021m on this project.

Academies (-£0.120m): the main rephasing is due to the following projects; an overspend of
+£1.153m on Longfield Academy which is currently ahead of schedule, an underspend on
Cornwallis of -£0.419m, which results from a revision to their payment profile and an
underspend on New Line Learning of -£0.794m which although is on schedule and due for
completion in the early part of 2010/11, is behind the projected expenditure.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.060m on this project.

Practical Cookery Spaces (+£0.125m): the main reason for this variance is the monitoring
information supplied by one of the schools being incorrect.

Swanscombe/6 Schools lifecycle costs (PFI) (+£0.95m): the accounting for PFI has changed
and part of the unitary costs are now capitalised.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of +£0.366m on a number of minor projects.
Kent Adult Social Services Portfolio:

The capital outturn for the portfolio has moved by +£0.040m since the previous reported position.
This main changes being:-

Flexible and Mobile Engagement/SWIFT enhancement projects (rephasing -£0.114m):
elements of these projects are joint working partnerships with the NHS. A decision was

Page 11



3.7.7

3.7.8

3.7.9

3.7.10

3.8

3.9

3.10
3.10.1

3.1

taken very late in the financial year not to order remaining permanent hardware until interim
solutions had been tested and verified with the NHS.

o Westview/Westbrook/Better Homes lifecycle costs (PFI) (+£0.249m): the accounting for PFI
has changed and part of the unitary costs are now capitalised.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.095m on minor projects.
Environment, Highways and Waste Portfolio:

The overall capital position for the portfolio has moved by +£0.093m since the last report. This is

mainly due to:

e Salt Storage Infrastructure (+£0.140m): the movement against this scheme relates to being
able to obtain some of this equipment early than expected.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.047m on minor projects.
Communities Portfolio:

The overall capital position for the portfolio has moved by +£0.315m since the last report. The

main movement is:

e Turner Contemporary (+£0.390m): progress on the Turner Gallery has gathered pace around
the year end and some works that had initially thought to be commencing in Quarter 1 2010-
11 were actually in progress at the year end. The project remains on budget and on schedule
to complete prior to the end of the year.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.075m on minor projects.
Corporate Support Services and Performance Management Portfolio:

The capital outturn for the portfolio has moved by -£1.100m since the previous reported position.
This main changes are:-

e Commercial Services VPE (-£0.819m): this is matched by a decreased contribution to their
renewals fund so there are no funding implications.

e Connecting with Kent (-£0.138m): procurement for the video conferencing project became
delayed and will now be purchased in the new financial year.

Overall this leaves a residual balance of -£0.143m on a number of more minor projects
Regeneration & Economic Development Portfolio:

The capital outturn for the portfolio has moved by +£0.074m since the previous reported position.
All variances are on a number of minor projects.

CAPITAL PROJECT ROLL FORWARDS:

The 2010-11 Capital Programme will now be revised to reflect the re-phasing and other
variations of the 2009-10 Capital Programme that resulted in the -£1.703m variance in 2009-10.
The rephasing details are included in appendix 3 and will be adjusted in the first monitoring
report of the 2010-11 budget to be reported to Cabinet on 12 July 2010.

CAPITAL RECEIPTS:

Capital Receipts realised in 2009-10 were £4.455m from the sale of property and £0.240m from
the repayment of loans. All of these receipts are required to fund existing capital programme
commitments. This position excludes the receipts generated through the Property Enterprise
Fund which are referred to in section 3.11 below.

SCHOOLS DEVOLVED CAPITAL

Capital expenditure incurred directly by schools in 2009-10 was £46.3m. Schools have in hand
some £14.1m of capital funding which will be carried forward as part of the overall schools
reserves position. This represents an increase in schools capital reserves of £4.6m.

PROPERTY ENTERPRISE FUND (PEFPage 12



3.111

3.11.2

PEF1

At the end of 2008-09 the fund was in deficit by £5.234m, and this was covered by temporary
borrowing.

In 2009-10, the costs of disposal activity undertaken within PEF1 amounted to £0.121m, as
shown in table 3 above. In addition, PEF1 was earmarked to fund £0.848m of capital spend in
2009-10 on the completion of the Gateway programme. Therefore, total costs to be met from
PEF1 were £0.969m. Due to the slowdown in the property market, capital receipts realised
through PEF1 from the sale of non-operational property were £0.255m, leaving a further
£0.714m to be funded from the £10m temporary borrowing facility. When taken together with
the deficit brought forward from 2008-09, the deficit on PEF1 at the end of 2009-10 was
£5.948m.

Further details of the Property Enterprise Fund are provided in section 5.2 of Appendix 4.

PEF2

At the end of 2008-09 the fund was in deficit by £35.303m, and this was covered by temporary
borrowing.

Costs associated with PEF2 in 2009-10 were £0.530m, as shown in table 3 above, and PEF2
funding support to the capital programme was £7.296m. This was offset by £12.721m of capital
receipts realised through the Fund, therefore during 2009-10, there was a surplus of £4.895m on
PEF2. When taken together with the deficit brought forward from 2008-09, the deficit on PEF2,
against the £85m overdraft limit, at the end of 2009-10 was £30.408m.

Further details of the PEF2 are provided in section 5.3 of Appendix 4.

2009-10 FINAL MONITORING OF KEY ACTIVITY INDICATORS

Details of the final monitoring of key activity indicators for 2009-10 are detailed in Appendix 4.

FINANCIAL HEALTH INDICATORS
The final financial health indicators for 2009-10 are detailed in Appendix 5.

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
The final monitoring of the 2009-10 prudential indicators is detailed in Appendix 6.

CAPITAL BUDGET OUTCOMES & ACHIEVEMENTS

A report highlighting the main achievements delivered by the capital programme in 2009-10 is
attached at Appendix 7.

Page 13



APPENDIX 1

Reconciliation of Gross and Income Cash Limits to the 29 March 2010 Cabinet Report

CASH LIMIT VARIANCE
Portfolio Gross Income Net Gross Income Net
£k £k £k £k £k £k
Children, Families & Educ +409,365 | -1,107,236 -697,871 +3,019 -5,257 -2,238
Kent Adult Social Services +444,229 -109,107 +335,122 +1,852 -1,670 +182
Environ, Highways & Waste +168,586 -16,640 +151,946 -748 +28 =720
Communities +146,012 -87,412 +58,600 -18 -800 -818
Localism & Partnerships +6,970 -405 +6,565 -209 +95 -114
Corporate Support & +53,839 | -43770 | +10,069 +6,384 7,215 831
Performance Mgmt
Finance +142,671 -19,068 +123,603 +1,440 -5,583 -4,143
Public Health & Innovation +1,410 -620 +790 -425 +311 -114
Regen & Economic Dev +11,518 -3,422 +8,096 +139 -169 -30
SUB TOTAL (excl Schools) | +1,384,600 | -1,387,680 -3,080 +11,434 -20,260 -8,826
Asylum +14,129 -14,129 0 +4,677 -4,677 0
TOTAL (excl Schools) +1,398,729 | -1,401,809 -3,080 +16,111 -24,937 -8,826
Schools +978,347 -80,967 +897,380 +9,919 +1,511 +11,430
TOTAL +2,377,076 | -1,482,776 +894,300 +26,030 -23,426 +2,604
Gross Income Net
£k £k £k
Reconciliation:
Cash Limits Per Mar report +2,367,894 | -1,473,594 +894,300
Subsequent changes:
Changes to grant/income allocations:
CFE -1,657 1,657 0|DCLG PFI Credits adjustment
CFE 472 -472 O|Further school contributions to PFI costs
CFE -181 181 0|Reduced interest income for PFl scheme
CFE 77 -77 0|DCSF Rural Transport Coordinator funding
CFE 138 -138 0| Teacher Development Agency grant
CFE 191 -191 Contact point income prior year adjustment
CFE 106 -106 0|DCSF Poverty Pilot funding
CFE 394 -394 0[Skills Studio income from schools
CFE 152 -152 0| Department of Transport Walking to School
initiative
CFE 2,117 -2,117 0|Additional SEN recoupment income from
other local authorities
CFE 154 -154 O[Learning & Skills Council additional grant
allocation
CFE 157 -157 0|DCSF Schools Standards Grant &
Personalisation adjustment
CFE 477 477 0|Sure Start Two year old pilot grant
CFE -530 530 0|Sure Start Local Programmes unspent grant
to be paid back to DCSF
CFE -9 9 0|Sure Start Transition Support Programme
unspent grant to be paid back to DCSF
CFE -824 824 0|Unspent academic year diploma grant
treated as a receipt in advance
CFE -8,140 8,140 0|Unspent Standards Fund grant treated as a
receipt in advance
KASS 18 -18 0|DoH grant for Kent & Medway Dementia
Demonstrator
KASS -498 498 O|correction to Kent Supported Employment

income target (base budget issue)

Page 14




Gross

Income

Net

£k

£k

£k

KASS

281

-281

OP Residential - further increased costs of
Integrated Care Centres which are
rechargeable to Health

KASS

3,079

-3,079

OP Other Services - PFI credits and unitary
charge for Better Homes Active Lives

KASS

649

-649

LD Supported Accommodation - PFI credits
and unitary charge for Better Homes Active
Lives

KASS

78

MH Supported Accommodation - PFI credits
and unitary charge for Better Homes Active
Lives

KASS

1,600

-1,600

Strategic Business Support - PFI credits for
Better Homes Active Lives

KASS

519

-519

OP Residential - adj to PFI credits for
Westbrook and Westview Integrated Care
Centres

EH&W

79

DfT grant: Delivering a Sustainable
Transport System

CMY

26

Reduction of funding for the festival of
learning projects from Local Education
Authorities Forum for the Education of
Adults (LEAFEA)

CMY

-279

279

Youth: correction to Qtr 3 adjustment for
funding from GOSE to fund Youth
Opportunities Fund.

CMY

48

Youth: correction to Qtr 3 adjustment for
funding from Sanctuary Housing to support
youth work in the Canterbury area.

Technical Adjustments:

CFE

4,674

-4,674

Kent Public Services Network - change in
treatment of grant and expenditure from
capital to revenue as agreed with the
external auditors

CFE

1,369

-1,369

Internal Commissioning arrangements with
LCSPs

CFE

130

-130

Internal recharging of costs within 14-24 unit

CFE

-101

101

Removal of historic internal income budget
for Alternative Curriculum

KASS

898

-898

LD Domiciliary - recharge of Supporting
People to Communities following tfr of
budget

KASS

240

-240

LD Supported Accommodation - recharge of
Supporting People to Communities following
tfr of budget

KASS

96

All Adults A&R - recharge of Supporting
People to Communities following tfr of
budget

CS&PM

3,837

-3,837

Kent Public Services Network - change in
treatment of grant and expenditure from
capital to revenue as agreed with the
external auditors

CS&PM

-507

507

Income for Interreg partners not now coming
through KCC accounts

Revised Budget

2,377,076

-1,482,776

894,300

Page 15




APPENDIX 2
2009-10 REVENUE BUDGET ROLL FORWARDS

1. CHILDREN, FAMILIES & EDUCATION:

£k
Provisional outturn variance: CF&E portfolio -2,238
-2,238

Committed roll forwards:
= None
0
UNCOMMITTED -2,238
2. KENT ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES:

£k
Provisional outturn variance: KASS portfolio 182
Transfer from Finance portfolio -301

Committed roll forwards:
* Contribution to Integrated Community Equipment Store pooled budget 119

This represents KCC's share of the underspend of the ICES Board. Under
the terms of the S75 agreement, we have an obligation to provide this
funding to the pooled budget. The underspending relating to partners
contributions has been 'rolled forward' as a receipt in advance.
119

UNCOMMITTED [ 0

Page 16



3. ENVIRONMENT, HIGHWAYS & WASTE:

£k

Provisional outturn variance: EH&W portfolio -720

Commiitted roll forwards:

Signs & Lines Project 432
Part of this £850k project has re-phased into 2010-11. This funding is

required to complete the project. The project was temporarily halted as

lining is not recommended during the winter months as reported to Cabinet

in January.

Permit Scheme from the Traffic Management Act -441

The set up costs for the introduction of the Permit Scheme in Kent, which

became operational in February 2010, will be recovered from future income

streams from the charges for permits. Therefore a deficit is being rolled, as

reported to Cabinet in January, which will be offset by the new permit

income.

Land Use Survey 225

There have been delays to the land use survey (as reported to Cabinet in
November 2009). This money is being used to match fund against a
successful Interreg bid. The external funding has been used first where
appropriate and the KCC contribution will be needed to complete the
project in 2010-11.
Surface Water Management Plan 57
The SWMP is funded from a two year increase to Area Based Grant which
was not notified until late in 2009-10 so it was not possible to spend the
2009-10 allocation by 31 March. The funding is required to roll forward to
complete this project in 2010-11.
Replacement of MIDAS Financial & Management Information System 405
Re-phasing of the replacement project. The replacement of the MIDAS
financial system was only partially completed in 2009-10. Waste and
PROW have transferred to ORACLE but Highways has yet to do so
because of the added complexities of this budget and the link with WAMS
(KHS Works Ordering System). This project is expected to complete by 31-
03-2011 and it is requested that the funding is rolled forward in order to pay
for the final phase.
Kent Waste Partnership 39
This represents KCC's share of the underspend of the KWP that KCC
holds on behalf of the partnership. Under the terms of the partnership
agreement, we have an obligation to provide this funding to the pooled
budget.
717

UNCOMMITTED

Page 17



4. COMMUNITIES:

5.

Provisional outturn variance: Communities portfolio -818

Committed roll forwards:
= Kent Drugs & Alcohol Team:
- KCC share of the underspend on the S31 pooled treatment budget. Under 61
the terms of the partnership agreement, KCC has an obligation to contribute
this funding to the KDAAT Board. The underspending relating to partners
contributions has been 'rolled forward' as a receipt in advance.

- Underspend on the Partnership Support Grant paid via Area Based Grant. 15
This forms part of the KCC contribution to the KDAAT Board. Under the
terms of the partnership agreement KCC has an obligation to contribute this
funding to the KDAAT Board. All underspends (KCC & partners) are reported
to the Board for them to consider\approve future treatment i.e. whether
monies are used to support services in the new financial year or returned to
funding partners (incl. KCC)

= Supporting Independence 50
One-off costs in relation to the restructuring of the unit and the change in
emphasis and direction of a number of the projects that are to be delivered
following the 2009-10 mid year review. The base budget reflects the position
going forward but one-off funding is necessary to enable the transition.

126

UNCOMMITTED

LOCALISM & PARTNERSHIPS:

£k
Provisional outturn variance: L&P portfolio -114
transfer from CS&PM portfolio -142

Committed roll forwards:

* Member Community Grants 13
Grants which have been committed in 09-10 for projects internal to KCC,
but the work was not completed by 31 March

* Local Priorities 175
Grants to District Councils for Local Priorities from 2009-10 second homes
money, which have been requested to roll forward to 2010-11. Under the
terms of the scheme, roll forward for one year is permitted.

* Local Scheme spending recommended by Local Boards 68
Grants which have been committed in 2009-10 for projects internal to KCC,
but the work was not completed by 31 March.

256

UNCOMMITTED [ ¢

Page 18



6. CORPORATE SUPPORT & PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT:

Provisional outturn variance:

£k
-831
142

CS&PM portfolio
Transfer to L&P portfolio

Committed roll forwards:

UNCOMMITTED

P&D - Well Being Health checks 75
Due to lower than expected take-up in 2009-10, roll forward is required in

order to complete the programme in 2010-11.

P&D - Kent Leadership Programme (3rd cohort) 45

This roll forward is required to complete/finance the Kent Leadership

Programme, which overlaps two financial years.

Strategic Development Unit - Route Development Fund 4
Re-phasing of the project

Property - Room Booking System 40
Roll forward is required to pay for new application software to superceed and
upgrade the Computer Aided Booking Stsyem (CABS). Tender and
evaluation began in early March, we are now in a position to award the
contract.
Property Group Review 35
The Property Group Review started in the 4th quarter of 2009-10 with a final
report due in late May.
199

7. FINANCE:

Provisional outturn variance:

£k
-4,143
301

Finance portfolio
transfer to KASS portfolio

Committed roll forwards:

UNCOMMITTED

None

Page 19



8. PUBLIC HEALTH & INNOVATION:

Provisional outturn variance: Public Health & Innovation portfolio

Committed roll forwards:
* Public Health - Health Service Standards
To fund a collaboration with Patient's Association to improve health
service standards in Kent. This was slightly delayed and will happen
early in the new financial year.

UNCOMMITTED

9. REGENERATION & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:

Provisional outturn variance: R&ED portfolio

Commiitted roll forwards:
* Research & Intelligence

£k
-114

£k

30

The need to halve the R+l team budget set in train formal Personnel
processes to reduce the head count of the team. From a start point of
22 February, when formal consultation with staff commenced, the
reduction of head count will only be achieved by w/c the 2 August
through redeployment or redundancy. Overall the head count will be
reduced but there is a need to find the resources to pay for these staff,
not budgeted for in the 2010/11 Budget, through to 2 August. The team
budget is primarily staff costs and there is no scope to find these savings
elsewhere in the team’s budget. Nor is there scope to add further to an
existing ambitious income generation target. The roll forward is required
to meet the projected overspend in 2010/11 due to unbudgeted and
unavoidable costs.

30

UNCOMMITTED [ 0

Page 20



APPENDIX 3
CAPITAL RE-PHASING

The 2010-11 Capital Programme will be adjusted to reflect the total re-phasing of -£2.415m as

follows:-

CFE 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 |Future Years Total
£k £k £k £k

Building Schools For Furture - BSF Unit Costs

Amended total cash limits +6,168 +1,500 +1,600 +4,200 +13,468

re-phasing +1,003 -1,003 0

Revised project phasing +7,171 +497 +1,600 +4,200 +13,468

Special Schools Review - approval to spend

Amended total cash limits +13,846 +2,969 +57 +16,872

re-phasing -405 +404 +1 0

Revised project phasing +13,441 +3,373 +58 0 +16,872

Children Centres

Amended total cash limits +11,766 +18,753 +7 +30,526

re-phasing -1,550 +1,550 0

Revised project phasing +10,216 +20,303 +7 0 +30,526

Buliding Schools for the Future wave 3

Amended total cash limits +61,172 +39,059 +1,315 +4,183 | +105,729

re-phasing -147 +147 0

Revised project phasing +61,025 +39,206 +1,315 +4,183 | +105,729

Practical Cooking Spaces

Amended total cash limits +1,036 +2,654 +3,690

re-phasing +125 -125 0

Revised project phasing +1,161 +2,529 0 0 +3,690

Academy projects - Maidstone New Line Learning new build

Amended total cash limits +13,580 +7,162 +214 +20,956

re-phasing -211 +211 0

Revised project phasing +13,369 +7,373 +214 0 +20,956

Academy projects - Maidstone Cornwallis new build

Amended total cash limits +12,113 +19,853 +3,184 +178 +35,328

re-phasing -283 +283 0

Revised project phasing +11,830 +20,136 +3,184 +178 +35,328

Page 21




CFE 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 |Future Years Total
£k £k £k £k

Academy projects - Longfield new build

Amended total cash limits +4,885 +17,602 +1,575 +24,062

re-phasing +1,426 -1,426 0

Revised project phasing +6,311 +16,176 +1,575 0 +24,062

Academy projects - Tunbridge Wells new build

Amended total cash limits +206 +1,899 +10,416 +8,485 +21,006

re-phasing +114 -114 0

Revised project phasing +320 +1,785 +10,416 +8,485 +21,006

Total re-phasing >£100k +72 -73 +1 0 0

Other re-phased Projects

below £100k -641 +762 -96 -25 0

TOTAL RE-PHASING -569 +689 -95 -25 0

KASS 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 |Future Years Total
£k £k £k £k

Modernisation of Assets

Amended total cash limits 533.0 1,107.0 267.0 275.0 2,182.0

re-phasing -153.0 153.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Revised project phasing 380.0 1,260.0 267.0 275.0 2,182.0

Total re-phasing >£100k -153.0 153.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other re-phased Projects

below £100k -407.0 407.0

TOTAL RE-PHASING -560.0 560.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

EHW 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 |Future Years Total
£k £k £k £k

Kent Highway Partnership - Co-Location depots

Amended total cash limits +274 +4,195 +4,469

re-phasing -105 +105 0

Revised project phasing +169 +4,300 0 0 +4,469

Total re-phasing >£100k -105 +105 0 0 0

Other re-phased Projects

below £100k -416 +384 +32 0

TOTAL RE-PHASING -521 +489 +32 0 0

Page 22




cmy 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 |Future Years Total
£k £k £k £k

Modernisation of Assets

Amended total cash limits +1,493 +2,587 +1,746 +2,084 +7,910

re-phasing -460 +347 +113 0

Revised project phasing +1,033 +2,934 +1,859 +2,084 +7,910

Turner Contemporary

Amended total cash limits +5,391 +8,831 +286 +14,508

re-phasing +390 -390 0

Revised project phasing +5,781 +8,441 +286 0 +14,508

Total re-phasing >£100k -70 -43 +113 0 0

Other re-phased Projects

below £100k -173 +269 -96

TOTAL RE-PHASING -243 +226 +113 -96 0

CED 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 |Future Years Total
£k £k £k £k

Modernisation of Assets - (CSS&PM)

Amended total cash limits +2,232 +605 +1,250 +1,250 +5,337

re-phasing -117 +117 0

Revised project phasing +2,115 +722 +1,250 +1,250 +5,337

Connecting with Kent - (CSS&PM)

Amended total cash limits +273 +35 +308

re-phasing -138 +138 0

Revised project phasing +135 +173 0 0 +308

Maintaining the Infrastructure - (CSS&PM)

Amended total cash limits +2,123 +6,327 +1,150 +500 +10,100

re-phasing +101 -101 0

Revised project phasing +2,224 +6,226 +1,150 +500 +10,100

Oracle Release 12 - (CSS&PM)

Amended total cash limits +530 +1,203 +1,733

re-phasing -114 +114 0

Revised project phasing +416 +1,317 0 0 +1,733

Total re-phasing >£100k -268 +268 0 0 0

Other re-phased Projects

below £100k -254 +254 0

TOTAL RE-PHASING -522 +522 0 0 0

Page 23




Total re-phasing by portfolio:

Portfolio totals 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 |Future Years Total
£k £k £k £k £k
CFE
Amended total cash limits 171,124 220,827 233,556 402,942| 1,028,449
Re-phasing 72 -73 1 0 0
Revised cash limits 171,196 220,754 233,557 402,942 1,028,449
KASS
Amended total cash limits 3,708 12,222 7,857 1,488 25,275
Re-phasing -153 153 0 0 0
Revised cash limits 3,555 12,375 7,857 1,488 25,275
E,H&W
Amended total cash limits 98,645 167,253 119,550 308,266 693,714
Re-phasing -105 105 0 0 0
Revised cash limits 98,540 167,358 119,550 308,266 693,714
Communities
Amended total cash limits 13,876 28,459 10,198 3,506 56,039
Re-phasing -70 -43 113 0 0
Revised cash limits 13,806 28,416 10,311 3,506 56,039
Regen & ED
Amended total cash limits 4,331 11,929 4,230 6,222 26,712
Re-phasing 0 0 0 0 0
Revised cash limits 4,331 11,929 4,230 6,222 26,712
Corporate Support & PM
Amended total cash limits 8,284 15,626 9,317 13,703 46,930
Re-phasing -268 268 0 0 0
Revised cash limits 8,016 15,894 9,317 13,703 46,930
Localism & Partnerships
Amended total cash limits 665 500 500 500 2,165
Re-phasing 0 0 0 0 0
Revised cash limits 665 500 500 500 2,165
TOTAL RE-PHASING >£100k -524 410 114 0 0
Other re-phased Projects
below £100k -1,891 +2,076 -64 -121 0
TOTAL RE-PHASING -2,415 +2,486 +50 -121 0

Page 24




2009-10 FINAL MONITORING OF KEY ACTIVITY INDICATORS

APPENDIX 4

1. CHILDREN, FAMILIES & EDUCATION DIRECTORATE
1.1 Numbers of children receiving assisted SEN and Mainstream transport to school:
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
SEN Mainstream SEN Mainstream SEN Mainstream SEN [Mainstream
Budget | actual | Budget | actual |Budget| actual | Budget| actual [Budget| actual | Budget| actual | Budget Budget
level level level level level level Level Level
April | 3,396/ 3,618|21,000(20,923| 3,396| 3,790|21,000|20,618| 3,660/ 3,889|19,700|19,805| 4,098 19,679
May | 3,396/ 3,656|21,000(21,032| 3,396 3,812|21,000(20,635| 3,660/ 3,871|19,700|19,813| 4,098 19,679
June | 3,396, 3,655(21,000|21,121| 3,396 3,829(21,000|20,741| 3,660 3,959 19,700(19,773| 4,098 19,679
July | 3,396, 3,655(21,000|21,164| 3,396 3,398(21,000|20,516 3,660 3,935 19,700(19,761| 4,098 19,679
Aug 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sept | 3,396, 3,426(21,000|19,855| 3,396| 3,607(21,000|19,118| 3,660 3,755 18,425(18,914| 4,098 19,679
Oct 3,396/ 3,525(21,000|20,093| 3,396 3,731|21,000| 19,450 3,660 3,746/ 18,425|18,239| 4,098 19,679
Nov | 3,396/ 3,607|21,000(20,276| 3,396 3,795|21,000(19,548| 3,660 3,802|18,425|18,410| 4,098 19,679
Dec | 3,396/ 3,671|21,000(20,349| 3,396 3,831|21,000(19,579| 3,660 3,838|18,425|18,540| 4,098 19,679
Jan 3,396, 3,716(21,000|20,426| 3,396/ 3,908(21,000| 19,670 3,660 3,890|18,425|18,407| 4,098 19,679
Feb | 3,396 3,744|21,000(20,509| 3,396 3,898|21,000(19,701| 3,660 3,822|18,425|18,591| 4,098 19,679
Mar | 3,396/ 3,764|21,000(20,575| 3,396 3,907|21,000(19,797| 3,660 3,947|18,425|18,674| 4,098 19,679
Number of children receiving assisted SEN transport to school

4,300

4,200

4,100 -

4,000 - ’ » ;

3,900 Doy o

3,800 2 o T F o~ |

3,700 -

ey tiieasd

3,500

3,400 -

3,300 ‘>-‘ ‘>- “I-““ O‘ ‘ ‘00‘ ‘>-‘ ‘;-‘ ‘-‘“‘ ‘0 ‘CD‘ ‘>-‘ ‘>- “‘““‘>‘0‘ ‘O‘ ‘>-‘ ‘>-‘ “‘““>O ‘ ‘
$EE53338288883 883238388883 ¢8¢8325828888338533388288588¢%
< = < S < S < =

| —=—SEN budgeted level —+—SENactual |
Number of children receiving assisted Mainstream transport to school

21,500

21,000 p-f‘:f T—I—I—I—I—I—I—I—I—I—I T_“._“\

20,500 \

20,000 ¥

1,500 | T—I—I—I—I—I—I

19,000

18,500

18’000 r\‘>.‘w‘>~ ‘~‘~‘>‘u‘ ‘_o‘oo‘oo‘>.‘w‘>~‘ ‘~‘~>u _o‘m‘cn‘>.‘w‘>~.‘ ‘L‘~‘>u _o‘o‘o‘>.‘w‘>~.‘ ‘,_“_ >‘u‘ _o‘\—
T fE325385888¢CC 883238588888 8E3253825888: 38832388888 ¢
< S < S < S < =

—— Mainstream budgeted level —&— Mainstream actual

Comments:
SEN HTST — The number of children requiring SEN transport continues to be higher than budgeted
levels, however the outturn is an underspend of £855k. This is partly due to the cancellation of
transport during the period of snow in December and January and also due to a high level of savings
achieved from very successful contract renegotiations.

Page

25




e Mainstream HTST — The activity suggests the number of children requiring mainstream transport is
approximately equivalent to the budgeted level. However, savings have been generated through the
contract renegotiation which means we can now afford more travellers than the budgeted level
suggests. In addition, extra savings have been generated following the reduced costs of transport
during the snow in December. Overall the underspend is £1,087k.

1.2.1 Take up of pre-school places against the number of places available, split between Private
Voluntary and Independent Sector (PVI) places and School places:

PVI School Total places Estimate %
places taken | places taken taken up of 3&4 _ take
up up year old population up
2007-08
Summer term 20,675 9,485 30,460 30,992 98%
Autumn term 14,691 15,290 29,981 30,867 97%
Spring term 17,274 12,020 29,294 30,378 96%
2008-09
Summer term 20,766 9,842 30,608 31,294 98%
Autumn term 14,461 16,604 31,065 31,399 99%
Spring term 19,164 13,161 32,325 32,820 98%
2009-10
Summer term 21,175 9,868 31,043 32,770 95%
Autumn term 15,211 17,254 32,465 33,401 97%
Spring term 18,948 13,503 32,451 33,668 96%

Take up of pre-school places compared to estimated population of 3 & 4 year

olds
34,000

33,000 -

32,000 /'\ ~

31,000 —-<.\./ 8

30,000 -
29,000
28,000 T T T T T T T T
Summer term Autumn term  Spring term  Summer term Autumn term  Spring term  Summer term Autumn term  Spring term
07-08 07-08 07-08 08-09 08-09 08-09 09-10 09-10 09-10
—— Estimate of 3 & 4 year old population —&— Actual take-up ‘
Comments:

e This graph shows that currently 96% of the estimated population of 3 and 4 year olds are
receiving some level of early years provision, whether this be one session per week for 33
weeks or five sessions per week for 38 weeks.

e This activity indicator is based on headcount and provides a snapshot position at a point in
time, whereas the activity data in 2.2.2 below provides details of the number of hours provided
in the Private, Voluntary & Independent sector, and will correlate with the variance on the Early
Years budget within the Management Information Unit. However as this budget is funded
entirely from DSG/standards fund, any surplus or deficit at the end of the year must be carried
forward to the next financial year in accordance with the regulations, and cannot be used to
offset over or underspending elsewhere in the directorate budget. Therefore, as any unspent
DSG Early Years funding has to be returned to schools, in 2009-10 an underspend of £1.078m
was transferred to the schools unallocated reserve. Expenditure relating to the increase in the
free entitlement from 12.5hrs to 15hpgp week has been funded from Standards Fund, a



17month ring-fenced specific grant, which requires any resulting underspends to be carried
forward to the next financial year to be spent by 31* August 2010.

¢ |t should be noted that in the Autumn term each year, there is a shift in actual places taken up
from PVI sector to schools due to the movement of 4 year olds into reception classes in
mainstream schools.

1.2.2 Number of hours of early years provision provided to 3 & 4 year olds within the Private,
Voluntary & Independent Sector compared with the affordable level:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Budgeted Actual Budgeted Actual Budgeted Actual Budgeted
Term number of hours number of hours number of hours number of
hours provided hours provided hours provided hours
Summer 3,056,554 2,887,134 3,136,344 2,790,446 2,939,695 2,832,550 3,054,794
Autumn 2,352,089 2,209,303 2,413,489 2,313,819 2,502,314 2,510,826 2,897,016
Spring 2,294,845 2,233,934 2,354,750 2,438,957 2,637,646 2,504,512 2,909,688
7,703,488 7,330,371 7,904,583 7,543,222 8,079,655 7,847,888 8,861,498
Number of hours of early years provision within PVI sector compared with
affordable level
3,200,000
3,000,000 .\\ //-\\ /,\\.—__.
2,800,000 ’\ A
2,600,000 -
2,400,000 -
2,200,000 -
2,000,000
Summer Autumn  Spring Summer Autumn  Spring Summer Autumn  Spring Summer Autumn  Spring
term term term term term term term term term term term term
07-08 07-08 07-08 08-09 08-09 08-09 09-10 09-10 09-10 10-11 10-11 10-11
‘ ——budgeted level —@— actual hours provided ‘
Comments:

¢ The budgeted number of hours per term is based on an assumed level of take-up and the
assumed number of weeks the providers are open. The variation between the terms is due to
two reasons: firstly, the movement of 4 year olds at the start of the Autumn term into reception
year in mainstream schools; and secondly, the terms do not have the same number of weeks.

o The phased roll-out of the increase in the number of free entitlement hours from 12.5hrs to 15
hrs per week began from September 2009-10. The estimated increase in the number of hours
has been factored into the budgeted number of hours for 2009-10. This increase in hours is
funded by a specific DCSF Standards Fund grant.
For the Autumn Term there were 39,859 more hours than budgeted for, but this relates
entirely to a greater take up of the increase from 12.5 to 15 hours than assumed in the
budgeted level and therefore all of this increase has been funded by additional DCSF
standards fund grant and has had no impact on our net financial forecast position.

e The DSG underspent by £1.078m on this budget, and this has been transferred to the DSG
reserve in accordance with the terms of the grant.

e It should be noted that not all parents currently take up their full entittement and this can
change during the year.

Page 27



1.3

Number of schools with deficit budgets compared with the total number of schools:

2005-06 | 2006-07 | 2007-08 | 2008-09 | 2009-10 | 2010-11
as at as at as at as at as at ecti
31-3-06 | 31-3-07 | 31-3-08 | 31-3-09 | 31-3-10 |Projection
Total number of schools 600 596 575 570 564 558
Total value of school reserves | £70,657k | £74,376k | £79,360k | £63,184k | £51,753k | £49,000k
Number of deficit schools 9 15 15 13 23 20
Total value of deficits £947k | £1,426k | £1,068k | £1,775k | £2,409k | £2,000k

Comments:

e The CFE Statutory team are working with all schools currently reporting a deficit with the aim
of returning the schools to a balanced budget position as soon as possible. This involves
agreeing a management action plan with each school.

e KCC now has a “no deficit” policy for schools, which means that schools cannot plan for a
deficit budget at the start of the year. Unplanned deficits will need to be addressed in the
following year’s budget plan, and schools that incur unplanned deficits in successive years will
be subject to intervention by the Local Authority.

Page 28



1.4

Numbers of Looked After Children (LAC):

No of Kent| No of Kent| TOTAL NO No of OLA | TOTAL No of
LAC placed | LAC placed| OF KENT| LAC placed| LAC in Kent
in Kent in OLAs LAC in Kent
2007-08
Apr —Jun 1,060 112 1,172 1,325 2,497
Jul — Sep 1,084 91 1,175 1,236 2,411
Oct — Dec 1,090 97 1,187 1,197 2,384
Jan — Mar 1,047 97 1,144 1,226 2,370
2008-09
Apr — Jun 1,075 52 1,127 1,408 2,535
Jul — Sep 1,022 105 1,127 1,360 2,487
Oct — Dec 1,042 77 1,119 1,331 2,450
Jan — Mar 1,048 84 1,132 1,402 2,534
2009-10
Apr — Jun 1,076 100 1,176 1,399 2,575
Jul — Sep 1,104 70 1,174 1,423 2,597
Oct — Dec 1,104 102 1,206 1,465 2,671
Jan — Mar 1,094 139 1,233 1,421 2,654
Number of Looked After Children
2,800
2,600 -
2,400 1 [ | [ | | [ | [ | [ | [ |
2,200 1 | | | | | | | | | | |
2,000 1 | | | | | | | | | | |
1,800
1,600
1,400 | | | | | | | | | | | |
popo | ey e e - — —
800
600 -
400 -
200 1] | | | | | | | | | | |
0
Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4
07-08 07-08 07-08 07-08 08-09 08-09 08-09 08-09 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10
‘ ONo of Kent LACs in Kent B No of Kent LACs in OLAs ONo of OLA LACs in Kent ‘
Comments:

e Children Looked After by KCC may on occasion be placed out of the County, which is
undertaken using practice protocols that ensure that all long-distance placements are justified
and in the interests of the child. All Looked After Children are subject to regular statutory
reviews (at least twice a year), which ensures that a regular review of the child’s care plan is
undertaken. The maijority (over 99%) of Looked After Children placed out of the Authority are
either in adoptive placements, placed with a relative, specialist residential provision not
available in Kent or living with KCC foster carers based in Medway.

e Please note, the number of looked after children for each quarter represents a snapshot of the
number of children designated as looked after at the end of each quarter, it is not the total
number of looked after children during the period. Therefore although the number of Kent
looked after children has increased by 101 since the beginning of the year, there could have
been more during the period.

e The increase in Kent looked after children has placed additional pressure on the fostering
service and 16+ services budget.

Page 29



1.5.1

Number of Client Weeks of Foster Care provided by KCC.:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Actual Actual Actual
e | Crant [ BUeeled | cuant | Pioeled | i | Bgete
Weeks Weeks Weeks

Apr - Jun 12,427 12,711 11,576 11,166 11,249 11,695 11,532

Jul - Sep 12,427 10,781 11,576 11,735 11,249 11,880 11,532

Oct - Dec 12,427 9,716 11,576 11,147 11,249 11,518 11,532

Jan - Mar 12,427 10,918 11,576 10,493 11,249 11,969 11,532

49,709 44,129 46,304 44,541 44,996 47,062 46,128
Number of Client Weeks of Foster Care provided by KCC
13,000
12,500 4 - - \
12,000 \ \ ®
Y -
11,500 - O O ]
11,000
10,500 - \/
10,000 -
9,500 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtrd Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtrd Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4
07-08 07-08 07-08 07-08 08-09 08-09 08-09 08-09 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 10-11 10-11 10-11 10-11
—— Budgeted level —&— actual client weeks
Comments:

The actual number of client weeks is based on the numbers of known clients at a particular
point in time.

The budgeted level has been calculated by dividing the 2009-10 budget for all in-house
fostering (including 16+) by the 2008-09 average weekly cost adjusted for inflation. The
average weekly cost is also an estimate based on financial information and estimates of the
number of client weeks.

It should be noted that the data relating to 2007-08 was manually produced due to problems
with the IT system and should be treated with some caution.

The overall net pressure on in-house fostering at the end of 2009-10 was £1,275k, combining
both 16+ and fostering service forecasts and corresponds with activity levels.

It must be noted there is a move to increase the number of in-house foster carers to reduce
the dependence on more costly independent sector provision. This has not happened as
quickly as hoped due to delays in the recruitment of relevant staff. However the number of in-
house foster carers has now started to increase, but the dependence on independent sector
provision is unlikely to reduce in the short term due to the rise in the overall number of
fostering placements and the need to maintain placement stability.

Page 30




1.5.2

Number of Client Weeks of Independent Foster Care:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

Actual Actual Actual

Bacere | Cront | Pioeled | Gront | BUeeed | crant | Pisetr

Weeks Weeks Weeks
Apr - Jun 289 435 372 737 369 935 900
Jul - Sep 289 712 372 890 369 1,032 900
Oct - Dec 289 540 372 831 369 1,075 900
Jan - Mar 289 752 372 823 369 1,126 900
1,156 2,439 1,488 3,281 1,476 4,168 3,600

1,200

900

600

400
300
200

Number of Client Weeks of Independent Foster Care

1,100 -
1,000 -

800 -
700

500 -

// B—8—m
/\
/Y /
74..../IIII—III-

Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtrd Qir1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4  Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3  Qtr4 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4
07-08 07-08 07-08 07-08 08-09 08-09 08-09 08-09 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 10-11 10-11 10-11 10-11

—— Budgeted level —®— actual client weeks

Comments:

e The actual number of client weeks is based on the numbers of known clients at a particular

point in time.

e The budgeted level has been calculated by dividing the 2009-10 budget by the 2008-09
average weekly cost adjusted for inflation. The average weekly cost is also an estimate based
on financial information and estimates of the number of client weeks and may be subject to

change.

¢ The number of independent sector fostering placements has increased steeply during 2009-10
with a 37% increase in the number of weeks purchased in the fourth quarter of 2009-10
compared with the final quarter of the previous year. The overspend on independent sector

fostering payments is £2,754k combining both 16+ and fostering service forecasts.

e The activity relating to Independent Sector Provision is expected to reduce once the number
and skill level of in-house foster carers has begun to increase. However this is unlikely to
happen in the short term due to the rise in the overall number of fostering placements and the

need to maintain placement stability.

Page 31




1.6

Numbers of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC):

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
Under 18 | Over1s = 1o | yrger1s over1s  T°8 | ynger18  Over1s  _rotal

Clients Clients Clients
April 256 471 727 302 475 777 383 477 860
May 254 471 725 304 471 775 384 469 853
June 249 469 718 301 462 763 391 479 870
July 252 458 710 302 457 759 418 468 886
August 276 458 734 310 441 751 419 474 893
September 279 465 744 306 459 765 411 459 870
October 276 467 743 340 449 789 403 458 861
November 278 470 748 339 428 767 400 467 867
December 295 471 766 370 443 813 347 507 854
January 288 487 775 354 480 834 364 504 868
February 274 488 762 382 467 849 355 504 859
March 300 490 790 379 464 843 338 519 857
000 Numbers of Asylum Seekers
1111111
700
600 -
500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -
100 A

07 - - - - - -
8533588888883 388323838288888¢85325828888%
< S < s < =
M Unaccompanied Minors Over 18 B Unaccompanied Minors Under 18

Comment:

Client numbers have risen as a result of higher referrals and are higher than the projected
number, which for 2009-10 is an average of 820 clients per month (approx 6% higher). It is
unclear at this time whether this trend will continue.

The age profile suggests the number of over 18s is increasing and it is this service which is
experiencing the shortfall of funding. In addition the age profile of the under 18 children has
reduced, with significantly higher numbers being placed in foster care.

The data recorded above will include some referrals for which the assessments are not yet
complete or are being challenged. These clients are initially recorded as having the Date of
Birth that they claim but once their assessment has been completed, or when successfully
appealed, their category may change.

Page 32




1.7

Numbers of Asylum Seeker referrals compared with the number assessed as qualifying for
on-going support from Service for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (SUASC) ie

new clients:
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
No. of No. % No. of No. % No. of No. % No. of No. %
referrals | assessed referrals | assessed referrals | assessed referrals . assessed
as new as new as new as new
client client client client
April 27 12 44% 26 12 46% 48 23 48% 42 26 62%
May 25 14 56% 28 12 43% 49 27 55% 31 15 48%
June 36 17 47% 27 15 56% 42 21 50% 34 16 47%
July 32 12 38% 22 9 41% 43 21 49% 63 28 44%
August 45 18 40% 49 17 35% 62 29 47% 51 18 35%
Sept 38 15 39% 44 17 39% 59 31 53% 26 10 38%
Oct 57 16 28% 69 27 39% 77 27 35% 27 14 52%
Nov 57 17 30% 68 35 51% 50 32 64% 37 13 35%
Dec 47 10 21% 72 18 25% 41 24 59% 16 7 44%,
Jan 44 16 36% 80 16 20% 48 17 35% 34 20 59%
Feb 21 8 38% 94 27 29% 49 24 49% 13 5 38%
March 27 9 33% 37 5 14% 31 16 52% 16 7 44%
456 164 36% 616 210 34% 599 292 49% 390 179 46%
Number of SUASC referrals compared to those assessed as receiving ongoing
support
100
o /!
80
el A
60 ’\' )
% N / \
40
30 /‘\v/\’/ ‘\\ /\‘ A 2
~~ Vaaa V| > \/ \/‘
20 A
10 - N\g
O <D‘>~‘0)‘>~‘O""‘"“‘>‘0‘C‘.D‘l\‘l\‘>-‘®‘>~‘0""’“" > o c _c:‘uo‘oo‘>-‘q>‘>~‘m“—"<—' > o c .D‘O)‘O’)‘>-‘®‘>~‘O""’““‘>‘O‘C‘_D‘O
8532862388833 2853:2§S2883e338532§8283233853283283e3
< S < S < S < =
—&— No of referrals No assessed as new client
Comments:

The number of referrals has fluctuated during the year from 63 in July to 13 in February reflecting
the very volatile nature of this budget.

The number of applicants assessed as new clients during January has been restated due to two
children who were previously thought to be over 18.

The number of referrals has been lower since September which coincides with the French
Government’s action to clear asylum seeker camps around Calais.

The number of referrals has a knock on effect on the number assessed as new clients. The
budgeted level is based on the assumption 50% of the referrals will be assessed as a new client.
The number assessed as a new client has been consistently higher than the budgeted level, of 15
new clients a month, for the past 18 months however this trend reversed from September and has
remained below the budgeted level in every month since except for January.

Page 33




KENT ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES DIRECTORATE

The affordable levels included for 2010-11 are based on the approved budget, however KASS will
be reviewing the split of their budget across service groups in light of the outturn and any changes
will be requested in the first full monitoring report for 2010-11, to be reported to Cabinet in
September. The affordable levels of activity will therefore change as a result of this exercise.

2.1.1 Number of client weeks of older people permanent P&V residential care provided
compared with affordable level:
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Client Weeks Client Weeks Client Weeks
Affordable of older Affordable of older Affordable of older Affordable
Level people Level people Level people Level
(Client permanent (Client permanent (Client permanent (Client
Weeks) P&V Weeks) P&V Weeks) P&V Weeks)
residential residential residential
care provided care provided care provided
April 13,476 13,181 13,244 13,142 13,076 13,335
May 13,789 13,897 13,974 13,867 13,451 13,679
June 13,495 13,084 13,160 13,059 13,050 13,204
July 14,502 13,581 13,909 13,802 13,443 13,543
August 14,520 13,585 13,809 13,703 13,707 13,475
September 14,316 13,491 13,264 13,162 12,784 13,007
October 14,069 13,326 13,043 12,943 12,768 13,340
November 13,273 12,941 12,716 12,618 13,333 12,875
December 12,728 12,676 12,805 12,707 13,429 13,206
January 13,568 13,073 12,784 12,685 13,107 13,140
February 14,131 13,338 12,810 12,712 12,082 11,899
March 13,680 13,114 13,275 13,172 13,338 12,987
TOTAL 169,925 165,546 159,287 158,793 157,572 157,568 157,690
Client Weeks of Older People Permanent P&V Residential Care
15,000
14,500 Y
14,000 -
13,500 -
13,000 -
12,500 -
12,000
11'500 ~ ‘r\ ‘r\ ‘r\ ‘r\ ‘co ‘co ‘co ‘co ‘co ‘co ‘m ‘oﬁ ‘oﬁ ‘cn ‘oﬁ ‘cn ‘o ‘o ‘o ‘o ‘o ‘o “-
‘ —l— Affordable Level (Client Weeks) —&— Client Weeks provided ‘
Comments:

The above graph reflects the number of client weeks of service provided as this has a greater

influence on cost than the actual number of clients. The actual number of clients in older people
permanent P&V residential care at the end of 2007-08 was 2,917 and at the end of March 2009 it
was 2,832. In December, the number was 2,774 and the numbers continued to decrease to 2,751 in

March.

The outturn position is 157,568 weeks of care against an affordable level of 157,572, a difference of

four weeks. Using the actual unit cost of £384.59, this reduced level of activity generated an
underspend of £2k.

Page 34




2.1.2 Average gross cost per client week of older people permanent P&V residential care
compared with affordable level:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable| Average |Affordable| Average |Affordable| Average Affordable
Level Gross Cost Level Gross Cost Level Gross Cost Level
(Cost per | per Client | (Cost per | per Client | (Cost per | per Client | (Cost per
Week) Week Week) Week Week) Week Week)
April 362.60 361.41 371.60 371.54 383.52 385.90 386.54
May 362.60 361.90 371.60 372.28 383.52 385.78 386.54
June 362.60 362.31 371.60 372.27 383.52 385.47 386.54
July 362.60 362.56 371.60 372.94 383.52 385.43 386.54
August 362.60 361.50 371.60 373.84 383.52 385.44 386.54
September 362.60 361.50 371.60 373.78 383.52 385.42 386.54
October 362.60 362.27 371.60 373.91 383.52 385.39 386.54
November 362.60 361.50 371.60 374.01 383.52 385.79 386.54
December 362.60 362.27 371.60 374.22 383.52 385.76 386.54
January 362.60 362.56 371.60 374.61 383.52 385.20 386.54
February 362.60 362.31 371.60 373.78 383.52 385.01 386.54
March 362.60 361.90 371.60 373.42 383.52 384.59 386.54
Older People Permanent P&V Residential Care - Unit Cost per Client Week
390.0
380.0 -
370.0
360.0
350.0 .
5 5 3 8 % 8 & 5 32 8 8§ 3 & 5 38 8 3% &8 5 38 8 3 8
‘ —— Affordable Level (cost per client week) = —@— Average Gross Cost per Client Week
Comments:

e The increase in unit cost over the last year is higher than inflation, but reflects the increasing
proportion of clients with dementia.

e The unit cost of £384.59 is higher than the affordable cost of £383.52 and this difference of
+£1.07 added £169k to the outturn position when multiplied by the affordable weeks.

Page 35



2.1.3 Total of All Delayed Transfers from hospital compared with those which are KASS
responsibility:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
ALL KASS ALL KASS ALL KASS
responsibility responsibility responsibility
April 332 47 290 61 269 65
May 455 61 366 82 203 39
June 351 39 283 59 199 37
July 395 71 294 62 324 81
August 517 97 247 48 246 80
September 392 51 263 34 309 73
October 372 76 300 51 386 90
November 520 93 255 58 232 68
December 365 62 224 61 278 78
January 437 86 267 67 258 65
February 356 89 282 73 204 51
March 323 63 295 83 221 59

Total number of delayed transfers from hospital and number of delayed transfers
which are responsibility of KASS

600

500 +

400 1

300

200 — ]
o+ttt
N O N N NN NN DN 0 00 0 00 W W W W W W W O O W W OO oO”ZoH”oO”H”Z O O O
@ YIYIIYIYPIIPIIIIIIYIIIIYIIYIIYIIPLIIIYRIIRIIIIPQIYPQYQYPQYQ T T T
5 > c 5 O a9 B > 0o c a9 5 5 > c 35 0 9 B =2 0 . c a9 5 5 > c 35 0O B > o0 . c a9 =
Qo =] |31 T o =] o T Qo =] o ©
£ 235280388 P=<2352803288¢P=<223528§028S8¢-=

delayed transfers from hospital - ALL —®— delayed transfers from hospital - KCC
Comments:

e The Delayed Transfers of Care (DTCs) show the numbers of people whose movement from an
acute hospital has been delayed. Typically this may be because they are waiting for an
assessment to be completed, they are choosing a residential or nursing home placement, or
waiting for a vacancy to become available. This figure shows all delays, but those attributable to
Adult Social Services, and therefore subject to the reimbursement regime, are a minority. There
are many reasons for fluctuations in the number of DTCs which result from the interaction of
various different factors within a highly complex system across both Health and Social Care.

e This activity information is obtained from a national database based on data provided by the
PCTs.

Page 36



2.21

Number of client weeks of older people nursing care provided compared with affordable

level:
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable| Client Weeks | Affordable| Client Weeks | Affordable| Client Weeks | Affordable
Level |of older people| Level of older people Level of older people Level
(Client nursing care (Client nursing care (Client nursing care (Client
Weeks) provided Weeks) provided Weeks) provided Weeks)
April 6,062 6,137 6,263 6,191 6,127 6,452
May 6,170 6,357 6,505 6,413 6,408 6,616
June 6,120 6,233 6,518 6,288 6,279 6,386
July 7,020 6,432 6,616 6,489 6,671 6,548
August 7,436 6,586 6,525 6,644 6,841 6,514
September 6,546 6,124 5,816 6,178 6,680 6,288
October 6,538 6,121 6,561 6,175 6,741 6,446
November 6,298 6,009 6,412 6,062 6,637 6,222
December 6,243 5,984 6,509 6,037 6,952 6,380
January 6,083 5,921 6,580 5,973 6,824 6,349
February 6,008 5,940 6,077 5,992 6,231 5,752
March 6,941 6,507 5,985 6,566 6,601 6,277
TOTAL 74,707 77,463 74,351 76,367 75,008 78,992 76,230
Client Weeks of Older People Nursing Care
7,500
7,000 A
6,500 -
6,000 4 y v/.
5’500 N~ ‘v\ ‘r\ ‘v\ ‘r\ ‘oo ‘oo ‘oo ‘oo ‘oo ‘oo ‘m ‘m ‘c: ‘c: ‘c': ‘c: ‘o ‘o ‘o ‘o ‘o ‘o ‘\—
—— Affordable Level (Client Weeks) —e— Client Weeks provided ‘
Comment:

The above graph reflects the number of client weeks of service provided as this has a greater
influence on cost than the actual number of clients. The actual number of clients in older people
nursing care at the end of 2007-08 was 1,386, at the end of March 2009 it had decreased to
1,332, and in December it had increased slightly to 1,386, but decreased again to 1,374 in March.

The outturn position is 78,992 weeks of care against an affordable level of 75,008, a difference of
3,984 weeks. Using the actual unit cost of £469.80, this additional activity added £1,872k to the
outturn position.

There are always pressures in permanent nursing care which may occur for many reasons.
Increasingly, older people are entering nursing care only when other ways of support have been
explored. This means that the most dependent are those that enter nursing care and consequently
are more likely to have dementia. In addition, there will always be pressures which the directorate
face, for example the knock on effect of minimising delayed transfers of care. Demographic
changes — increasing numbers of older people with long term illnesses — also means that there is
an underlying trend of growing numbers of people needing nursing care.

Page 37




2.2.2 Average gross cost per client week of older people nursing care compared with affordable

level:
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable | Average |Affordable| Average |Affordable| Average | Affordable
Level |Gross Cost| Level Gross Cost Level Gross Cost Level
(Cost per | per Client | (Cost per | per Client | (Cost per | per Client | (Cost per
Week) Week Week) Week Week) Week Week)
April 448.98 454.50 453.77 449.18 468.95 469.15 469.71
May 448.98 454.50 453.77 450.49 468.95 468.95 469.71
June 448.98 454,50 453.77 453.86 468.95 470.37 469.71
July 448.98 454.50 453.77 452.61 468.95 469.84 469.71
August 448.98 454.40 453.77 453.93 468.95 469.82 469.71
September 448.98 454.40 453.77 453.42 468.95 468.88 469.71
October 448.98 456.60 453.77 453.68 468.95 468.04 469.71
November 448.98 448.88 453.77 453.92 468.95 468.69 469.71
December 448.98 445.16 453.77 454,13 468.95 469.67 469.71
January 448.98 445.22 453.77 453.33 468.95 469.42 469.71
February 448.98 448.17 453.77 453.02 468.95 469.55 469.71
March 448.98 449.00 453.77 454.90 468.95 469.80 469.71
Older People in Nursing Care - Unit Cost per Client Week
475
470 A
465 -
460
455 ’WA
450 -
445 >-<
440 -
—— Affordable Level (cost per client week) = —&— Average Gross Cost per Client Week
Comments:

o As with residential care, the unit cost for nursing care will be affected by the increasing

proportion of older people with dementia who need more specialist and expensive care

The unit cost of £469.80 is slightly above the affordable cost of £468.95 but does fluctuate
with the differing placements within it (non OPMH, OPMH and non permanent). The
difference in unit cost of £0.85 caused an overspend of £63k when multiplied by the
affordable weeks.

Page 38




2.31

Elderly domiciliary care — numbers of clients and hours provided in the independent

sector:
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable| hours |number|Affordable| hours |number|Affordable, hours |number|Affordable
level provided of level provided of level provided of level
(hours) clients | (hours) clients | (hours) clients | (hours)
April 208,524 | 7,179 217,090 218,929 | 6,700 | 208,869 205,312 6,423 201,963
May 216,477 | 7,180 219,480 221,725 | 6,635 211,169 210,844 6,386 209,137
June 202,542 | 7,180 220,237 222,088 | 6,696 | 211,897 208,945 6,422| 201,836
July 213,246 | 7,180 225,841 212,610 | 6,531 217,289 210,591 6,424 209,006
August 213,246 | 7,079 213,436 222,273 | 6,404 | 205,354 211,214 6,443 208,941
Sept 209,504 | 7,054 220,644 214,904 | 6,335 | 212,289 205,238 6,465 201,646
Oct 218,397 | 6,912 225,012 209,336 | 6,522 | 216,491 208,051 6,396/ 208,810
Nov 206,465 | 6,866 208,175 212,778 | 6,512 | 200,292 205,806 6,403 201,520
Dec 223,696 | 6,696 226,319 211,189 | 6,506 | 217,749 207,771 6,385 208,680
Jan 220,313 | 6,782 224,175 213,424 | 6,499 | 215,686 212,754 6,192 208,614
Feb 212,499 | 6,746 220,135 212,395 | 6,478 | 211,799 208,805 6,246 186,892
March 215,865 | 6,739 221,875 215,488 | 6,490 | 213,474 210,507 6,227| 208,487
TOTAL (2,610,972 | 2,560,774 2,642,419 | 2,587,139 2,542,358 |2,505,838 2,455,532
Elderly Domiciliary Care - number of clients
7300
7100
6900 -
6700 +
6500 +
6300 +
6100 | R — I e S
‘ numbers of domiciliary care clients ‘
Elderly Domiciliary Care - number of hours provided
240000
230000 +
220000 /’\‘
210000 Wx v
200000 +
190000 i
180000 — —t :F:
| —®— Affordable Level (hours) —#— hours provided |
Comments:

Figures exclude services commissioned from the Kent HomeCare Service.
At outturn, 2,505,838 hours of care had been delivered against an affordable level of 2,542,358, a

difference of 36,520 hours. Using the actual unit cost of £15.491 this reduction in activity generated
an underspend of £566k.

The number of people receiving domiciliary care has decreased since 2008/09, and we would not

expect the number of domiciliary care clients to be significantly increasing for several reasons. Firstly,
the success of preventative services such as intermediate care, rapid response and ongoing service
developments with the voluntary sector and other organisations mean that we continue to prevent
people from needing ‘mainstream’ domiciliap/a&%%gThe LAA target focuses on how we can ensure



that people are helped back to their own homes successfully with very minimal support. In the
voluntary sector, people can access services, very often involving social inclusion (e.g. luncheon
clubs and other social activities), without having to undergo a full care management assessment.
Secondly, public health campaigns and social marketing aimed at improving people’s health is already
starting to result in healthier older people. Increase in the use of Telecare and Telehealth similarly
reduces the need for domiciliary care, and it is possible that this trend will continue despite the growth
in numbers of older people. Thirdly, in Kent, as well as nationwide, the take up of direct payments by
older people, has for the first time, reached similar levels as people with physical disabilities.

e With the implementation of Self directed support within the Directorate and a key emphasis on
enablement services, which is a short term but intensive service, we would expect the average hours
per person to increase and this is starting to happen.

2.3.2 Average gross cost per hour of older people domiciliary care compared with affordable

level:
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable| Average | Affordable | Average |Affordable | Average | Affordable
Level Gross Cost Level Gross Cost Level Gross Cost Level
(Cost per | per Hour | (Costper | perHour | (Costper | per Hour | (Cost per
Hour) Hour) Hour) Hour)
April 14.50 14.54 14.75 14.77 15.045 15.44 15.56
May 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.76 15.045 15.35 15.56
June 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.79 15.045 15.46 15.56
July 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.81 15.045 15.48 15.56
August 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.82 15.045 15.48 15.56
September 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.83 15.045 15.47 15.56
October 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.82 15.045 15.49 15.56
November 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.80 15.045 15.51 15.56
December 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.78 15.045 15.49 15.56
January 14.50 14.55 14.75 14.80 15.045 15.52 15.56
February 14.50 14.54 14.75 14.79 15.045 15.50 15.56
March 14.50 14.60 14.75 14.77 15.045 15.49 15.56
Elderly Domiciliary Care - unit cost per hour
15.75
15.50 M Myw
15.25
15.00 +
14.75 +
14.50 -
14.25 : e e e e e — — —
‘+Affordab|e Level (cost per hour) —@— Average Gross Cost per hour ‘
Comments:

e Average unit cost per week has increased more than inflation and is likely to reflect the same issues
outlined above concerning more intense packages and higher levels of need.

e The actual unit cost of £15.491 is slightly higher than the affordable cost of £15.045 and this
difference of £0.446 gave an overspend of £1,136k when multiplied by the affordable hours.

Page 40




2.4.1 Number of client weeks of learning difficulties residential care provided compared with
affordable level (non preserved rights clients):

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable | Client Weeks | Affordable | Client Weeks | Affordable | Client Weeks | Affordable
Level of LD Level of LD Level of LD Level
(Client residential (Client residential (Client residential (Client
Weeks) |care provided| Weeks) |care provided| Weeks) |care provided| Weeks)
April 2,648 2,707 2,765 2,851 2,804 3,445
May 2,648 2,730 2,815 2,875 2,861 3,393
June 2,722 2,647 2,740 2,787 2,772 3,318
July 2,897 2,572 2,850 2,708 2,792 3,215
August 2,725 2,502 2,821 2,635 3,091 3,086
September 2,952 2,611 2,803 2,750 2,640 2,936
October 2,706 2,483 2,870 2,615 2,818 2,755
November 3,081 2,646 2,906 2,786 2,877 2,555
December 2,633 2,440 2,923 2,569 2,696 2,323
January 3,004 2,602 2,842 2,740 3,238 2,066
February 2,737 2,487 2,711 2,619 2,497 1,807
March 2,941 2,584 2,565 2,721 2,576 1,497
TOTAL 30,984 33,695 31,011 33,611 32,656 33,662 32,396
5600 Client Weeks of Learning Difficulties Residential Care
3,400 rﬁ\\
3,200
3‘000 * ﬂ A /
2,800 \ /
2,600
2,400
2,200 ‘
2,000 \.
1,800 \ﬁ
1,600
w+—_—— L
—l— Affordable Level (Client Weeks) —&— Client Weeks provided
Comments:

e The above graph reflects the number of client weeks of service provided as this has a greater
influence on cost than the actual number of clients. The actual number of clients in LD residential
care at the end of 2007-08 was 633, at the end of 2008-09 it was 640 (with some much higher
numbers during the year) and at the end of March 2010, 632.

e The outturn is 33,662 weeks of care against an affordable level of 32,656, a difference of 1,006
weeks. Using the actual unit cost of £1,145.12 this additional activity added £1,153k to the outturn
position.

Page 41



2.4.2 Average gross cost per client week of Learning Difficulties residential care compared with

affordable level (non preserved rights clients):

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable | Average |Affordable| Average |Affordable| Average | Affordable
Level |Gross Cost] Level |Gross Cost| Level |Gross Cost| Level
(Cost per | per Client | (Cost per | per Client | (Cost per | per Client | (Cost per
Week) Week Week) Week Week) Week Week)
April 1,018.00 1,062.00 | 1,060.70 1,041.82 | 1,110.15 1,119.42 | 1,141.54
May 1,018.00 1,062.00 | 1,060.70 1,064.19 | 1,110.15 1,131.28 | 1,141.54
June 1,018.00 1,062.00 | 1,060.70 1,066.49 | 1,110.15 1,131.43 | 1,141.54
July 1,018.00 1,072.00 | 1,060.70 1,070.50 | 1,110.15 1,125.65 | 1,141.54
August 1,018.00 1,028.00 | 1,060.70 1,076.27 | 1,110.15 1,122.81 1,141.54
September | 1,018.00 1,043.00 | 1,060.70 1,071.59 | 1,110.15 1,127.79 | 1,141.54
October 1,018.00 1,048.00 | 1,060.70 1,070.02 | 1,110.15 1,130.07 | 1,141.54
November | 1,018.00 1,045.00 | 1,060.70 1,068.95 | 1,110.15 1,137.95 | 1,141.54
December | 1,018.00 1,050.00 | 1,060.70 1,067.59 | 1,110.15 1,137.28 | 1,141.54
January 1,018.00 1,053.00 | 1,060.70 1,073.71 | 1,110.15 1,137.41 1,141.54
February 1,018.00 1,054.00 | 1,060.70 1,074.67 | 1,110.15 1,142.82 | 1,141.54
March 1,018.00 1,058.00 | 1,060.70 1,089.10 | 1,110.15 1,145.12 | 1,141.54
Learning Difficulties Residential Care - Unit Cost per Client Week
1,160
1,140 /_W&.:ﬁl
1,120
1,100 ///!
1,080
1,060 { =@ A
1,040 -
1,020 -
1,000 ‘ ‘
—— Affordable Level (cost per client week) —&— Average Gross Cost per Client Week
Comments:

Clients being placed in residential care are those with very complex and individual needs which
makes it difficult for them to remain in the community, in supported accommodation/supporting living
arrangements, or receiving a domiciliary care package. These are therefore placements which
attract a very high cost, with the average now being over £1,100 per week. It is expected that clients
with less complex needs, and therefore less cost, can transfer from residential into supported living
arrangements. This would mean that the average cost per week would increase over time as the
remaining clients in residential care would be those with very high costs — some of whom can cost
up to £2,000 per week. In addition, no two placements are alike — the needs of people with learning
disabilities are unique and consequently, it is common for average unit costs to increase or decrease
significantly on the basis of one or two cases.

The unit cost of £1,145.12 is higher than the affordable cost of £1,110.15 and this difference of
£34.97 added £1,142k to the outturn position when multiplied by the affordable weeks.

Page 42




2.51

compared with affordable level:

Number of client weeks of learning difficulties supported accommodation provided

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable Client Affordable [Client Weeks| Affordable Client Affordable
Level Weeks Level of LD Level Weeks Level
(Client of LD (Client supported (Client of LD (Client
Weeks) supported Weeks) accommo- Weeks) supported Weeks)
accommo- dation accommo-
dation provided dation
provided provided
April 960 865 1,221 1,192 1,269
May 1,014 747 1,290 1,311 1,331
June 1,003 782 1,276 1,344 1,426
July 1,058 939 1,346 1,333 1,450
August 1,081 1,087 1,375 1,391 1,551
September 1,067 803 1,357 1,421 1,599
October 1,125 1,039 1,431 1,412 1,630
November 1,110 1,006 1,412 1,340 1,715
December 1,169 1,079 1,487 1,405 1,749
January 1,191 1,016 1,515 1,163 1,850
February 1,174 1,151 1,493 1,021 1,843
March 1,231 1,125 1,567 1,105 1,846
TOTAL 7,618 11,156 13,183 11,639 16,770 15,438 19,259
Client Weeks of Learning Difficulties Supported Accommodation
1,900
1,800 -
1,700 -
1,600
1,500
1,400 - /1
1,300
1,200 \
1,100 1 \/0
1,000 -
900
800 ’\./,/ %
700 00‘00‘00‘00‘00‘00‘00‘CD‘OO‘CD‘CD‘O‘)‘CD‘CD‘CD‘CD‘CD‘CD‘O?‘CD‘CD‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘O‘
58532585858 8228853338388538285353858:£858¢83¢%
‘ —— Affordable Level (Client Weeks) —&— Client Weeks provided
Comments:

The above graph reflects the number of client weeks of service. The actual number of clients in LD

supported accommodation at the end of 2007-08 was 193 and at the end of March 2009 it was 233.
As at the end of March 2010, the numbers had increased to 309.

The outturn position is 15,438 weeks of care against an affordable level of 16,770, a difference of

1,332 weeks. Using the final unit cost of £603.08 this reduction in activity provided a saving of

£804k.
Like residential care for people with a learning disability, every case is unique and varies in cost,

depending on the individual circumstances. Although the quality of life will be better for these people,
it is not always significantly cheaper. The focus to enable as many people as possible to move from
residential care into supported accommodation means that increasingly complex and unique cases
will be successfully supported to live independently.

Page 43




2.5.2 Average gross cost per client week of Learning Difficulties supported accommodation
compared with affordable level (non preserved rights clients):

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Affordable Average Affordable Average Affordable Average Affordable
Level Gross Cost Level Gross Cost Level Gross Cost Level
(Cost per per Client (Cost per per Client (Cost per per Client (Cost per
Week) Week Week) Week Week) Week Week)
April 515.41 519.60 544 .31 558.65 632.92
May 515.41 519.40 544.31 564.49 632.92
June 515.41 511.10 544 .31 577.33 632.92
July 515.41 522.30 544.31 580.27 632.92
August 515.41 521.40 544.31 581.76 632.92
September 515.41 493.33 544.31 583.26 632.92
October 515.41 491.85 544.31 572.59 632.92
November 515.41 491.47 544.31 574.24 632.92
December 515.41 490.83 544.31 566.87 632.92
January 515.41 489.75 544.31 581.53 632.92
February 515.41 488.90 544 .31 595.89 632.92
March 409.31 406.18 515.41 487.60 544.31 603.08 632.92
560 Learning Difficulties Supported Accommodation - Unit Cost per Client Week
640
620 ,
600 -
580 - N
560
540
520 -
500 -
480
460 /
440 -
420 -
400 e 2 e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s s . s . s . s . s s o -
§2533283388882853258588888%28333288:85¢4§E
—&— Affordable Level (cost per client week) —— Average Gross Cost per Client Week
Comments:

e The actual unit cost of £603.08 is lower than the affordable cost of £544.31 and this difference of
£58.77 generated an overspend of £986k when multiplied by the affordable weeks.

¢ The costs associated with these placements will vary depending on the complexity of each case and

the type of support required in each placement. This varies enormously between a domiciliary type
support to life skills and daily living support.

Page 44



2.6

Direct Payments — Number of Adult Social Services Clients receiving Direct Payments:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
CSCI |Affordable Adult CSCI |Affordable| Adult |Affordable Adult Affordable
Target Level Clients |Target| Level Clients Level Clients Level
receiving receiving receiving
Direct Direct Direct
Payments Payments Payments
April 1,406 1,259 1,390 | 1,617 1,635 1,625 2,400 2,065 2,637
May 1,424 1,259 1,407 | 1,634 1,564 1,639 2,447 2,124 2,661
June 1,442 1,259 1,434 1,650 1,593 1,689 2,470 2179 2,685
July 1,460 1,259 1,434 | 1,667 1,622 1,725 2,493 2,248 2,709
Aug 1,478 1,299 1,444 11,683 1,651 1,802 2,516 2,295 2,733
Sept 1,496 1,299 1,454 1,700 1,681 1,832 2,540 2,375 2,757
Oct 1,514 1,299 1,467 |1,717 1,710 1,880 2,563 2,411 2,780
Nov 1,532 1,299 1,472 |1,734 1,740 1,899 2,586 2,470 2,804
Dec 1,549 1,299 1,491 1,750 1,769 1,991 2,609 2,515 2,828
Jan 1,566 1,299 1,522 | 1,767 1,799 2,108 2,633 2,552 2,852
Feb 1,583 1,299 1,515 | 1,783 1,828 2,231 2,656 2,582 2,876
March | 1,600 1,299 1,615 | 1,800 1,857 2,342 2,679 2,613 2,900
Number of Adult Clients receiving Direct Payments
3,200
3,000 -
2,800 -
2,600 -
2,400
2,200 A /v
2,000 v
1,800 -
1,600 -
1,400 -
1,200
1,000 -
800,\,\’\\,\,\w\wm\wm\wm\mm\m‘m\mo\ooo\oo_
CSCl target —#— Affordable level —&— Adult Clients receiving direct payments
Comments:

e From April 2008, the national measure for direct payments counted the permanent placements and
the number of one-off payments within the year. The position reported for March 2009 represented
the total activity for 2008-09 i.e. of the 2,342 adult clients reported as receiving a direct payment,
2,055 were in receipt of ongoing payments and 287 were clients that had received one-off payments
at some point throughout the year. From April 2009, we have gone back to again reporting only the
permanent placements in line with the requirements for Core Monitoring. For purposes of comparison,
the ongoing placements as at March were 2,055, as at March 2010 this had increased to 2,613. The
previously reported affordable level of 3,042 for March 2010 assumed 2,679 on-going placements and
363 one-off payments. In order to provide a direct comparison with the actual activity for 2009-10, the
affordable figures in the graph and table above have been revised to show the monthly trend of these
on-going figures only, over the year. The actual activity for 2009-10 has also been revised from data
previously reported to take account of changes in operational processes as a result of the
implementation of Self Directed Support which have caused delays in information being provided or
updated on the client activity system. Therefore as at March we were 66 placements below the
affordable level for on-going placements across all client groups.

e From 2009-10, we no longer have a CSCI target for direct payments.
Page 45



2.7

KASS OUTSTANDING DEBT

The outstanding debt as at the end of March was £14.157m compared with January’s figure of
£15.054m (reported to Cabinet in March) excluding any amounts not yet due for payment (as they
are still within the 28 day payment term allowed). Within this figure is £1.643m of sundry debt
compared to £2.521m in January. The amount of sundry can change significantly for large
invoices to health; for example it increased significantly in November and December due to two
large invoices to Health secured through Section 256 agreements, which were then paid in
January. Also within the outstanding debt is £12.514m relating to Social Care (client) debt which is
a small reduction of £0.019m from the last reported position to Cabinet in March. The following
table shows how this breaks down in terms of age and also whether it is secured (i.e. by a legal
charge on the client’'s property) or unsecured, together with how this month compares with
previous months. For most months the debt figures refer to when the four weekly invoice billing
run interfaces with Oracle (the accounting system) rather than the calendar month, as this
provides a more meaningful position for Social Care Client Debt. This therefore means that there
are 13 billing invoice runs during the year. It also means that as the Directorate moved onto the
new Client Billing system in October 2008, the balance will differ from that reported by Corporate
Exchequer who report on a calendar month basis, apart from the period November 2008 to March
2009, when the figures are based on calendar months, as provided by Corporate Exchequer,
because reports at that time were not aligned with the four weekly billing runs. From April 2009
the debt figures revert back to being on a four weekly basis to coincide with invoice billing runs.
The age of debt cannot be completed for the months between November 2008 and March 2009
as the switch to Client Billing meant that all debts transferring on to the new system became “new”
for purposes of reporting therefore it was not possible to show ageing until April.

Social Care Debt
Total
Total Due Debt Social Debt
(Social Care & | Sundry | Care Due | Debt Over| Under 6
Debt Month | Sundry Debt) Debt Debt 6 mths mths Secured | Unsecured
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Mar-08 10,727 1,882 8,845 5,268 3,577 3,410 5,435
Apr-08 11,436 2,531 8,905 5,399 3,506 3,468 5,437
May-08 10,833 1,755 9,078 5,457 3,621 3,452 5,626
Jun-08 10,757 1,586 9,171 5,593 3,578 3,464 5,707
Jul-08 12,219 2,599 9,620 5,827 3,793 3,425 6,195
Aug-08 13,445 3,732 9,713 5,902 3,811 3,449 6,264
Sep-08 11,004 1,174 9,830 6,006 3,824 3,716 6,114
Oct-08 * * 10,071 6,223 3,848 3,737 6,334
Nov-08 10,857 1,206 9,651 4,111 5,540
Dec-08 12,486 2,004 10,482 3,742 6,740
Jan-09 11,575 1,517 10,058 3,792 6,266
Feb-09 11,542 1,283 10,259 3,914 6,345
Mar-09 12,276 1,850 10,426 4,100 6,326
Apr-09 17,874 6,056 11,818 6,609 5,209 4,657 7,161
May-09 12,671 1,078 11,593 6,232 5,361 4,387 7,206
Jun-09 12,799 1,221 11,578 6,226 5,352 4,369 7,209
Jul-09 13,862 1,909 11,953 6,367 5,586 4,366 7,587
Aug-09 13,559 1,545 12,014 6,643 5,371 4,481 7,533
Sep-09 14,182 2,024 12,158 7,080 5,078 4,420 7,738
Oct-09 15,017 2,922 12,095 7,367 4,728 4,185 7,910
Nov-09 18,927 6,682 12,245 7,273 4,972 4,386 7,859
Dec-09 18,470 6,175 12,295 7,373 4,922 4,618 7,677
Jan-10 15,054 2,521 12,533 7,121 5,412 4,906 7,627
Feb-10 15,305 2,956 12,349 7,266 5,083 5,128 7,221
Mar-10 14,157 1,643 12,514 7,411 5,103 5,387 7,127

Page 46



* In October 2008, KASS Social Care debt transferred from the COLLECT system to Oracle. The
new reports were not available at this point, hence there is no data available for this period. The
October Social Care debt figures relate to the last four weekly billing run in the old COLLECT system.

KASS Outstanding debt (£000s)

20,000
18,000
16,000
14,000
P 12,000
S 10,000
o
“ 8000
6,000
4,000
2,000
0
o] o] [ce] [ee] [o] [ee] [o] o] [ee] [ce] [o)] (2] [o)] (o] [o2] [e)] [o)] [o)] (o] [o)] (o] [o2] o o o
2 2 ¥ 2 8 9 ¢ § @ % ¢ 9 §& 9 &% § Q9 © 9 Q@ Q Q = T =
= = > c = (®2] o s > (o] c o) = = > c = (®2] o s > (o] c o) =
$ £ 833286285 g8 33278828585 S
‘ O Secured OUnsecured B Sundry Debt ‘
Social Care Debt Age Profile
8,000
7,500 W
7,000 o
6,500 Q\‘_‘/,,/
6,000 —
g 5,500 ,M
S 5,000
g 5
4,500
4,000
3,500 HHI+H
3,000
2,500
[e] e [ce] [ee] o] [ee] [ee] [ee] [e] [ce] D [o2] (o)) [o)] [o)] [o)] [o)] [o)] [o)] [o)] D D o o o
e 2 ¥ % % 9 @ 2 @ @ ¢ ¢ & 9 Q9 9 @ @ 9 & & & 5 T %
= = > c =5 (o)) Q b3 > o [y fe) = = > c =5 (o)) Q - > o c o) =
=22 £ 3352388285228 33 2850288 ¢ 32
—&— Debt Over 6 mths —— Debt Under 6 mths

The age of debt cannot be completed for the months between November 2008 and March 2009 as
the switch to Client Billing meant that all debts transferring on to the new system became “new” for

purposes of reporting therefore it was not possible to show ageing until April (i.e. once these debts
became 6 months old in the new system).

Page 47




ENVIRONMENT & REGENERATION DIRECTORATE

3.1 Waste Tonnage:
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Waste Waste Waste Waste Affordable Affordable
Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage* Level Level
April 69,137 70,458 57,688 58,164 60,957 60,394
May 69,606 65,256 67,452 64,618 71,274 67,096
June 82,244 81,377 80,970 77,842 85,558 80,826
July 63,942 65,618 60,802 59,012 64,248 61,274
August 62,181 64,779 60,575 60,522 63,921 62,842
September 77,871 79,418 74,642 70,367 79,100 73,065
October 61,066 60,949 58,060 55,401 61,465 57,526
November 60,124 58,574 55,789 55,138 59,065 57,252
December 64,734 61,041 58,012 57,615 61,414 59,825
January 60,519 58,515 53,628 49,368 56,798 51,260
February 58,036 56,194 49,376 49,930 52,313 51,845
March 73,171 68,936 76,551 73,959 79,887 76,795
TOTAL 802,631 791,115 753,545 731,936 796,000 760,000
* Note: waste tonnages are subject to slight variations between quarterly reports as figures are
refined and confirmed with Districts
Waste Tonnage
90000
85000
80000
75000
o 70000 |
Q
£
§ 65000
60000
55000
50000 -
45000
April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
2007-08 actual —— 2008-09 actual === 2009-10 actual
------ 2009-10 affordable level - - - ---2010-11 affordable level
Comments:

e The 2009-10 outturn tonnage figures are significantly lower than the budgeted level as has
been reported throughout the year and has resulted in a significant underspend of £4.1m
against the Waste Management budget. The January and February figures are particularly
low but it is thought that this is due to the adverse weather, and there appears to be a
corrective spike in March. The “reducing waste” campaigns may have contributed to the
tonnage reduction, along with the reduction in packaging that some manufacturers have
started to pursue. Waste tonnage continues to be very difficult to predict accurately but we
have built into our 2010-11 budget a 4.5% reduction. This represents a target reduction of
36,000 tonnes, of which we expect around 13,000 tonnes to be a permanent reduction
because of changes of behaviour.

Page 48




3.2

Number and Cost of winter salting runs:

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
Number of Cost of Number of Cost of Number of Cost of No of [Cost of
salting runs salting runs salting runs salting runs salting runs salting runs | salting | salting
runs | runs
Actual : Budget | Actual | Budget | Actual : Budget | Actual | Budget | Actual | Budget | Actual | Budget | Budget | Budget
Level Level Level Level level Level Level Level
£000s | £000s £000s | £000s £000s | £000s £000s
April - - - - 5 1 70 13 - - - - - -
May - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
June - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
July - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Aug - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Sept - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Oct - - - - 1 - 16 - - - - - - -
Nov 3.8 6 270 328 5 6 239 310 1 6 171 273 5 288
Dec 13.0 14 380 428 18 16 458 440 34 17 847 499 14 427
Jan 9.0 14 332 429 23 13 642 414 44 18 1,052 519 19 482
Feb 11.3 18 360 479 21 13 584 388 23 18 622 519 17 461
Mar 9.0 8 332 354 6 11 348 375 9 8 335 315 6 299
TOTAL| 46.1 60 (1,674 2,018 79 60 (2,357 1,940 | 111 67 (3,027 @ 2,125 61 [ 1,957
Number of Winter Salting Runs
45 R
40 \
35 (
30 \
25 4
20
10
5 .
O k N~ N~ N~ N~ N~ o] o] «© o] @© @ (2] [o2] [*2] [*2] [*2] [*2] o o o o o o ~
\ —l— budgeted level —&— actual
Cost of Winter Salting Runs
1,200
1,100
1,000 A
900 /\
800 r \\
» 700
S 600 /’\\ /
& 500 / \
400
300 \ \l
o / \ \ \ /
100
0 n
\ —l— budgeted level —&— actual \
Comments:

The charges for the Winter Maintenance Service reflect two elements of cost: the smaller

element being the variable cost of the salting runs undertaken; the major element of costs,
relating to overheads and mobilisation within the contract, have been apportioned equally over
the 5 months of the normal salting period.

Page 49




e The number of salting runs in December and January was significantly above the expected
levels caused by the bad weather, but this was followed by a return to near the predicted
number of salting runs for February and March. The table above shows outturn costs of
£3,027k compared to a budgeted position of £2,125k i.e. an overspend of £902k. In addition
we incurred £621k of costs relating to snow clearance, giving an overspend of £1,523k on

winter weather.

3.3 Number of insurance claims arising related to Highways with accident dates during these
periods:
2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative
no. of claims no. of claims no. of claims no. of claims no. of claims
April = June 286 335 337 392 394
July — Sept 530 570 636 700 645
Oct — Dec 771 982 947 1,121 1,082
Jan - Mar 1,087 1,581 1,590 2,138 3,070
Cumulative Number of insurance claims relating to Highways
3200
2800 -
2400 -
2000 -
1600
1200
800
400
0
Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4
\+2005-06 —A— 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 =>¢=2009-10
Comments:

Numbers of claims will change continually as new claims are received relating to accidents
occurring in previous quarters. Claimants have 3 years to pursue an injury claim and 6 years
for damage claims. The data previously reported has been updated to reflect claims logged
with Insurance as at 31 March 2010.

The number of claims rose sharply at the end of 2008-09. The particularly adverse weather
conditions and the consequent damage to the highway seems a major factor with this along
with some possible effect from the economic downturn. It has been reported during the year
that the number of claims for the first three quarters of 2009-10 was back below the average
but this figure was likely to rise as claims continue to be submitted for that period. The
outturn figures show that this is in fact the case with a major leap in claims in the 4" quarter
as a result of the adverse weather.

The Insurance section continues to work closely with Highways to try to reduce the number
of successful claims and currently the Authority manages to achieve a rejection rate of claims
where it is considered that we do not have any liability, of about 75%.

A new way of charging KHS for highways related insurance claims is being introduced for
2010-11 in order to more accurately reflect the risk and reward associated with managing
risk within the Highways service.

Page 50




4,

COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

4.1 Number of Adult Education & KEY Enrolments:
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11
ACTUALS TARGET ACTUALS TARGET
Fee Non fee Fee Non Fee Non fee Fee Non fee
earning i earning . TOTAL | earning fee TOTAL | earning | earning i TOTAL | earning | earning | TOTAL
earning
Apr-dun | 2496 3,049 5545 | 4560 2456 7,016 | 3,589 : 3,087 6,676 | 3,661 3,010 | 6,671
Jul-Sept | 16,590 5,360 : 21,950 | 13,377 6,774 . 20,151 | 12,667 3,598 | 16,265 | 12,920 3,508 | 16,428
Oct-Dec| 4,024 3,816 7,840 5,776 3,029 8,805 7,680 2,986 10,666 7,834 2,911 | 10,745
Jan-Mar| 6,039 3,639 9,678 6,689 3,651 @ 10,340 6,474 5,880 @ 12,354 6,603 5,733 | 12,336
TOTAL | 29,149 15,864 | 45,013 | 30,402 15,910 46,312 | 30,410 15,551 @ 45,961 | 31,018 | 15,162 | 46,180
Number of Adult Education (incl KEY) Enrolments
20000
15000
o. .
10000 :
‘..
i |
5000 - -
‘m
2 4
0
08-09 08-09 08-09 08-09 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 10-11 10-11 10-11 10-11
Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4
- & - - Target No. of Enrolments - Fee earning Target No. of Enrolments - Non Fee earning
—&—— Actual No. of Enrolments - Fee earning Actual No. of Enrolments - Non Fee earning
Comments:

The LSC grants depend partly on enrolments to courses and are subject to a contract agreement with
LSC. Students taking courses leading to a qualification are funded via Further Education (FE) grant
based upon the course type and qualification. However, students taking non-vocational courses not
leading to a formal qualification are funded via a block allocation not related to enrolments, referred to
as Adult and Community Learning Grant (ACL) grant. Student enrolments are gathered via a census
at three points during the academic year.

Students pay a fee to contribute towards costs of tuition and examinations. There is a concession on
ACL tuition fees for those aged under 19, those in receipt of benefits and those over 60. FE courses
are free for those aged under 19 or in receipt of benefits undertaking Basic Skills or Skills for Life
Courses.

The enrolment figures reported this year represent actual enrolments in the quarter rather than
enrolments for courses started during the quarter, which is what has previously been reported. This
should resolve the issue of previous quarter's figures constantly changing. The figures also now
include KEY training enrolments as well as Adult Education enrolments.

Total 2009-10 enrolments achieved 99% of the target. Enrolments on fee paying courses have
increased by 4.3% over that achieved last year and are very slightly above target. This small
increase has no impact on the forecast for tuition fee income, as the income due for enrolments
during this period will partly be deferred into the new financial year, based on start and end dates of
courses. Enrolments on courses where fees are not payable are at 98% of target for 2009-10. The
majority of these enrolments are for family learning and skills for life programmes which are wholly
funded by LSC contracts.  Performance on the contracts is regularly monitored to ensure the
services will draw down the total contract values for the academic year. Enrolment patterns are
different this year, due to changes in administrative processes but the service expects to deliver both
contracts to full value by the end of the academic year 2009-10 (July 2010).

The actual number of fee paying enrolments reported for the period April to June 2009 has been

amended from 3,572 to 3,589 to correct an earlier error.
Page 51




4.2

Number of Library DVD/CD rentals together with income raised:

2007-08 2008-09
No of rentals Income (£) No of rentals Income (£)
. revised
Budgeted | revised . Budgeted
target target Actual budget pirr:)éi?r:eed actual target actual Budget actual
April-Jun 185,800/ 136,556| 155,958| 200,000| 146,437| 146,437 152,059 160,162 142,865 130,920
July-Sep 197,300 150,500| 163,230 212,300 161,390| 146,690 159,149 170,180 147,232 140,163
Oct-Dec 186,200, 181,000 151,650 200,400 194,096| 136,698 147,859 150,968 133,505 123,812
Jan—Mar 193,700 186,000 150,929| 208,500| 199,458| 144,136| 147,156 152,249 140,533 126,058
TOTAL 763,000 654,056 621,767 821,200 701,381 573,961 606,223 633,559| 564,135/ 520,953
2009-10 2010-11
No of Income
No of rentals Income (£) rentals ()
Budgeted actual Budget actual Budgeted Budget
target target
April-Jun 166,000| 134,781 135,000f 103,135 131,600 110,400
July-Sep 179,300 154,044| 145,800 127,156 160,200 134,400
Oct-Dec 159,400 136,516| 129,000 111,827 137,200 115,200
Jan—Mar 160,100 137,172| 130,200 112,775 143,000 120,000
TOTAL 664,800 562,513 540,000 454,893 572,000 480,000
Number of DVD/CD Rentals
210,000
200,000
190,000 /\ A
180,000 -
170,000 - //\
160,000 -
150,000 - /\ A
_n
140,000 g \./ N\ o v " =g
130,000
120,000
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
07-08 07-08 07-08 07-08 08-09 0809 08-09 0809 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 10-11 10-11 10-11 10-11
—— Original Target No. of rentals = —#—Revised Target No. of rentals = —&— Actual No. of rentals
Libraries Income from DVD/CD Rentals
220,000
210,000 -
200,000 -
190,000 -
180,000 -
170,000 -
£ 160,000 \
150,000 -
140,000 ,%Avi/:\v.\-//-\ -
130,000 ¢ \P—\
120,000 S A\
110,000 \\‘// Se—e N -
100,000 ‘ ‘
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
07-08 07-08 07-08 07-08 08-09 08-09 08-09 08-09 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10 09-10
—— Original Budgeted level of income = —#—Revised Projected Income  —&— Actual income

Page 52




Comments:

Rentals of audio visual materials (especially videos and CDs) continue to decline as videos become
more obsolete and alternative sources for music become more widely available, which has resulted in a
reduction in AV income of £85k.

Demand for spoken word materials and DVDs has remained reasonably stable.

Research undertaken by the service in order to mitigate this actual and forecast decline, indicates issues
can be increased if loans are offered for longer periods at a reduced fee. The service has also identified
that it has a niche market for certain genres where demand can be sustained and there is little
competition e.g. old TV shows.

The service has reviewed its marketing strategy and set more realistic levels of rentals both in terms of
volume and value. The service reduced expenditure on consumables in 2007-08 to offset the estimated
loss of £120k income from the original budget.

The roll out of the revised strategy in 2007-08 was not as successful as the research indicated and we
fell just over 30,000 issues short of the revised target. The service was able to generate additional
income from other merchandising in libraries not included in the original or revised budget to offset the
£127k shortfall against the revised income budget for 2007-08.

Targets and income budgets set for 2008-09 were based on a continued decline but these were
increased slightly for 2009-10. The service increased income budgets from other merchandising to offset
the loss of income from AV issues. Issues in 2008-09 exceeded the target but income fell short, due to
an increase in the spoken word issues for which no fees are charged and this trend has continued in
2009-10. The correlation between issues and income is subject to an ongoing review and mitigating
action will be taken accordingly.

The actual number of rentals includes those from visits to lending libraries, postal loans and reference
materials.

To enable better comparison of AV issues and income data, the actual income reported for the
previous quarter is changed from the figure previously reported, to reflect the late banking of
income which has taken place during the current quarter but relates to rentals issued within the
previous quarter. The number of rentals reported previously remains unchanged. It is likely that this
adjustment will be required in each report.

Page 53



5. CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORATE
5.1 Capital Receipts — actual receipts compared to budget profile:
2009-10 2010-11
Budget Cumulative | Cumulative | Forecast Budget Cumulative
funding Target Actual receipts funding Target
assumption profile receipts assumption profile
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
April - June 447 47 1,200 36
July - Sept 492 513 1,455 399
Oct - Dec 850 2,577 2,524 1960
Jan - March 2,235 4,643 4,586 3,630
TOTAL 2,194 2,235 4,643 4,583 5,503 3,630
The budget funding assumption figures reflect the proposed 2010-13 capital budget.
The cumulative target profiles for 2009-10 and 2010-11 show totals of £2,235k and £3,630k
respectively. The difference between this and the budget funding assumption is mainly
attributable to timing differences between when the receipts are anticipated to come in and when
the spend in the capital programme will occur.
Across the two years, we require £7.7m and expect to get £8.3m
Capital Receipts - actual receipts compared with Property target and
budget assumption (£000s)
6,000
5,000
4,000 -
3,000 -
2,000
1,000
0
Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr4
—— cumulative target —&—— cumulative actual budget assumption
cumulative Forecast 2010-11 budget assumption - - @ - -2010-11 cumulative target
Comments:

The table below shows a surplus of £4.2m in 2009-10. This is due to receipts coming in during
2009-10 which are not required until future years. Therefore, this is a timing issue rather than a real
overall surplus.

Similarly there is a surplus forecast of £2.8m in 2010-11 for the same reason mentioned in the
paragraph above.

The budget assumption shows a deficit of £0.8m, this is not a real deficit as the funding is reflected
in the actual receipts for 2009-10.

2009-10 2010-11 2010-11

Budget Current

Assumption Forecast

£000 £000 £000

Capital receipt funding per revised 2010-13 MTP 2,194 5,503 5,503
Property Group’s actual (forecast for 10-11) receipts 4,442 0 3,630
Receipts banked in previous years for use 765 1,822 1,822
Capital receipts from other sources 1,201 2,896 2,896
(Potential for 09-10) surplus/(deficit) receipts 4,214 -785 2,845

Page 54



52 Capital Receipts — Kent Property Enterprise Fund 1:
2009-10 2010-11
Kent Cumulative | Cumulative | Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative
Property Planned Actual Actual Net Planned
Enterprise Disposals Disposals | Acquisitions | Acquisitions (-) Disposals
Fund Limit (+) (+) (-) & Disposals (+) (+)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance b/f 11.764 11.764 -16.999 -5.234 12.019
April - June -10 12.529 11.771 -16.999 -5.228 12.102
July — Sept -10 13.295 11.966 -16.999 -5.033 14.199
Oct — Dec -10 13.341 11.986 -16.999 -5.013 14.420
Jan — Mar -10 14.084 12.019 -17.120 -5.101 *14.778
Other Commitments against Property Enterprise Fund 1 -0.848
Revised Property Enterprise Fund balance after funding commitments -5.948

* The value of disposals for 2010-11 is £2,759k.

Kent Property Enterprise Fund 1 and acquisitions and disposals (Em)
20
54 ! ............... ’ --------------- [ ]
10 ) . — . = - ) 4 L
5 i
0
5 balance b/f Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4
-10
-15
-20
Property Enterprise Fund Limit —&— cumulative planned disposals 2009-10
—&— cumulative actual disposals cumulative actual acquisitions
cumulative net acquisitions (-) & disposals (+) - - @ - - cumulative planned disposal 2010-11

Background:

e County Council approved the establishment of the Property Group Enterprise Fund No.1, with
a maximum permitted deficit of £10m, but self-financing over a period of 10 years. The cost of
any temporary borrowing will be charged to the Fund to reflect the opportunity cost of the
investment. The aim of this Fund is to maximise the value of the Council’s land and property
portfolio through:

. the investment of capital receipts from the disposal of non operational property into
assets with higher growth potential, and
Ll the strategic acquisition of land and property to add value to the Council’s portfolio, aid

the achievement of economic and regeneration objectives and the generation of
income to supplement the Council’s resources.
Any temporary deficit will be offset as disposal income from assets is realised. It is anticipated
that the Fund will be in surplus at the end of the 10 year period.

Comments:

Actual Disposals

The deficit balance brought forward from 2008-09 on the Property Group Enterprise Fund No. 1
was £5.234m.

A value of £2.320k was identified for disposal in 2009-10. This was the risk adjusted figure to
take on board the potential difficulties in disposing some of the properties.

Page 55




Actual disposals for 2009-10 total £0.255m from the disposal of 5 non-operational properties.

Acquisitions\Costs

There were no committed acquisitions to report. The cost of disposal was £0.121m. These costs
include estates fees to prepare properties for disposal in future years.

Forecast Outturn

Taking all the above into consideration, the Fund deficit position is £5.948m at the end of 2009-10.

Opening Balance — 01-04-09 -£5.234m
Actual receipts £0.255m
Costs -£0.121m
Acquisitions -
Other Funding:

- Gateways -£0.848m
Closing Balance — 31-03-10 -£5.948m

Other Fund Commitments

The fund provided £0.848m for Gateways in 2009-10, it is expected to provide a further £0.309m
and £0.256m for Gateways in 2010-11 and 2011-12 respectively. The fund is also earmarked to
provide £1m for Ashford Library in 2010-11 and £0.300m for Upper Stone Street Lay-by, within
the Integrated Transport Programme in 2011-12.

Revenue Implications

In 2009-10 the fund generated £0.020m of low value revenue receipts but, with the need to fund
both costs of borrowing (£0.373m) against the overdraft facility and the cost of managing
properties held for disposal (net £0.139m), the PEF1 carried forward a £0.935m deficit on revenue
which has been rolled forward to be met from future income streams.

Page 56



5.3

Capital Receipts — Kent Property Enterprise Fund 2 (PEF2):

County Council approved the establishment of PEF2 in September 2008 with a maximum
permitted overdraft limit of £85m, but with the anticipation that the fund was to broadly breakeven
over a rolling five year cycle. However, due to the slower than expected recovery, breakeven is
likely to occur over a rolling seven to eight year cycle. The purpose of PEF2 is to enable
Directorates to continue with their capital programmes as far as possible, despite the downturn in
the property market. The fund will provide a prudent amount of funding up front (prudential
borrowing), in return for properties which will be held corporately until the property market
recovers.

Overall forecast position on the fund

2010-11
2009-10 Actual Forecast
£m £m
Capital:

Opening balance -42.939 -33.274
Properties agreed into PEF2 -2.526 -26.686
Actual sale of PEF2 properties 12.721 16.055
Disposal costs -0.530 -0.803
Closing balance -33.274 -44.708

Revenue:
Opening balance -0.375 -2.153
Interest on borrowing -1.541 -1.560
Holding costs -0.237 -1.101
Closing balance -2.153 -4.814
Overall closing balance -35.427 -49.522

The 2009-10 closing balance for PEF2 is -£35.427, this is within the overdraft limit of £85m. The
revenue closing balance of -£2.153m will be offset against the balance in the Prudential
Equalisation Reserve, until such time PEF2 comes into surplus.

The target receipts to be accepted into PEF2 during 2009-10 equate to the PEF2 funding
requirement in the proposed 2010-13 budget book, and achievement against this is shown below:

2009-10 2010-11
Cumulative|Cumulative |Cumulative
target for |actuals target for
year year
£m £m £m
Balance b/fwd 2.6 2.6 -2.6
Qtr 1 4.9 2.6 6.6
Qtr 2 7.5 2.7 13.3
Qtr 3 10.2 2.7 20.0
Qtr4 12.8 5.1 26.7

Page 57



Comments:

e The table above shows that £12.8m needed to be transferred into PEF2 during 2009-10,
but only £5.1m was transferred, leaving a deficit of £7.7m. This deficit is reduced to
£2.6m, after taking into consideration the 2008-09 roll forwards of £5.1m.

e The £2.6m deficit is the net of a £5.4m deficit within CFE and £2.8m of PEF2 achieved in
2008-09 by KASS and EH&W was not required until later years.

e The deficit in 2009/10 is purely timing and Corporate Finance, Corporate Property and
CFE have agreed that sufficient asset values are held by CFE which can be transferred
into PEF2 during the early part of 2010-10 to cover the shortfall in 2009-10 plus the
required amount for 2010-11.

£m

PEF2 target accepted into fund

30

25

20

15

10 /
//

° f = N

0
Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4
—e— Cumulative target for year 2009-10 —=— Cumulative actuals
Cumulative target for year 2010-11
Comments:

To date four PEF2 properties have been sold and four properties are in the process of completing.
The cumulative profit on disposal to date is £0.988m. Large profits or losses are not anticipated
over the lifetime of the fund.

Interest costs
At the start of the year interest costs on the borrowing of the fund for 2009-10 were expected to
total £1.77m.

The actual interest costs for the year are £1.52m, a decrease of £0.25m. This is due to a reduced
net closing balance on the fund caused by reduced purchases and increased disposals.

Interest costs on the fund are calculated at a rate of 4% and are reviewed on a regular basis.

Page 58




6. FINANCING ITEMS
6.1 Price per Barrel of Oil - average monthly price in dollars since April 2006:
Price per Barrel of Oil
2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
$ $ $ $
April 69.44 63.98 112.58 49.65
May 70.84 63.45 125.40 59.03
June 70.95 67.49 133.88 69.64
July 74.41 74.12 133.37 64.15
August 73.04 72.36 116.67 71.05
September 63.80 79.91 104.11 69.41
October 58.89 85.80 76.61 75.72
November 59.08 94.77 57.31 77.99
December 61.96 91.69 41.12 74.47
January 54.51 92.97 41.71 78.33
February 59.28 95.39 39.09 76.39
March 60.44 105.45 47.94 81.20
Price per Barrel of Oil
150
140
130 A
120 - / \\
110
100 / X
s 901 /\A"/‘( \
80 A

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

2 2 2 2 2 9 2 92 2 2 P Q@ LI YLPIYIYIRYYe PP Y YR Q QI Q QI QG QI Q T o5 T

223233323822 LETE 23333822 EETE 232323922 % %8 %L - O - - A

$£337382838228333§5825588 288833358288 228333838283¢83
—aA— price per barrel of oil

e The figures quoted are the West Texas Intermediate Spot Price in dollars per barrel, monthly
average price.

Page 59




APPENDIX 5
FINANCIAL HEALTH INDICATORS

1. CASH BALANCES

The following graph represents the total cash balances under internal management by KCC at the
end of each month in £m. This includes principal amounts currently at risk in Icelandic bank
deposits (£43.931m), Pension Fund cash (£53m), balances of schools in the corporate scheme
(£58.153m), other reserves, and funds held in trust. Kent Fire and Rescue balances (£14m) were
disaggregated from KCC balances on 29 March 2010. KCC will have to honour calls on all held
balances such as these, on demand. The remaining deposit balance represents KCC working
capital created by differences in income and expenditure profiles.

The reducing cash balance since September 2009 reflects the Council’s policy of deferring

borrowing and using available cash balances to fund new capital expenditure (i.e. internalising the
debt).

Apr May | June | July | Aug | Sept | Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2008-09 | 419.9 | 425.7 | 375.7 | 395.8 | 403.5| 441.1 | 436.3 | 403.9 | 3455 | 342.8 | 312.6 | 357.0
2009-10 | 402.7 | 500.9 | 414.6 | 395.7 | 363.6 | 415.4 | 409.1 | 391.7 | 369.1 | 275.0 | 236.7 | 265.8

Cash Balances
550

500 -

A
wl TN [ N

300 -

200
® W © W W W W W W O O O O O o o o o o o o o o o
S 9 ¢ 9 © § © 9 © © & &6 & & 9 66 & & © 6 °o - = =
s > c = ()] Q. b3 > (&} C QO = = > c = ()] Q. - > (&} C QO =
S @ 5 3 ) o § o o) © [ o 2 @ 5 3 ) o § e o) © [ g
< = ) < n Z [a) - L = < = ) < n Z [a) - L =

2. LONG TERM DEBT MATURITY

The following graph represents the total external debt managed by KCC, and the year in which
this is due to mature. This includes £49.135m pre-Local Government Review debt managed on
behalf of Medway Council. Also included is pre-1990 debt managed on behalf of the Further
Education Funding council (£2.6m), Magistrates Courts (£1.4m) and the Probation Service
(£0.24m). These bodies make regular payments of principal and interest to KCC to service this
debt. The graph shows total principal repayments due in each financial year. Small maturities
indicate repayment of principal for annuity or equal instalment of principal loans, where principal
repayments are made at regular intervals over the life of the loan. The majority of loans have been
taken on a maturity basis so that principal repayments are only made at the end of the life of the
loan. These principal repayments will need to be funded using available cash balances (i.e.
internalising the debt), by taking new external loans or by a combination of the available options.

The total debt principal repaid in 2009-10 was £60.505m, £60.47m maturity loan and £0.035m
relating to small annuity and equal instalment of principal loans.

Page 60




Year £m | Year £m | Year £m | Year £m | Year £m
2009-10 0.000 | 2022-23 16.001 | 2035-36 0.000 | 2048-49 0.000 | 2061-62 0.000
2010-11 45.031 | 2023-24 20.001 | 2036-37 0.000 | 2049-50 0.000 | 2062-63 0.000
2011-12 55.024 | 2024-25 20.001 | 2037-38 21.500 | 2050-51 0.000 | 2063-64 30.600
2012-13 75.021 | 2025-26 24.001 | 2038-39 31.000 | 2051-52 0.000 | 2064-65 40.000
2013-14 0.015 | 2026-27 17.001 | 2039-40 25.500 | 2052-53 0.000 | 2065-66 45.000
2014-25 24.193 | 2027-28 0.001 | 2040-41 0.000 | 2053-54 25.700 | 2066-67 50.000
2015-16 29.001 | 2028-29 0.001 | 2041-42 0.000 | 2054-55 10.000 | 2067-68 35.500
2016-17 30.001 | 2029-30 0.001 | 2042-43 0.000 | 2055-56 30.000 | 2068-69 30.000
2017-18 30.001 | 2030-31 0.001 | 2043-44 51.000 | 2056-57 45.000 | 2069-70 0.000
2018-19 18.001 | 2031-32 0.000 | 2044-45 10.000 | 2057-58 0.000
2019-20 13.001 | 2032-33 0.000 | 2045-46 30.000 | 2058-59 0.000 | TOTAL 1,042.364
2020-21 20.001 | 2033-34 0.000 | 2046-47 14.800 | 2059-60 0.000
2021-22 20.001 | 2034-35 60.470 | 2047-48 0.000 | 2060-61 0.000
Long Term Debt Maturity

80

70

60

50 R

em 07 1 i1

30

20

10 1

2009-10 |
2011-12
2013-14 |

2015-16 |
2017-18 |

2019-20 |
2021-22 |

2023-24 |

2025-26 |

2027-28 |
2029-30 |
2031-32 |

2033-34 |

2035-36 |
2037-38 |

2039-40 |

2041-42 |
2043-44 |

2045-46 |

2047-48 |

2049-50 |
2051-52 |

2053-54 |

2055-56 |
2057-58 |
2059-60 |

2061-62 |

2063-64 |
2065-66 |
2067-68 |

OUTSTANDING DEBT OWED TO KCC

The following graph represents the level of outstanding debt due to the authority, which has
exceeded its payment term of 28 days. The main element of this relates to Adult Social Services
and this is also identified separately, together with a split of how much of the Social Care debt is
secured (i.e. by a legal charge on the clients’ property) and how much is unsecured.

Social Care Social Care Total KASS TOTAL All Other TOTAL
Secured Unsecured Social Sundry KASS Directorates KCC
Debt Debt Care debt debt Debt Debt
debt

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
April 08 3.468 5.437 8.905 2.531 11.436 5.369 16.805
May 08 3.452 5.626 9.078 1.755 10.833 4,736 15.569
June 08 3.464 5.707 9.171 1.586 10.757 3.619 14.376
July 08 3.425 6.195 9.620 2.599 12.219 6.174 18.393
Aug 08 3.449 6.264 9.713 3.732 13.445 5.075 18.520
Sept 08 3.716 6.114 9.830 1.174 11.004 4.800 15.804
Oct 08 3.737 6.334 | 10.071 * * 6.021 *
Nov 08 4111 5.540 9.651 1.206 10.857 4.504 15.361
Dec 09 3.742 6.740 | 10.482 2.004 12.486 8.269 20.755
Jan 09 3.792 6.266 | 10.058 1.517 11.575 6.519 18.094
Feb 09 3.914 6.345 | 10.259 1.283 11.542 9.684 21.226
March 09 4.100 6.326 | 10.426 1.850 12.276 8.578 20.854

Page 61




Social Care Social Care Total KASS TOTAL All Other TOTAL
Secured Unsecured Social Sundry KASS Directorates KCC
Debt Debt Care debt debt Debt Debt
debt

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
April 09 4.657 7.161 11.818 6.056 17.874 13.353 31.227
May 09 4.387 7.206 | 11.593 1.078 12.671 8.383 21.054
June 09 4.369 7.209 | 11.578 1.221 12.799 7.323 20.122
July 09 4.366 7.587 | 11.953 1.909 13.862 7.951 21.813
Aug 09 4.481 7.533 | 12.014 1.545 13.559 10.126 23.685
Sept 09 4.420 7.738 | 12.158 2.024 14.182 12.391 26.573
Oct 09 4.185 7.910 | 12.095 2.922 15.017 10.477 25.494
Nov 09 4.386 7.859 | 12.245 6.682 18.927 11.382 30.309
Dec 09 4.618 7.677 | 12.295 6.175 18.470 8.376 26.846
Jan 10 4.906 7.627 | 12.533 2.521 15.054 9.445 24.499
Feb 10 5.128 7.221 12.349 2.956 15.305 11.801 27.106
March 10 5.387 7127 | 12.514 1.643 14.157 11.818 25.975

* In October 2008, KASS Social Care debt transferred from the COLLECT system to Oracle. The new
reports were not available at this point; hence there is no data available for this period. The October Social
Care debt figures relate to the last four weekly billing run in the old COLLECT system

Level of Outstanding Debt Owed to KCC

35
30 n
25
20
£m
15
00— 00— —0—¢
101 HW' v
5771 } Il 1 LH—*——"—T-\—*—*———'—__"'A‘_: +— —*
0
2 888 88 8838383833338 3 8838382 e
—#—TOTAL KCC Debt —&— Total Social Care debt
—+— Social Care Secured Debt Social Care Unsecured Debt
4, PERCENTAGE OF PAYMENTS MADE WITHIN THE PAYMENT TERMS

The following graph represents the percentage of payments made within the payments terms —
the national target for this is 30 days, however from January 2009, we have set a local target of 20
days in order to help assist the cash flow of local businesses during the current tough economic

conditions.

Page 62




2008-09 2009-10

Paid within | Paid within | Paid within Paid within

30 days 20 days 30 days 20 days

% % % %

April 94.0 N/A 95.3 88.4
May 92.0 N/A 91.2 70.4
June 88.1 N/A 91.9 75.9
July 90.5 N/A 93.5 83.0
August 93.1 N/A 95.3 88.2
September 92.8 N/A 93.1 86.0
October 96.1 N/A 94.6 87.6
November 95.5 N/A 92.8 83.3
December 94.9 N/A 92.9 83.8
January 91.5 66.5 81.5 62.4
February 95.4 81.4 93.7 85.1
March 94.7 85.8 93.0 84.7

%

100

95

90 -

85 -

80 -

75 A

70

65

60

% of Payments Achieved within the Payment Terms

'\-\_/_/F/

® W@ @ @ W W W W W O O O O 9O o o o o o o o o o o
S 9 ¢ & & © © © © & & &6 © & & 6 © 9 o & o = - «w
s > c = ()] Q. he > (&} C QO = = > c = ()] Q. - > (&} C QO =
g & 5 3 3 ¢ § & @2 8 ©o & 2 & 5 3 3 o § & © & o &
< = ) < n Z [a) - L = < = ) < n Z [a) - L =

—il— Payments made within 30 days (national target)
Payments made within 20 days (local target)

The percentages achieved for January were lower than other months due to the Christmas break.
This is evident in both 2008-09 and 2009-10. This position was exacerbated in 2009-10 due to the
snow. The 2009-10 overall performance for invoices paid within 20 days is 81.9%, and for 30
days is 92.6%. This compares with overall performance for payments within 30 days in 2008-09 of
93.3%.

Page 63




APPENDIX 6
2009-10 Final Monitoring of Prudential Indicators

Estimate of capital expenditure (excluding PFI)

Actual 2008-09 £309.368m
Original estimate 2009-10 £435.918m
Actual 2009-10 £344.065m (schools inc)

Estimate of capital financing requirement (underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose)

2008-09 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10
Actual Original Revised Actual
Estimate Estimate in
2010-13 MTP
£m £m £m £m
Capital Financing Requirement 1,167.532 1,285.728 1,250.296 1,230.100
Annual increase in underlying 96.442 106.475 83.922 62.568

need to borrow

In the light of actual capital expenditure incurred, net borrowing by the Council did not exceed the
Capital Financing Requirement.

Estimate of ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

Actual 2008-09 9.67%
Original estimate 2009-10 11.42%
Actual 2009-10 12.36%

Operational Boundary for External Debt

The operational boundary for debt is determined having regard to actual levels of debt, borrowing
anticipated in the capital plan, the requirements of treasury strategy and prudent requirements in
relation to day to day cash flow management.

The operational boundary for debt was not exceeded in 2009-10.

(@) Operational boundary for debt relating to KCC assets and activities

Prudential Indicator Actual

2009-10 2009-10

£m £m

Borrowing 1,128.0 993.3

Other Long Term Liabilities 0.0 0

1,128.0 993.3

(b) Operational boundary for total debt managed by KCC including that relating to Medway

Council etc

Prudential Indicator Actual

2009-10 2009-10

£m £m

Borrowing 1,113.0 1,042.4

Other Long Term Liabilities 0.0 0

1,113.0 1,042.4

Page 64



Authorised Limit for external debt

The authorised limit includes additional allowance, over and above the operational boundary to
provide for unusual cash movements. It is a statutory limit set and revised by the County Council.
The limits for 2009-10 were:

(a) Authorised limit for debt relating to KCC assets and activities

£m

Borrowing 1,168
Other long term liabilities 0
1,168

(b)  Authorised limit for total debt managed by KCC including that relating to Medway Council etc

£m

Borrowing 1,219
Other long term liabilities 0
1,219

The additional allowance over and above the operational boundary was not utilised in 2009-10 and
external debt, was maintained well within the authorised limit.

Compliance with CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services
The Council has adopted the Code of Practice on Treasury Management and has adopted a
Treasury Management Policy Statement. Compliance has been tested and validated by our
independent professional treasury advisers.

Upper limits of fixed interest rate and variable rate exposures

The Council determined the following upper limits for 2009-10

(a) Borrowing

Fixed interest rate exposure 100%
Variable rate exposure 30%

(b) Investments

Fixed interest rate exposure 100%
Variable rate exposure 20%

These limits have been complied with in 2009-10. Total external debt is currently held at fixed
interest rates.

Upper limits for maturity structure of borrowings

Upper limit Lower limit Actual

% % %

Under 12 months 25 0 0
12 months and within 24 months 40 0 4.3
24 months and within 5 years 60 0 12.5
5 years and within 10 years 80 0 12.6
10 years and above 100 40 70.6

Page 65



Upper limit for principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

Indicator Actual
1 year to 2 years £45m £20m
2 years to 3 years £45m £0m
3 years to 4 years £40m £15m
4 years to 5 years £40m £0m
5 years to 6 years £20m £0m

£190m £35m

There has been some movement in the position since the last monitoring as call options have been
exercised by borrowing banks and some deals have been replaced with deals with differing
maturity.

Page 66



APPENDIX 7
Capital Budget Outcomes and Achievements in 2009-10

During 2009-10, Kent County Council, with a range of partners, invested over £340 million to fund
projects across the county which will improve life for thousands of Kent residents. Ever wondered where
that money goes? Here are just a few of the projects taking place and making Kent an even better place
to live, work and visit.

Children and Families services

Budget Challenge: The delay in the announcement of the Comprehensive Spending Review coupled
with current and anticipated future public spending pressures has influenced the delivery of our spending
programmes, particularly those rolling programmes such as the Primary Capital Programme where we
must have some certainty of future government support in order to commit to significant major building
projects which can take 18 months to two years to deliver from contract commitment. We have sought to
maximise what funding is available by the joining up of funding streams including school devolved capital
as well as making use of capital receipts where available. Recorded maintenance backlog for D1 work
(worse condition, most urgent) shows a significant reduction from £36.1m to £23.3m. Whilst ongoing
maintenance will have had some impact, the significant reduction is a result of the stream of project
completions from Modernisation, Special School Review, PFI and Academy programmes. Delivery of the
initial waves of BSF as well as the Primary Capital Programme will make further impact on the backlog.

Building Schools for the Future (BSF): Construction work has now commenced on the delivery of
Kent’s first BSF wave which at £200m will see the rebuild and refurbishment of 11 secondary schools in
Gravesham and Thanet, namely Ifield Special School, Northfleet Technology College, Northfleet School
for Girls, St John’s Catholic Comprehensive School, Thamesview School, The Charles Dickens School,
The Community College Whitstable, Herne Bay High School, Dane Court Grammar School, King
Ethelbert School and St Georges CE Foundation School Broadstairs. The outline business case has been
approved by Government and detailed proposals are being developed for the next phase (Wave 4) of the
Kent BSF project, this will see the rebuild of the remainder of Thanet and Gravesham secondary schools
(14 schools). Alongside this, early planning work has commenced for the delivery of the Wave 5 and 6
BSF works which will cover a further 25 schools and over £350m of investment.

Vocational Education: We continue to develop the provision of vocational centres attached to clusters
of schools. To date there are 25 centres, a mixture of school and off site provision.

The Dover Skills Centre opened in March 2010 (£0.200m). Situated on the Glenmore Industrial Estate at
Whitfield in Dover, the centre comprises of three industrial units which have been converted into a large
construction skills training centre. This centre has been developed in partnership with South Kent
College and secondary schools from Dover, Deal and Sandwich. The anticipated numbers of learners to
access the centre during 2010-11 is estimated to be 250-300.

A £0.250m project is set to commence at Swan Valley School to provide a retail outlet for the sale of
bicycles and a bicycle maintenance workshop to be run as a business by students at the school. This
project is being sponsored by Giant Bicycles who are a leading manufacturer in the industry. This new
centre is due to open in October 2010.

Construction work on a new Vocational Skills Centre in Maidstone will be commencing shortly (£0.650m).
This centre will be offering vocational training for young people and adults in the sectors of hospitality and
catering, hair and beauty, engineering and motor bike repair and maintenance.

Special Schools Review (SSR): Projects completed in 2009-10 include Rowhill (£5.7m) and Valence
Schools (£7.7m). A major project to replace Grange Park School on a new site adjoining Wrotham School
is now under construction and due to finish in August 2010. Interim works pending the delivery of more
substantial projects have been completed at Broomhill Bank, Five Acre Wood, Ridge View and Wyvern.

Modernisation Programme: There were no new modernisation starts within the financial year, but
projects starting in earlier years still continue to reach completion. This included a £1.9m project at
Sussex Road Primary School in Tonbridge. The scheme replaces four poorly insulated, stand alone
hutted classrooms with a two storey, light, airy modern extension with toilet facilities and DDA compliant
lift. As part of the project the school funded a full sized staffroom and, through new build and adaptations
to the existing building, two fit for purpose reception classrooms. In addition the school received separate
DCSF “joinedupdesignforschools” funding to remodel and extend the front entrance. Pupils designed the
building in association with an architect from thB3@rell Foundation. This project undertaken in tandem



with the modernisation project provided a lobby, large reception/administration area, meeting room and
head teacher’s room.

Primary Strategy/Primary Capital Programme (PCP): The Primary Capital Programme is planned to
roll out over 14 years. Funding has been confirmed through to 2010-11. The development and delivery of
projects within this programme is now underway.

Work is complete on a £6.1m project at Oakfield Primary School providing fit for purpose accommodation
through new build and refurbishment. This scheme supports the amalgamation of the former Infants and
Junior School.

Work is also well underway and due to complete on The Manor Primary School for a similar project
costing £6.7m providing a largely new-built 2FE Primary School with some refurbishment.

Development Opportunities: The economic downturn and specifically the reduction in land values has
slowed the number of new projects identified.

Work is now drawing to a conclusion on the Dartford Campus project; the £25.7m scheme provides an all
through learning campus with nursery, primary, secondary and adult education provision all in new or
refurbished accommodation.

In East Malling the new St James The Great school buildings were officially opened in October. The
£3.3m scheme jointly funded by the disposal of land and a contribution from the modernisation
programme provides modern fit for purpose school buildings. This new primary school was created from
the amalgamation of the former St James Infants School and Mill Stream Junior School.

Developer Contributions: We are able to use S106 developer contributions to fund the provision of new
school facilities in areas of growth. In February 2010 The Bridge Learning Campus was officially opened.
This £9.9m state of the art project provides on one site a new 2FE school, youth space, library, adult
education, children’s social services and community facilities with shared facilities management and is the
first of its kind in Kent. The facility has good public transport links served by the Fast Track service.

Children’s Centres: Identifying viable locations for a very small number of centres has led to some
delays in the Round 2 programme, but this phase of development is nearing completion. The 52 Round 2
centres are being developed in less disadvantaged areas than the previous phase of development,
building on and enhancing existing good practice and services, extending the benefits to more families
and bringing an integrated approach to service delivery to areas where it is needed most.

KCC is working towards a goal to provide children's centre services to all 83,000 0-4 year olds and their
families by 2011. To this end, in September 2009, a review took place to determine how the third and
final phase of the programme (2008-2011) could be delivered. The purpose of the review was to ensure
resources, both capital and revenue, are appropriately levelled at the children and families who need
them most and that Round 3 centres and the services they offer are sustainable.

The agreed approach to this phase focused on minimising the number of new builds as far as possible
and extending and maximising of the number of centres delivered in facilities that currently exist, such as
libraries, clinics and Gateways. To this end there will be 10 new children’s centres built as part of this
phase and a further 15 developed in existing accommodation, bringing the total number of centres across
the county to 97.

Maintenance (CF&E): The maintenance funding stream supports both planned and reactive
maintenance at schools and is targeted at projects to keep schools safe, warm and dry. Coupled with the
delivery of a series of major project completions we have made significant reductions in the maintenance
backlog.

In addition to money retained centrally, schools have both revenue and capital funding for building
maintenance and improvement work. The Government added to schools 2009-10 allocations by bringing
forward 40% of schools 2010-11 DFC (Devolved Formula Capital) allocations. Including this brought-
forward funding, LA schools DFC allocations for 2009-10 totalled £31m.

Children’s Social Services: The rationalisation of the Children’s Social Services property portfolio
continued to support the service realignment, setting up of the Local Children Services Partnership
Boards and the CFE Restructure.

During previous years both Lodge House and Northcourt Family Centre in Gravesend and 4 Essex Road
in Dartford were made available for disposal.

This year, the Kings Farms Family Centre in Gravesend was extended and the Adolescence Resource
Centre moved there, thus freeing up 5 Manor Road, Gravesend for disposal.

Page 68



During 2009-10, a condition survey of Brockman Family Centre in Shepway revealed it would need
significant investment to meet Health and Safety and DDA compliance. One of the teams based there
has already been relocated to Westchurch House in Ashford and we are planning to move the three other
remaining teams during 2010-11 and free up this site for disposal.

In supporting the BWP (Better Workplaces) strategy, the restructuring of space at The Willows Swanley,
has allowed CSS staff to be relocated there from St Lawrence House.

Adult Social Care Services

Princess Christian Farm (PCF): continues to provide an opportunity for the learning disabled service
users to learn life and employment skills within a supported working environment.

Due to a lack of investment PCF was in need of a capital injection into the farm buildings in order to
develop its potential and bring it in line with Health and Safety standards.

PCF remains an exemplar to other Authorities in promoting inclusive social care with service users on a
waiting list for a placement.

During 2006, an external consultant was commissioned to undertake a review of the service. The option
appraisal identified that a procurement exercise would potentially provide a partnership arrangement, in
this case, with Hadlow college for the management of the farm whilst providing capital investment into the
facilities and improved skill development opportunities for the service users attending PCF.

Learning Disabled Development Fund (LDDF): Thanington Community Centre is owned by Canterbury
City Council but leased to Thanington Neighbourhood Resource Centre (TNRC) which manages it
through a Board of Trustees. The building completed in January 2010 and includes an extension to the
ground floor to facilitate a Youth area and a computer suite. The KASS contribution paid for stairs, lift and
adaptations to fittings and equipment on the ground and first floors. The facility fits in with the new service
model for people with a learning disability in Canterbury (refer to the report A New Service Model for the
Re-provision of Day Activities for People with a Learning Disability in the Canterbury District, decision
number 08/01217).

Maintenance (KASS): The maintenance funding stream supports both planned and reactive
maintenance within our establishments and is targeted at projects to keep service users safe, warm and
dry. Whilst the funding stream enables us to manage the backlog of maintenance, significant reductions
are only made through the delivery of major modernisation and replacement projects. This year KASS
have carried out major heating, water and floor replacement works at Sampson Court (£0.138m) and
urgent health & safety water treatment works at Ashford Day Opportunities Centre (£0.065m), both of
which allowed the services to continue to remain open.

Home Support Fund: Greater independence is usually achieved by the provision of equipment and
adaptations, within existing accommodation and local communities. The Home Support Fund can provide
both minor adaptations/equipment including grab and stair rails, through to major adaptations like
changing room layout/use of rooms and extending a property. Major work is carried out in conjunction
with the district councils, through the Disabled Facilities Grant or local housing associations. At a cost of
up to £1m annually, the work carried out through the Home Support Fund, enables between 80-100
people, to continue to live in their own homes with increased confidence, and an improved sense of
wellbeing.

The development of community inclusive opportunities at Trinity Foyer: The main purpose of the
Maidstone modernisation project has always been to develop partnerships and a community that has
inclusive opportunities, so that people with learning disabilities have greater choice.

The Trinity Foyer was one of those partnerships that facilitated a joint working arrangement between
social services and 3™ Sector organisations, in providing opportunities for people with learning/physical
disabilities, young people and older people. Not only in utilising the building but also in overcoming any
negative perceptions of each other, by promoting a natural networking opportunity with increased levels
of awareness and respect. The proposal involved KCC making a capital investment of £60,000 to fund
improvement works to the shared lounge, kitchen and changing facilities and also to create a quiet room.

Page 69



Roads and Transport

Maintenance (EH&W): Kent Highway Services had an initial budget allocation of £42.6m to spend on
planned repairs on carriageways, footways, bridges, street lights, drains, signs and signals. These works
on various infrastructure asset types are aimed to keep Kent’s transport networks safe and prolong the
life of each asset. In addition to the original budget provision, the Council has delivered an additional
£7.1m worth of maintenance works. This included £2.1m of extra investment funded through a revenue
underspend and £5.0m brought forward from the 2010-11 budget provision, to tackle a significant backlog
of essential resurfacing works. Despite the prolonged adverse weather during the winter months, the
Council completed both the original repairs programme and this additional work on time, which is a major
achievement considering this was twice the level of normal spend.

Integrated Transport schemes: The Council spent £12.0m on integrated transport schemes to achieve

a number of key objectives:

e casualty reduction schemes have been carried out in order to reduce the number of people killed or
seriously injured;

e improving access to key services by sustainable modes of transport including cycle-ways and
footways.

e tackling the occurrence of peak hour congestion, particularly in larger urban areas

e pedestrian crossings have been upgraded to meet current DDA standards .

e “Kickstart” funding has been made available in Ashford and Thanet area to purchase new low-floor
easy access buses. This has improved the quality and frequency of bus services helping passengers
to access local facilities;

e a financial contribution to bus operators for equipping their fleets with Smartcard compatible ticket
machines; and

e a minibus has been purchased to be operated by Thanet Community Transport who will be offering
services for people with disabilities and those living over 500m away from regular bus services.

Major Schemes - development and construction: This year has been dominated by getting
Rushenden Relief Road, East Kent Access Phase 2 and Sittingbourne Northern Relief Road to the
construction stage; progressing Drovers Roundabout — M20 J9 and Victoria Way, Ashford to contract
award stage by early 2010-11 and developing the major scheme business case for Smartlink.

Preliminary design fees: Smartlink, Ashford. This bus based scheme is a key part of the transport
strategy for Ashford’s growth agenda. It will be a flexible high technology, high frequency bus-based
system with zero or low emissions that will have segregation and priority on the network with the aim of
achieving modal shift (a shift from using the road network to using public transport). The development of
the outline and business case for this scheme has been completed and will be submitted to DfT in June
2010 seeking Programme Entry for Local Transport Plan funding. The scheme development is being
funded by Ashford Growth Area partnership and the County Council.

Sittingbourne Northern Relief Road (SNRR) - £35m: This is a Kent Thameside scheme and is
intended to support existing and future commercial and housing development. The new road will connect
two sections of relief road built by developers. The scheme is funded by the DfT as a Local Transport
Plan scheme, the Homes and Community Agency and a S106 developer contribution. Following
confirmation of statutory orders, DfT granted full approval to funding. A contract was awarded to Jackson
Civils Ltd in September 2009 and work started on site in November 2009. Environmental mitigation and
archaeological works have been completed. The main activity is in-advance works for piling for the Milton
Creek bridge. The scheme is on programme for completion in September 2011.

Rushenden Relief Road - £13m: The County Council has designed and is implementing this scheme to
provide a new direct link between the A249 at Neats Court and Rushenden Road on behalf of SEEDA.
Access to the existing development through Queenborough is poor and the new road will support 2000
new homes and 180,000 sq m of employment space. SEEDA has secured Homes and Community
Agency, other government and private sector funding. A construction contract was awarded to Birse Civil
Ltd in June 2009 and work started in July 2009. New access from the A249 to the Neats Court gateway
developments has been completed. On the rest of the route the railway bridge has been completed and
approach embankment is close to being completed. These will need to have a settlement period of 9
months before the carriageway works can commence subject to SEEDA securing the remaining funding.
The programme is for the road to be fully open to traffic in August 2011.

Page 70



East Kent Access Phase 2 - £87m: This scheme will improve the A299 and A256 leading to the Minster
roundabout and the Lord of the Manor junction and connecting with Phase 1 by the old Richborough
power station. This new road will be to dual carriageway standard and features an underpass beneath
Foads Hill and the railway at Cliffsend, and over the railway at Cottington Lane. The purpose of the
scheme is to improve accessibility, safety and support the economy of east Kent. It will provide
connectivity between the ports of Dover and Ramsgate and the Kent International Airport. This will
complete the improvements of the A299 Thanet Way and A256 that were started in the 1980s.

Following confirmation of statutory orders, DfT granted full approval of the funding. Construction tenders
were higher than expected and the Department for Transport increased its funding to £81.25m, leaving
the County Council to fund the remaining £5.75m. A contract for construction of the road was awarded to
a joint-venture of Volker Fitzpatrick and Hochtief in August 2009 and work started in November. The area
is an archaeological site and the main activity during the end of 2009 and start of 2010 was detailed
investigation following a topsoil strip. The contractor also progressed the design and technical approvals
for the complex structures which are a ‘design & build’ aspect of the contract. The main construction
activity will commence in spring 2010. The road is programmed to be completed and open to traffic in
autumn 2011.

Victoria Way, Ashford - £17m: Victoria Way is a scheme to connect Victoria Road from the International
Station at Beaver Road to the A28 Chart Road at the Matalan roundabout. The aim is to provide a new
high quality town centre street, to support the growth of the town centre southwards, and to provide some
additional traffic capacity lost by the changes to the ring road. It will also provide a route to the future
Smartlink bus system and future development will be expected to fund and broaden out the boulevard
concept.

The scheme has secured £16.5m from the Community Infrastructure Fund (CIF) managed by the Homes
and Communities Agency. The scheme received planning consent in August 2009 and most activity has
been directed at securing all the land by voluntary negotiation as the funding deadline of 31 March 2011
does not allow the opportunity for a contested compulsory purchase order process.

The design has been completed and construction tenders returned that give confidence that the scheme
can be delivered within the CIF funding and its deadline. VolkerFitzpatrick is the preferred contractor and
it is anticipated that a contract will be awarded in early May when all the land has been secured. The key
task will be to deliver the scheme within the funding period.

Ashford Drovers Roundabout - £17m: Drovers Roundabout — M20 J9 is a scheme to improve the main
strategic access route into Ashford from the west. A feature bridge will be provided over the M20 to
replace the existing unsatisfactory pedestrian route at J9. It will also facilitate the route of the future
Smartlink and provide access to the associated Warren Park & Ride site.

The scheme has secured £15.1m from the Regional Infrastructure Fund (RIF) provided by DfT but
managed by SEEDA. Growth Area Funding has provided £2.5m for the extra costs of the feature bridge.
The objective of RIF is to forward fund a comprehensive improvement and avoid incremental developer
funded improvements with the grant repayable by Ashford Borough Council through S278/S106 and tariff
funding.

Most activity has been directed at completing the RIF agreement and securing all the land by voluntary
negotiation as the funding deadline of 31 March 2011 does not allow the opportunity for a contested
compulsory purchase order process. Only the bridge required planning consent and that has been
achieved. The design has been completed and construction tenders returned that give confidence that
the scheme can be delivered within the RIF funding and its deadline. BAMNuttall is the preferred
contractor and it is anticipated that a contract will be awarded in early May when all the RIF agreement
has been completed and all the land has been secured. The key task will be to deliver the scheme within
the funding period.

Reshaping Kent Highways Accommodation: Initial work has started to modernise the existing office
and depot at Aylesford to create the appropriate facilities to serve the West Kent highway operation. As
part of the reshaping Kent Highways accommodation, the County Council has also spent £0.299m on the
Works Asset Management system, to improve service delivery and efficiency of the highway works
programmes.

Salt saturators: We have purchase a number of salt saturators so that we can use "pre-wetted" salting
treatment across the county. This will be a cost saving by reducing the amount of salt used for each
salting run and improve application.

Page 71



Safety Camera Partnership: The DfT grant has been used to provide equipment which helps reduce the
speed of vehicles at hazardous locations. The equipment includes speed cameras, interactive signs, and
speed indicator devices. The council also made a contribution to enable a Life Skills Centre to be
established at Ramsgate to enhance road safety across the County.

Community Services

Turner Contemporary gallery: We have continued to make significant progress during the year. The
superstructure of the building is almost complete and the contractor is now making good progress with
the cladding and roofing, with a view to making the building watertight by early summer. Completion is
expected before the end of the year and the building is due to open in late spring 2011.

Kent History and Library Centre: a £12m project in Maidstone, which is part of a larger £30m innovative
development in partnership with the second largest developer in the world — Bouygues - providing some
60 residential homes in addition to our building which will encompass the Kent Archive facility. KCC
funding is being supported by some groundbreaking initiatives for KCC involving a land transfer, a long
term lease with Bouygues as well as revenue savings that will be delivered by rationalising existing
facilities. Work commenced on site in March and the new building is anticipated to open in summer
2012.

Ashford Gateway Plus: is being built on the old library site and will offer a combination of library, adult
learning, registration, social day services, Ashford Borough Council services and a new Gateway. The
building will cost £7.6m and will be completed by summer 2011. Preliminary work started in April 2010,
with a temporary library opening in the nearby mall. The groundbreaking ceremony occurred on Friday
30th April. KCC financial support is being supplemented by contributions, Ashford Futures and
developers.

The Beaney in Canterbury: is an innovative joint £12m project with Canterbury City Council to bring
together the library, museum and gallery in an extended and refurbished Grade Il listed building. Funding
for the project includes in excess of £6m Heritage Lottery Funding, almost £1m from SEEDA with the
balance from both Canterbury CC and KCC. This project is due to commence in Quarter 1 2010-11.

Gravesend library: is now being refurbished and partly rebuilt at a cost of £2.5m. This project will see
the Carnegie Library refurbished and the adjacent shop unit completely rebuilt. Work began on site in
March 2010, with a temporary library opening in the nearby shopping centre, and the new revamped
library is due to re-open in 2011. It is being funded in part by developer contributions but predominantly
by KCC.

Libraries Modernisation Programme: Further capital investment has continued to benefit both existing
customers, as well as attract new customers, through the new improved aesthetic environment. Improved
footfall in recently refurbished libraries has led to an increase in issues during 2009-10, for example, by
80% at Ramsgate and 13% at East Peckham when compared to 2007-08. The modernisation
programme will continue in 2010-11.

Marling Cross Library refurbishment project was completed in May 2009 at a cost of £0.110m. The
interior and exterior of the building have been significantly improved and new books have been added to
the stock. The space is now larger, incorporating a formerly disused property next door into a bright new
community facility. A number of partners are supporting this project and are using the new space. These
include Gravesham Borough Council, NHS West Kent PCT, Surestart and Kent Police. Increase in levels
of use is shown in the 15% rise in issues in 2009-10 compared to 2008-09.

Dover Big Screen/Live Site: was secured for Dover by the KCC Sport, Leisure and Olympics service
from the BBC and the London Organising Committee for the Olympic and Paralympic Games. The
screen, installed at Market Square in Dover, is the only screen of 20 nationwide that is in a town, rather
than a city, and is only the second such screen in the South East region. The screen is valued at
£0.650m and the cost to local partners of planning and installation was £0.205m, which included
partnership funding from Dover Pride and the East Kent and Coastal PCT, as well as from KCC.

The screen shows a combination of BBC News 24, Olympic related programmes, major events and
locally-generated content.

Since the screen went “live’ in mid-2009, it has shown a number of major events including the Wimbledon

Tennis Finals, Last Night of the Proms, the I\Fﬁlichael Jackson Tribute, the Vancouver Olympic and
age 72



Paralympic Games 2010 and Opera, as well as Christmas carols from 32 local schools; and the screen
and the "live site’ in front of it has accommodated sports, dance, cookery and gardening events.

Country Parks: The funding was made available to build a new cafe and toilet facilities at Manor Park
Country Park, West Malling, which opened in October 2009. Visitor numbers to the park are on the
increase as a result of this and feedback from the public has been extremely positive. The cafe also
gave the opportunity for a Kent resident to start up a new business, running the cafe on our behalf. The
new facilities will also mean that we will be able to offer more public events at the park in coming years.
Other projects include improvements to the visitor centre at Lullingstone Country park to enhance the
visitor experience, further detailed work extending the car park to accommodate visitors all year round
will come into fruition in 2010.

The facilities at Shorne have been modified to be able to cope with the increasing visitor numbers.

Improvements to Waste recycling facilities:

e Swanley: completion of a major refurbishment/re-design of an existing site to ease site congestion
from a health and safety viewpoint, extend the range of recycling facilities and to improve the site
layout to make recycling easier for the public.

e Southwall Road, Deal: additional land purchased to extend the range of recycling facilities on site and
to ease the movement of compactors whilst on site, therefore ensuring recycling containers remain
operational for the public to use.

e Lydd/New Romney: professional fees for securing land purchase and design. Construction of new
site due to start in 2010/11.

e North Farm Transfer Station: professional fees and scheme feasibility study carried out.
Construction of site improvements due to start in 2010/11.

ICT Capital Programme (Sustaining Kent - maintaining the infrastructure): is a multi-year
programme to deliver a modern, flexible and sustainable core ICT infrastructure capable of supporting
KCC's business needs. It builds on the Kent Public Service Network (KPSN) to deliver enhanced and
resilient data centre capacity, improved file storage, consolidated and improved applications support,
improved Local Area Networks (LANs), a successor service to the TRP contract, and new telephony-
based services. The £2.371m spend in 2009-10 has delivered the first steps in this programme -
provisioning data centre capacity at Gun Wharf in Medway and the first phase of the upgrade to the
Sessions House data centre (delivering a resilient design for critical services such as Swift, e-mail
services and file storage); starting the process of upgrading office LANs (necessary to support the new
telephony services etc.); rolling out consolidation and virtualisation of business applications (reducing
hardware and support costs for individual applications); and initial work provisioning the new file storage
and the new telephony service (Unified Communications).

Corporate Modernisation of Assets: has been used primarily to maintain the condition of and to ensure
statutory compliance in the corporate office estate. In the current year money has been expended on
significant projects that included the new windows to the front elevation of Sessions House. The work
was part of a planned programme and was essential from a health and safety perspective as windows
were in danger of falling onto the public footpath and highway in front of the building and staff were
working in offices with little or no comfort in the winter and limited or restricted ventilation in the summer.
Funding was also allocated to complete DDA adaptations to all of the lifts in Sessions House and Invicta
House to improve accessibility. The power optimisation project to Sessions House was completed and
these projects will result in reduced energy use and support corporate targets for carbon reduction.
Funding was also utilised to part fund the modernisation works at Thistley Hill as part of the better
workplace initiative. This project was very successful and supported the better workplaces planned
rationalisation of the office estate.

The final major project funded from this budget was the refurbishment of the bedroom block at Oakwood
house and this has been very successful in generating more income and utilisation whilst maintaining and
renewing what is a significant asset to the Authority.

Gateways: £0.848m outturn spend has enabled the completion of Phase 1 of the Gateway Programme —
the customer focused, cross agency outlets, — with Dover opening in June 2009 and increasing
transactions every quarter. Phase 2 of the programme has started with Tonbridge Gateway also opening
in June 2009. Work is in progress for a Gateway in Gravesham, due to open mid September 2010 and
targeted for mid 2011 are Sheerness, Swanley, Edenbridge, Herne Bay and Ashford Gateway Plus.
Satellite opportunities are developing with Health and Social Housing projects including greater focus on
multi-agency outreach using the Gateway MopigyeDrging May 2010 the 1millionth customer will go



through Thanet's Gateway Plus. 5 of our 7 Gateway are performing at over 90% satisfaction rate with the
exception of Tenterden who are only performing at 86% satisfaction rate and at present no data is being
collected from Dover. The profile of Gateway is now embedding in local communities.

Conclusion

Kent has a huge responsibility to spend its budget wisely. These projects are just a few examples of the
many projects that have improved services and lives for the people of Kent, and helped to make Kent an
even better county in which to live, work and visit.

Page 74



Agenda ltem 4

To: Cabinet

From: John Simmonds, Cabinet Member for Finance & Lynda
McMullan, Director of Finance

Subject: Response to Government Savings Announcement

Summary: To update Cabinet on the recent announcement of in-year
reductions in Government grants and to identify how KCC
intends to respond and the process for agreeing revised
budget as a consequence

1. Introduction

1.1 On 24" May the Treasury announced a package of additional
savings to be delivered in 2010/11 amounting to £6.2bn. The
majority will affect central Government departments although
£1.165bn will be in year reductions in grants to local government.
This is a small amount compared to the anticipated reductions in
public spending that will be needed over the lifetime of the current
Parliament to address the budget deficit. The £1.165bn is made up as
follows:

£537m from Communities and Local Government (CLG)
£311m from Department for Education (DfE)

£309m from Department for Transport (DfT)

£8m from Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(Defra)

1.2 The Treasury has confirmed the local government Formula
Grant will not be affected and that grants for schools, 16-19
participation and Sure Start will be protected. It also appears that
grants from Department for Health and Home Office will be unaffected
although this has not yet been confirmed. The Government also
announced that £1.7bn of grants will be de-ringfenced allowing local
authorities greater discretion how funds are used.

1.3 At this stage we still have no detail on the grants which will be
affected although we are expecting a written ministerial statement
which we hope to include in a verbal update. Following the
ministerial statement there will be a period of time to confirm the
figures are correct but no consultation about which grants are
affected. For planning purposes at this stage we have estimated that
in the worst case scenario KCC’s share of the savings could be around
£23m although this would depend on which particular grants are
affected.

Page 75



1.4 We are assuming that County Councils will not have any share
of DIT grant reductions as the only grant we receive from DfT is the
recently announced £2.44m emergency fund to repair pot holes
following the bad winter weather. We are also assuming any
reductions in grants from Defra will be relatively minor and the impact
can be covered in monitoring reports.

2. Grants Received in 2010/11
2.1 The timing of grant announcements means that we do not have

a complete picture when the budget is published. We have an
established mechanism to make adjustments to cash limits to reflect
changes in grants and the table below summarises the latest position

CFE KASS EH&W CMY CED Total
£000s £000s | £000s | £000s | £000s £000s
CLG
Area Based Grant 31,881 | 24,192 5,826 | 34,605 115 96,619
Other CLG Grants 0 0 0 0 2,764 2,764
DfE
DSG 801,301 0 0 473 | 4,377 806,151
Standards Grant 41,602 0 0 0 0 41,602
Standards Fund 89,169 0 0 0 0 89,169
Sure Start & Early Years 42,640 0 0 0 0 42,640
Other DFE Grants 3,351 0 0 734 0 4,085
DoH 0 8,773 0 0 0 8,773
Home Office
Asylum 15,611 0 0 0 0 15,611
Drugs 0 0 0 1,790 0 1,790
Total Grants 1,025,555 | 32,965 5,826 | 37,602 7,256 | 1,109,204
Other grants not within
Local Government Finance 98,650 0 1,205 | 13,357 360 113,572

3. CLG Grants

3.1 The main grant from CLG is the Area Based Grant (ABG). This
is allocated as an un-hypothecated sum, although by and large the
money is spent in the same way as it was when it was allocated as
individual ring-fenced grants although some elements have now been
absorbed into core services and ABG is indistinguishable from other
mainstream funding. We believe it is unavoidable that CLG will be
able to make savings in grant of the magnitude announced without a
significant element coming from ABG.

Page 76



3.2 There are some other minor grants e.g. Local Public Service
Agreement Performance Reward Grant, Local Authority Business
Growth Incentive Scheme, Housing Planning and Delivery Grant,
Housing and Council Tax benefit grant, etc. It is likely that some of
these other grants could be targeted for reductions.

4. DfE Grants

4.1 We have assumed that DSG, Standards Grant and Sure Start
will be unaffected by the cuts. The vast majority of the remaining
Standards Fund and other DfE grants are ring-fenced. At this stage it
is not clear whether the DfE savings will be in relation to ring-fenced
grants (and therefore by default we would have to reduce the
expenditure supported by the grant) or whether grants will be de-
ringfenced before they are reduced (and therefore in effect be no
different from ABG).

5. Next Steps

5.1 The combination of likely reductions in ABG and de-ringfencing
of grants means that it is unlikely that we will be able to identify the
specific savings from the grants above following Government
consultation. This means that we will need to look at the totality of
the budget for the necessary savings rather than concentrate on a
limited number of specific elements.

5.2 Directorates have been asked to identify and prioritise savings
either from uncommitted sums for activities supported by ABG and
other grants (excluding statutory services or activities which would
simply transfer pressures onto core budgets) and from areas already
identified in the medium term plan for 2011/12 and 2012/13 which
could be brought forward. Directorates have also been asked to
identify any other options for delivering in year savings to ensure that
we can at least cover the possible £23m that may be needed. It is
important that service priorities are considered carefully in choosing
between savings options.

5.3 It is highly unlikely that the impact of revised cash limits and
spending forecasts will be available for the first exception budget
monitoring report due to be presented to Cabinet on 12" July

5.4 The Cabinet Member for Finance will have responsibility for
responding to the technical consultation on the detail of the figures.

The response will be agreed in the same way as other finance
consultations.

6. Recommendations

Page 77



6.1 Cabinet is asked to note the potential for savings from grant
reductions and endorse the strategy outlined in paragraph 5.

Dave Shipton

Finance Strategy Manager
Corporate Finance

Chief Executive’s Department

Tel (01622) 694597

Page 78



Agenda ltem 5

By: Cabinet Member for Finance
Director of Finance

To: Cabinet - 14 June 2010

Subject: TREASURY MANAGEMENT

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To seek decisions on treasury management issues and
update on developments in Iceland.

FOR DECISION

INTRODUCTION

1.  Treasury Management is reported on a quarterly basis to the
Governance and Audit Committee. In addition, regular reports are now
being made to Cabinet to help increase the level of communication on
these issues.

2. This process is much enriched by the Treasury Advisory Group (TAG),
an all party sub-group of Cabinet, which is responsible for advising the
Cabinet and Director of Finance on treasury management.

3. Following the recommendation of TAG this report makes a proposal for a

change on the duration of deposits. In addition, it reports borrowing
recently undertaken and also updates on the Icelandic recovery process.

DURATION OF DEPOSITS

4. This issue was considered by the Treasury Advisory Group on 26 March
and they agreed the approach which is set out.

5. We want to maintain a dynamic approach to investments and even since
October 2009 when Cabinet agreed the move away from all deposits
being in the Debt Management Office (DMO) there have been a number
of significant changes:

(1) In December 2009 the Financial Services Authority (FSA)
introduced a new liquidity framework for financial institutions which
will be implemented through 2010. Whilst the change is good for
investors a likely effect is the removal of call accounts or their terms
becoming less attractive. We need to be ready to respond to these
changes.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\3\0\A10001303 S\R@g@asigManagementO.doc



(2) Most forecasts envisage short term rates staying at their current
very low rates for longer than expected with downside risks from
the economy deteriorating further. This suggests we should
consider the maximum duration of deposits being extended to 12
months. However, given the need to cover KCC'’s liquidity
requirements we would need to be cautious about committing
money longer term. There are currently a small number of
relatively attractive options for up to 12 months deposits. TAG
agreed the extension to 12 months subject to Cabinet.

We would need to be highly selective on the choice of institutions for
longer term deposits.

The £40m counterparty limits were set inclusive of Superannuation Fund
Cash and when the average cash balance exceeded £400m. Given that
overall cash balances are now lower and Superannuation Fund Cash is
now segregated its appropriate to consider whether the £40m level
should be maintained. Again as long as the Credit Guarantee Scheme
is in place we are not running additional risk and it does mean that we
minimize funds with the DMO. On balance it is reasonable to maintain
the level but if the Director of Finance has any concerns the level can be
reduced and members notified. TAG endorsed this approach.

The governance arrangements allow for the Director of Finance to
immediately withdraw money from a counterparty. On 30 April following
a downgrade in Spain’s sovereign rating £40m on call with Santander
was recalled. The position remains under review.

Current deposits are shown in Appendix 1.

LONG TERM BORROWING

10.

11.

12.

The Council has not undertaken any new long term borrowing since
February 2009. In 2008-09 of the budgeted requirement of £49.2m we
borrowed £40m. We have not borrowed any of the 2009-10 requirement
of £106.2m and the budgeted requirement for 2010-11 is £74.4m.

Prior to October 2008 the Council’s approach to long term borrowing
was to seek to take advantage of short term movements in rates and
borrow at advantageous points in the rate cycle. A year’s borrowing
would be taken in 3-5 steps to reduce the risk of being caught out by
unexpected volatility in interest rates.

Local authorities are not allowed to borrow solely to have funds to invest
and KCC have never done this. However because there was a large
ongoing borrowing requirement we were able to borrow at advantageous
times.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\3\0\A10001303 8\19&@@s@@4anagement0.doc



13.

14.

15.

16.

A key factor in the period up to October 2008 was that short term rates
on deposits were higher than the long term borrowing rates. We were
therefore able to borrow long term funds and in the short term earn more
than we were paying in interest.

The relationship between short and long term interest rates has been
transformed by the dramatic reduction in base rates. So typically now
we are receiving 1% on call account deposits but the 50 year PWLB rate
has been between 4.49% and 4.82%.

Given this position we have taken a deliberate decision, reflected in the
Treasury Strategy, of running down the level of cash balances. This
decision also reflects reducing risk in a volatile market. Nevertheless,
this strategy has a natural duration period and cashflow projections
would suggest the need to borrow within the next 12 months.

In the last week of May long term gilt rates moved down and this was
reflected in long term PWLB rates. On 25 May the Director of Finance
in-consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance for Finance, the
Leader and TAG borrowed £50m, £25m at 4.27% (22-22.5 years) and
£25m at 4.29% (38.5 — 39 years). These are highly advantageous long
term rates and rates have since gone up. We also undertook a forward
deal to re-finance £50m of maturing loans in August 2011, at a rate of
3.83%.

ICELANDIC RECOVERY PROCESS

17.

18.

It is well documented that at the time of the global banking failure, Kent
County Council (KCC) had a total of some £50m deposited in Icelandic
banks. Some £33m related to core KCC cashflow, £1m held on behalf of
Kent Fire and the rest belonging to the Kent Pension Fund. (It should be
noted that the Pension Fund was unusually holding high cash deposits
at this time to avoid the serious deterioration in equity values that would
otherwise have occurred).

The following paragraphs set out in some detail the position of each
bank where monies are deposited. While it is noted that we have now
reached the expected stage where “preferential creditor” status is being
tested in Icelandic courts, the legal advice continues to be that this
status will be upheld. This means that some 93% of the deposited
monies will be returned. This view is expected to be supported by the
imminent LAAP (Local Authority Accounting Practice) Bulletin and the
issue has been discussed fully with KCC’s external auditor as part of the
2009-10 accounts closure process.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\3\0\A10001303 S\R@g@a@d’ManagementO.doc



19. Heritable

(1) The Heritable recovery process is proceeding as the administrator
initially set out. Ernst and Young have_increased their base case
recovery to 79-85% and to date we have received the following

payments:

July 2009 16.13pin £
December 2009 12.66p in £
March 2010 6.19p in £

This gives a total return of £6.4m to date out of a total exposure of
£18m and we anticipate quarterly returns through 2010 and 2011.

(2) A trust law issue which relates to the last deposit with Heritable is
being pursued through the courts with KCC and the Financial
Services Compensation Scheme.

20. Glitnir and Landsbanki

(1) The total exposure to Glitnir is £15m and Landsbanki £17m - of this
£32m one-third relates to the Superannuation Fund Committee and
£1m to Fire.

(2) From the earliest visits to Iceland it has been clear that there would
be litigation to confirm the preferred status of depositers. Other
creditors, major banks and bondholders, were bound to challenge
and have little to lose in doing so. The CIPFA guidance for closing
the accounts is a 100% recovery from Glitnir and 95% from
Landsbanki if preferred status holds.

(3) The recovery work is coordinated by a steering committee including
KCC. Bevan Brittan were commissioned at an early stage to
provide the core legal input — they have also involved UK Queens
Council and Icelandic legal advisers. The costs of the legal work is
charged pro-rata to the value of deposits across all local authorities
with deposits in Landsbanki and Glitnir.

(4) In Appendix 2 based on a template provided by Bevan Britten the
legal process is set out.

(5) Bevan Brittan and Logos will be providing advice on merits once
the written submissions have been filed. Either way it is in the
Council’s interests to participate in the litigation for the following
reasons:

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\3\0\A10001303 8\19&'@@s@@4anagement0.doc



(6)

(a) If the Council does not do so it will need to withdraw its
objection and accept the decisions of the winding up board.
On Landsbanki this would mean foregoing the claim for
interest and costs. It would also leave the winding up board
to argue the Councils’ claims are deposits entitled to enjoy
priority without the benefit of the full factual background. This
will increase the risk of the general unsecured creditors
succeeding in their arguments that the Council’s claims are
not deposits entitled to enjoy priority.

(b) On Glitnir it would mean accepting the winding up board’s
decision that claims are general unsecured claims and
foregoing the claim for interest and costs. This would reduce
potential recoveries by approximately 70%.

In Appendix 3 the Form of Authority required by Bevan Brittan is
attached. This was signed by the Director of Finance under
delegated powers to meet the deadlines of participating in the
litigation. This approach is endorsed by the Director of Law &
Governance.

21. Action Against Bank Management

On 10 May the Gilitnir Resolution Committee informed the Informal
Creditors Committee that it was commencing legal proceedings against
some individuals who had held senior positions in the Glitnir bank prior
to its collapse. A figure of $2bn was referred to which would make a
significant difference to the return from the bank for non-preferred
creditors if the funds could be recovered. The position will be closely
monitored.

RECOMMENDATION

22. Members are asked to:

Accept TAG’s recommendation to extend the maximum duration of
deposits from 6 to 12 months.

Note the borrowing undertaken.

Note the litigation in Iceland on the Glitnir and Landsbanki claims.

Nick Vickers
Head of Financial Services

Ext: 7000 4603

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\3\0\A10001303 S\R@g@a@@ManagementO.doc



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



APPEND) X

Dexia Bank

£10,000,000.00

_|Heritable Bank Ltd

Dosnts

Total Belgian Bank

£10,000,000.00
A

-£2,959,121.00)

Icelandic
Bank

Total Ieladic

Hentable Bank Lt

| -£2323.110.00

-£1,136,429.10

icelandic

| O[Bank |

Bank Deposits £43,931,339.90 ,_
|Fixed Deposit _|Barclays Bank £5,000,000.00 6.8|UK Bank
Same Day Call
Account Barclays Bank £31,400,000.00 0.7|UK Bank
Same Day Call
Account Lloyds HBOS £34.988,284.59 0.85|UK Bank
Callable Deposit [Lloyds HBOS £5,000,000.00] 7.53|UK Bank
LIBOR Fixed Royal Bank of
|Deposit Scotland £5,000,000.00{ 1.25281|UK Bank
Callable Rate  |Royal Bank of
Flipper Scotland £5,000,000.00 1.9|UK Bank
Same Day Call |Royal Bank of
Account Scotland £30,000,000.00 1.15|UK Bank

Total UK Bank

Deposits £116,388,284.59 —

Nationwide Building UK Building
HFixed Deposit _|Society £5,000,000.00 6.25|Society
LIBOR Fixed Principality Building UK Building
Deposit |Society £5,000,000.00] 1.25688|Society

Yorkshire building

Saciety (formerly

'Chelsea Building UK Building
Fixed Deposit _|Society) £5,000,000.00 6.25|Society

Total UK Building

Society Deposits £15,000,000.00]

Debt Management
Fixed Deposit _ [Office £2,550,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.

Debt Management ’

Fixed Deposit _|Office £6,000,000.00 0.25|UK Govt.

Debt Management
Fixed Deposit _|Office £2 850,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.

Debt Management
Fixed Deposit _|Office £6,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.

Page 85




Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _ [Office £6,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit  |[Office £9,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _ |Office £6,000,000.00 0.25|UK Govt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _ |Office £3,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _|Office £3,600,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

|Fixed Deposit _|Office £6,000,000.00 0.25|UK Govt.

| Debt Management

Fixed Deposit  |Office £6,000,000.00] 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _ |Office £5,150,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

|Fixed Deposit _|Office £7,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _|Office £4,200,000.00 0.25[UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _ |Office £6,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _|Office £11,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _|Office £6,000,000.00 0.25|UK Gowt.

) Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _ |Office £19,500,000.00 0.25|UK Govt.
Debt Management

Fixed Deposit _ |Office £34,000,000.00 0.25[UK Gowt.
Total UK Govt.
Deposits £149,850,000.00
Grand Total of All
Deposits £335,169,624.49

Page 86




APPENDIX 2

LEGAL PROCESS

(1)

Following the implementation of Emergency legislation in Iceland at
the time of the banks’ collapse deposits were elevated to priority
claims ranking alongside wages and other claims under Icelandic
insolvency legislation. The Council, through Bevan Brittan, lodged
its claims in the insolvency (the equivalent of a proof of debt in the
UK) claiming depositor priority for the outstanding deposit, penalty
interest and costs.

In November last year the Landsbanki winding up board accepted
the principal amount of the Council’s claim as a priority claim under
the amended insolvency legislation but rejected the claims for
penalty interest and costs.

The Glitnir winding up board rejected the Council’s claim for
priority. It accepted the principal amount claimed as a general
unsecured claim, and rejected the claims for interest and costs.

Bevan Brittan, on the council’s behalf filed formal objections in
accordance with Icelandic procedure to: (a) the decision of the
Landsbanki winding up board to reject the claims for interest and
costs and (b) the decision of the Glitnir winding up board in all
respects.

General unsecured creditors who stand to lose if the Council and
other wholesale depositors secure priority status filed formal
objections in relation to the decisions of both winding up boards
and challenged the constitutionality of the changes to the
insolvency legislation.

Mediations took place in January and February in accordance with
Icelandic procedure to attempt to resolve the issues in dispute.
These were unsuccessful and the winding up board of both
Landsbanki and Glitnir selected test cases from within the
wholesale depositor group which have now referred the matter to
the Icelandic District Court to resolve. The council is one of the test
cases.

The non-test cases are also being referred to court as there is
current uncertainty around whether decisions on the test cases will
be binding on the non-test case claims. It is anticipated that these
claims will be stayed pending final decisions on the test cases.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\3\0\A10001303 S\R@g@/l@ﬁndix%).doc



(8) The LGA, Bevan Brittan, Logos (Icelandic counsel) and UK
specialist counsel are representing the affected councils and each
council needed to confirm that Bevan Brittan are instructed to
represent them in the Icelandic proceedings to secure a decision as
to whether or not the wholesale deposit claims are entitled to
priority under the Icelandic insolvency regime and to penalty
interest and costs. Distributions to creditors will not be made until
the courts have made a decision.

(9) This process entails the following main stages: reference to the
Icelandic District Court of the issues in dispute, consideration and
determination by the lcelandic District Court, possible lodging of or
responding to appeal(s) in the Icelandic Supreme Court;
subsequent distributions to creditors by the winding up board as
part of the formal winding up process (this will be either as a
general unsecured or priority creditor).

(10) The current position is that the Landsbanki test cases have been
referred to the District Court and non-test cases (including this
Council’'s) have been mediated. These will be referred to the court
shortly. In respect of Glitnir, the winding up board is considering
whether to refer the non-test cases to court. Once this is agreed
they will also be referred to court.

(11) Initial hearings will take place, possibly in May 2010, when
preliminary matters will be considered and a timetable will be set
for the filing of written submissions. Once submissions are filed
there will then be a review hearing at which further directions will be
considered and the trial date set.

(12) Whilst it is too early to assess when the matter will come to trial
and how long the trial may last, it is unlikely to occur before
November 2010. Judgement will be delivered within four weeks of
the trial closing. Each party will have two weeks from the date of
judgement to appeal the decision to the Icelandic Supreme Court.
It is too early to assess the merits, process and timescales for an
appeal.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\3\0\A10001303 8\19&'@@@81dix20.d0c



WPEND Y 2

FORM OF AUTHORITY
ICELANDIC LIMGATION

We refer to our litigation briefing dated 168 March 2010 outlining the court process going forward
("the Briefing Paper”™) and the litigation costs tudget ("the Budget”).

The claims you have filed against the insolvent lcelandic banks Landsbanid and Glitnir are
disputed in various respects and will now be determined by the Icelandic courts. The purpose of
this farm of autharity is to obtain written conftrmation from you that you understand and accept
the cosis conseguences of participating in theee proceedings and that you consent to us
continuing to act on your behatf.

Conflicts and duty of disciosure

We currently act for the LGA (as agent), who represent the inferests of the affected member
authorities in refation to the Icelandic banks and the other deposhor creditors whose interests
are aligned with those of the affected authorities. We have previously agreed terms of
engagement with the LGA and the other creditors we represent. Those terms address how we
would deal with conflicts should any arise.

Asmebaisdﬂndaﬂnsmeﬁnmaoorﬂddmwwon&ubeﬁmyeﬁemwbms
to take a strategic course of aclion which conflicts with that of member atthorifies and/or is likely
to prejudice it.

On present infformation no actual conflict exists or is ikely to arise. We will, however, keep this
under review as further information becomes available. if we consider there is the potential for
such a conflict to occur we will netify you at the earfiest opportunity.

In those circumstances we would continue to act for the LGA and its member authorities (and
any other creditors for whom there was no such conflict) but would cease to act for the other
party(ies). n the event a conflict arose between member authorities we would continue to act
for the majority by reference to the amount of their claims.

Under the Solicitors Code of Conduct 2007 we also have a duty to:

Kings Orchard 1 Queen Street Bristol BS2 0HQ
T 0870 194 1000 £ 0870 194 1001 DX 7828 Bristot 1
www.bevanbrittan.com

Page 89




1 keep your affaivs confidential; and

2 disciose to you information of which we are aware which is material to your matter
regardiess of the source of the information.

In order to preserve owr duty to keep each of our dient’s affsirs confidential we agreed with the
LGA and our uther clients that we would act en the basis that each of our chenis affectsd by the
{celendic Banks knows that our firm, or 2 memissr of otxr finm, helds or might hold, infermation
(which has been disclosed to us by anaiher creditor of the loslandic banks on behell of whom we
act) in relation o this matter which we cannot disclose. So, for exampie, we-would not disclose
to Oxford University financial information confidential to the LGA and vice verea. This will
obviously not include information which is in the public domein andfor wiiich is not ofient
confidential.

Those arrangements will continue to apply to the HMtigation. This should not, in any way,
compromiee owr abiiity to act in the best interests of member auvthorilties or any other clients as
this is information to which they would not have access in any event.

Scope of ongoing work

We Wil manage (with assistance from our Icetendlic coursel at Logos) the day to day
management of your claim(s) before the lcelandic courts. We will advise you in conneclion with
the proceduraf steps to trial and we will assist you In cotmptying with your opligations to the court.
We will obtain from Logos advice on your behalf in cornediion with any loelandic poings of law
(whether substantive or procedural). We will also obtain expert advice from specialist counsel f
appropriate.

in practice, the day to day management of this matier will remain unchanged. We will cortinue
to obtain instructions from the LGA (as the aulliorities’ ageant), from the stsering: commitios(s)
who coriiinue to represent your interests or froar you divect o8 appropriate.  However, Tor major
steps in the lifigation (including, for exarrpie, the Ay of witten submissions) we will obtain
instrucions from all Creditors direct. When we obtdin inslructions dicectly fiom you, we will
accept instructions from the nemed individuals (up to @ maximumn of three) who have provided
the relevant confidentiality underiaking to the us or the LGA. If sutlwxitios have any queries
about their claim(s) please contact Stephen Jones and Piall DasGupta in the first instance et the
LGA. Other Creditors should contact Ben Palmer, Wesley O'Brien or Virginia Cooper at Beven
Brittan.

We ask that authorities contact the LGA in the first instance to help mit costs.
Costs
Qur estimate of the costs that will be incurred in the court precesadings going forward is set out In

the Budget. This wili be updated from time to time. You wiff pay a proportion of the costs
incumed for the work that we camy out pro-reted accovding to the value of your daims (in

Page 2
M-4738853-3

Page 90




accordance with tenns agreed as between the Creditors). We will confinue to invoice the LGA
and the LGA will centinue 1o invoice your authority for e agreed share. This sirangement has
been agreed for administrative purposes only. The LGA will rerain a trangpaerent vehide for the
invoicing and payment of the costs that your aufhority incurs in this maller. Your authority will
remain severally Nable for its agreed share of the costs.

We have agreed with the LGA that we will instruct Logos Legal Services in iceland and UK

Counsel on your behalf. We will pass the appropriate portion of these costs on to you and the
other members of the client group as divect costs.

In erder to assist the LGA with the administrative burden of invoiting your autherity and the other
affected member authorities on a moenthly basls, wehwepmpuedtohememm
mmwmmmmmwmmmm
account for each authority’s praportion of the estimated costs that will be tieurved going forward
as set out in the Budget. The LGA will confirn these amounts to you in advance of payment
being requested.

if the Icelandic courts were to make an adverse costs award against your authority (at any stage
mﬁwproceedivs)ﬁsmpodﬂﬁﬂyouuemﬁvatmmw et the: LGA, will be
jointly and severally liable to pay these costs (on the same pro-rated basis @ &s agreed share
for our isgal costs). If, for any reason, your authonity elects to discortinue ite claimis), your
authority will be responsible for the appropriale propertion of all costs and any adveyee costs
awards made by the court up to the date of disconlinuance. Coels Incinred after thet date will be
reapportioned as between the remaininig authorifies.

Limit of {iability

Please note that our Hability to your authority is limited to £3million per claim.
Acknowledgement and acceptance of terms

Piease sign the acknowledgement and acceptance below and retum & to me as soon as

possibie to confirm that you have read and understood the above, and the infermation contained
within the Briefing Paper and the Budget and wigh us fo act on your behaff.

Bevan Britten LLP
18 March 2010

Page 3

M-4738853-3

Page 91




Acknowiedgement and acceptance

| confirm that | have read, understood and accept the above information, and the information
contained within the Briefing Paper and the Budget. | confirm that the authority consents to
Bevan Brittan LLP acting on its behalf in connection with the proceedings before the lcelendic
courts arising out of the winding up of [Landsbanki / Gitnir].

Position..D.!?:@iﬁ.Qfe.&...Qf F‘Wcz

...................................

Page 4
M-4T738853-3

Page 92




To

By:

Agenda ltem 6

Cabinet — 14 June 2010

Mr Hill, Cabinet Member for Community Services
Amanda Honey, Managing Director Communities

Subject: An Alcohol Strategy for Kent

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: The Alcohol Strategy for Kent sets out the way forward for agencies

across Kent to work in partnership to prevent the harm caused by
alcohol misuse. It aims to provide a structure for the development of
treatment programmes, a preventative strategy for adults and young
people and a community approach to issues such as policing, licensing
and trading standards. It sets in context the current resources allocation
and the necessary improvements to ensure that the County of Kent has
in place an effective and responsive system.

FOR APPROVAL

1.1

3.2

Background

The Kent Action on Alcohol Steering Group consulted partners, agencies, Kent
County Council, Cabinet and Members, Districts, Boroughs and Parish Councils
during 2009. The result of that consultation concluded with the drafting of the
attached Kent Alcohol Strategy being presented to Cabinet for approval.

Policy Context

The Strategy has been developed using the framework recommended by the
National Treatment Agency and has been supported by Alcohol Concern,
agencies from across Kent County Council, Police and Health Services. It reflects
the national evidence base of the harm caused by alcohol to health,
employment/industry and criminal justice and makes local comparators from
which to build and develop service responses. In 2008 Kent County Council
convened a Select Committee to review the health implications and cost of alcohol
misuse. The Select Committee report provided an excellent foundation for the
development of the Kent Action of Alcohol Steering Group and indeed the
foundation of the health perspective of this alcohol strategy.

Process

The Kent Alcohol Strategy sets out Kent’s position in respect of treatment for
young people and adults, the activity being undertaken to address community
safety concerns and the mechanisms for managing the impact of alcohol misuse
within the public realm.

The strategy identifies priorities for action which include:

Page 93



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

a. Communication: how to convey important public health messages without
alienating the general public, ensuring that key professionals have a
understanding of alcohol misuse, its symptoms and outcomes, and seeking to
have an informed employer group that can support and manage workplace
issues

b. Treatment: improving the current level of treatment provision across a range
of needs from prevention, early diagnosis to acute care

c. Community Safety: working with the Police and other Criminal Justice
agencies to develop responses that minimise the impact of alcohol misuse
and within, for example the prison system, that education programmes are
developed alongside treatment

d. Licensing: working within a partnership arrangement to ensure the intentions
of the Licensing Act 2003 are achieved and fulfilling the Towards 2010
strategy to work with off-licenses and other trade organisations

e. Children & Young People: working with education, schools and colleges to
provide evidence based programmes about alcohol and where necessary
providing the appropriate level of treatment interventions

f. Hidden Harm: as outlined above

Resource Implications

The Strategy highlights the need for a coherent and rigorous analysis of
expenditure relating to alcohol. Kent has used national data to achieve an
estimate of the impact of alcohol misuse across the county and we are currently
commissioning the Public Health Resource Unit (PHRU) to give a more in depth
assessment of investment against outcomes.

The key funding providers will remain Health and Social Care in particular for
those people where alcohol misuse has reached a chronic state. The Police and
other emergency services make a considerable investment when responding to
disorder, road accidents and injury and fires within the home, all of which will
continue to arise unless the messages contained within this strategy are achieved.

Through the KDAAT partnership some £2m will be invested in alcohol treatment
for adults during 2010/11, PCT £1,770k, KCC £118k, and Probation £104k.
These are committed funds through contractual arrangements. KDAAT Young
People‘s Team commission services that are mainly drug and alcohol generic,
and in 2010/11 planned expenditure on these services will be in the region of
£1.4m. The funding in 2010/11 is confirmed and again, subject to contractual
arrangements.

The Supporting People Programme provides funding for a wide range of client
needs and the commissioning of services target provision that supports both drug
and alcohol support and generic service provision. In 2010/11 planned annual
expenditure on substance misuse contracts is £755k the expenditure is subject to
contractual arrangement and is committed spend within this financial year.

All services relating to alcohol commissioning will be subject to review within the
emerging financial frameworks and all services are considering options and
planning a process of implementing to manage and mitigate the impact on service
delivery should there be a reduction in funding levels.

In the short term, in the event of a significant reduction in funding levels the
service contracts incorporate a provision for parties to exit or vary the contract with

Page 94



5.2

6.1.

a short notice period of up to 6 months. The Supporting People Commissioning
Body and KDAAT Board will agree the actions for the management of resources,
partners funding, and/or use of ring fenced reserves to support the contracts
during the notice period.

Conclusion

The Alcohol Strategy for Kent is a partnership strategy that aims to address
alcohol misuse, provide improved information, advice and guidance and combat
the negative outcomes within our communities when the consumption of alcohol
leads to disorder or other injury. It is a strategy that will be progressed as new
information comes forward, treatment services improve and our response via
policing or other emergency services are developed. The Strategy is a significant
Partnership agreement that will lead to enhanced service provision and a better
understanding of the impact of alcohol misuse in our communities and how best to
promote safe, sensible and social drinking.

Following approval, the Strategy will be launched in July 2010. The work of the
Alcohol Steering Group will continue to ensure that effective services are
delivered and that Kent’s response to alcohol and alcohol misuse keeps pace with
the emerging agendas on health and treatment, licensing and criminal justice.

Recommendation

Cabinet Members are asked to approve the attached Kent Alcohol Strategy 2010
- 2013

Author of Report: Angela Slaven
Job Title: Director, Youth and Community Support Services
Tel. No: 01622 221696

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



€L0Cc-010c

ABajeu}g |0yod|y Jusy

dnouc) Buliaa)g [0Yoo|y UO UOI}IY Judly




wF....................................................................... 80583_.2
O soINSEOW SWIOANG ‘2
S — SJUBWABUELIY SOUBLISAOS ‘||
S LieH USPPIH 101

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

m_\ .......................... Q_Qomn_ mc30> Ucm C@-_U_:\_O @OP

G e mC_WCQO_I_ S0l
P ————— fioleS ANUNWWos 4oL
T — Juswieal] INPY €01
T — LOREDIUNWIWOD) Z°0)
o TR A @@wm‘_”—w L'OL
P TR —— uoROY 10} SANLIOL ‘0L
T ——— WieH USppIH S'6
L seeeeeeeeesssssmsssssssssssss s s|doay BUNOA 6
Y — BUISUSOIT €6
T ——— 101 AIUNWWOD Z°6
T — S80INIBS JUBWIESI L HNPY L6
e E: Buluaddey Apuaiing s| 1eUM ‘6
Lo 92UapIAT [e207 :0YOI]Y Jo J3oedw] ay] g
L 92UapIAg [euolieN :|oYod|y jo 3oedw) ayy "/
P ——— uOIE}INSUOY JOP|OYBNEIS "9
PR ——————— syur a16erens A9y S
G e .SONO.-QG_< Q_r_m._w_htﬁﬂ VAR
G erneerer s saAoalqo ¢
J7 e wiy 'z
e pJoMmaiod |
g Alewing sapnosxg
Sjuajuo9n

Page 98



os|e AbBajens siy| "Jojoey Buibisws 1o juesiiubis e aq Aew asnsiw
[oyooe alaym saljiwe) Ajnuspl 0} paddinbs ase ws)sAs uoneonps
pue aled [eoos oyl ul Buplom asoyy jeyy ainsua 0} AbBajens
WwJeH UsppIH juay ay) Jo uonodalip ay} Juswa|dwod [im Abajens siy|
‘'sialed pue sjualed Jo asnsiw |oyoole ayl Aq pelosye Ajeslenpe
uayo ale ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyo ey} Buisiubooal saljiwe} uiyim
asnsiw |oyooje jo joedwil 8y} uo snooj Buisealoul oq [IM Blay]

‘uoisinoid 92IA18s BAISUBYaIdwoD
alow pue Jopim e aplaold 0] SaoIAIBS Jsieloads Jayjo pue
swwelbold souspuadopu| bunioddng pue sidoad Buiuoddng ay;
yim MJom pue uoddns
JO YJomjau 8y} asealoul
MM 1vvaM sjeulp
|eloueuly Buibus|jeyo
Alan e awooaqg 0] Ay
S| Jeym wolj paAalyoe
S| Jydusq  wnwixew
ay) 1ey) ainsua
0} alnjipuadxs asnoud
pue sadinosal  |ood
0] sadolnes  uoneqold
pue aoljod 8y} ‘yiesy
ul siauped yym MJom o}
anupuod |Im  (LYVaM)
wea] UuOOY |OYoodly
pue Bnig ey ayj

‘epuabe uoneonps
pue s|jooyds ay}
yum Bupiom pue wliey
wug) Buoj ayr Bulonpal
ur  9jos Buiseaioul

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

ue Ae(d |Im yjjeay ulyim saoialas aleo Atewld ay] ‘swsjqo.d
Buibiows Jo uoneoynuapl pue uonuaAlswul Aes ayy usyibuans o)
pue S82IAISS JudWeal) 0} SS90k 8y} 8sealdul 0} syaas Abajesis ay |

sjoyJew |iejal
pue a21jod ay) usamiaq juswdojarap Buldauold e ‘ewaydss (dyoM)
diysiauped |oyooy Ajlunwiwo) juay ay} Buidojaasp Jeyuny Aq siy}
9A8IYoe 0] pue |oyooje Jo ajes ay) pue Buisuadl| uo S|oJu0d 8y} Jo
Woddns pue uonenuiuod ayj ainsua o} Ajioud e Jno s}as )| "asnsiw
[oyooje jo ysi pue Buipueisiapun ay} arosdwi o} sdnolb |eloos pue
SaIIIUNWWOD JO Ylpealq 8y} O} UOljewlojul JUd)SISuod pue ajelnodoe
Bulnsua sapnjoul yoiym juayj 4o} sanuoud ay) 1no syes Absjens ayl

sa|es 9|qisuodsal ainsua 0} AJisnpul |Iejad 8y} YIIM HIOM
pue Alessadau Usym Juswieal) 0] SS920. ‘UOIIeWIOojuUl pue uonesnpa
ybnoiyy uonueaaid sassalppe leyy saniunuoddo pue sainsesw
Jo abuel e ybnolyy wiey juanaid pue wliojul 0} syoes Abojens
8yl ‘'aJn}nd pue wWO}sSno ‘uoneliqaled oy} Jo led se |oyooje asn
0] anunuod 0} ybu syl AjqiIsuss pue Ajgjes JULIp OYm SauNWUod
Jno uiyum Ajuolew ay)y Ausp 03 3ees jou saop AbBsjeng oyl
yse] xa|dwoo e sI Aem aalsod e ul sepnune abueyo pue A18100s
pue yjjeay 0} Sysi 8y} Jo o1gnd ay} Wojul 0} paau ay| ‘Judy| SSoloe
selouabe aonsn( [eulwd pue aled |eloos ‘yjeay ay) Joj Ajonud Asy
B S| S3IIUNWWOo2 JNO UIYIM 9SNSIW [oyodje wodj swiey ayy buipioe |

‘sjuased Jiey pue ajdoad
BunoA ‘uaip|iyo 0} sebessaw Jualsisuod Bunesiunwwod ‘subledwed
[EUONBU JO SS820NS pue Wnudawow 8y} uo pjing [im ABajens ayl
‘|leoog ‘e|qisuag ‘ejeg :Abojens |euoneu 800z Yl JO YIomawel)
9yl ulyum |oyooje 0} sepnuye oaainisod sjowold pue asnsiw
[OYoolB yum pajeinosse suiey ayy o} bBunejas sanssl jo ajioud
ay] esiel pue 1ybiybiy ‘wuogul 0} swie pue suonesiueblo jo abuels
e yum diysiauped ul padojansp usaq sey Abajels |0yooy Uy ay L

Klewiwing aA13NooXg

Page 99



€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘uoddns ejendoidde pue Jims 0} sS800E ainsus 0) Aemyjed
ay) s)as Abojenys ay) padojeasp aaey Jo Buibiewse ale swsjqoid
alaym asoy} 104 ‘Aem ajes pue Ac Jey e ul suoiseddo |euossad Jayjo
pue suoneiga|ed Aofua 0} anunl 0 0} SBIIUNWWOD pue Ssaljiwe)
Buimojie joyoole yum diysuoneal aapisod e jo juswdoarsp ay)
9|qeus pue wliojul 0} usaplLm siI ABajens syl Jos) Ajlunwwod ay}
JO 9joJ e pue salouabe jualaylp Jo ajoJ4 ay} ybiybiy pue ainsus 0}
padojanap uaaq sey AiaAlep Jes|o e pue dnois) Bulss)g |oyoo|y uo
uoIjOY JUdY By} JO MIom ayj Joy uoiodalip ay) sapinoid AbBsjess ay|

‘'swinioj pue sdnoib aous|oIA dl3SaWIOP
|[eoo] yum sdiysuoneds Bupjom Jaso|0 o} pasu 8y} sajowold

Page 100



- Aunwwod aAIsnjoul pue JueIqiA

e Jo ued se ‘Ajqisuodsal pue Ajajes pakolus aq ued |oyooje jey}
8INSUS 0} JBpPJO Ul ‘[0Y0d|e YlIM paleIoosse swiey 8y} 8onpal o],

S|

wie s} pesjsul ‘joyooje ,ueq, o} bulhl jou s| ABsjesis siy] ‘spyeusaq
pue S}S00 9say) usamiaq aosueljeq ay} aroidwi o} si ABajesis siy} Jo
uonudluUl 8Y] "8snsIW |oyooje wody asue Ajgeyaaul yoiym swajqoud
9y} ssaippe 0} Juepoduwi Si }I Ing SSI|EID0S pue 8Al| 0} ydiym ui 8oeld
ajes e s| jJuayl ‘Awouods [eoo| 8y} jJo ued [euonipel; pue juedyiubis
e sI pue ainsesg|d yonw saAlb osje [oyodle ‘IOA MM 8yl pue
U8y ylog ur wajqosd Buimolb e si joyooje Jo uoldwnsuod BAISS99X]

wly ‘¢

"suolIpuod BulAll [B100S pue 3|qisuas ‘ajes sajowold pue
‘wJiey spIoAe Jey} [oyodle yum diysuonelas e ydope pue ||n} 8y} 0} ol
Aolua 03 sjuspisal sjuay Joj doipyoeq
e sopinoid  pue  uoneuswadwi
Jo} sa|dipuud ay) Jno sjes Abajens syl

‘PI9Y siy} ul
pabebus asoy) |e jo suoye ay} uoddns
pue yJom o} AJjigisuodsal e sey [10UnN0)D
Auno) ay| -seAnoslqo pue swie Ino
0] Ajjenuelsgns aynquuod Ajjuaiind jey)
sowuwelboid juswieal} Jud||9oX8 JBY)0
pue selouabe AlejunjoA ‘si0}oas yjeay
olignd pue [ejusw ‘saoinles Aousbliows
pue 9ol0od 8y} epnpPul  8sayl
‘lenjuassa s| selouabe pue suonesjuebio
Jo obues e yum Buppom diysisuped
AleAnoaye AbBajens oyl JoAlep O]

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

"saloyine |eao| pue aoljod ay} yim uoneladooo
ul sesiweaid peasuadl bBulbeuew Joy Ayjgisuodsal 8y} pue
‘suonowold ssjes [oyoole ‘sgjes abelopun se yons seale sepnjoul
SIy| -epeJ} 8suadll ay} ulyum Buppom asoyy jo sanljiqisuodsal
8y} uoddns pue oaaoidwi 0] sanunuoddo syees Abajedss
a3y} pue dJomawely pajenbal B ulyym SHIOM Bpeld) |oyode ayl

‘o|ge|ieAe
apew a(g p|NoYSs SBOIAISS JuswWieal) 0] SS820. ‘OluUoIyd ale swa|qoid
ay) alaym pue juenodwi s AYnoiyip Ul S|enpIAIpUl JO) UOEBWIOUI
0] ssaooe ley] sasiubooal Abejens ay| -uoddns pue djay ‘e@diApe
SS900E UBD SJIBYl0 ‘Alessaoau JI jey) Buunsus ajiym sainses|d
pajeloosse pue Bupuup [e100s Jo sueuaq ay) Aoflus 03} anunuod
0] ‘we|qoud e juasaid jou saop |oyodje woym Jo} ‘sjdoad jo Ajuolew
9yl Moje |m SIy] ‘sinoineysq pue sapnune Bunowoud Ag joyoole
10 Juswabeuew ay) 0} asuodsal e N0 19s 0] swie AbBajesis siy|

‘loyo9je 0} diysuone|al
onews|qoid sswnawos pue Bulkien ayy Jo ainid e sjued
Juswalels siyl ‘pHom syl yum diysuoneds umo Jisyl pue ‘jlom
1B ‘saljiwe} uiyum sannoiip Buiseasoul ybnouy) pajeisuowap si siy}
pue wa|qolid Jueonubis e sawodaq asnsiw [oyod|e ajdoad swos 104

“Jayiabojje saAl| Ajiep Jiay} Wwouj |[oYyooje apnjoxa ‘SWwa)sAs Jallaq
Jayjo Jo snolbial Joj )1 8q ‘A18I00S INO JO SUOI}O8S BWOS ‘|oyoo|e
JO uondwnsuod 8y} PaAJOAUl BABY Jey) sawl} peq Ajjeuoisesdo
pue unj jnoge sauO)s aleys pue Ajqisuss |oyooje Aolus Auelp

‘Sjuana Alojeliqe|ad Jayjo pue sAepyuiq ‘sbuippam
se yons ‘sBuusyieb |eoos Jo ued si ) JuswAolus pue ainses|d
Jo 824nos e se a|doad Auew Aq usas si A18100S JNO UIYIM [OYOO|Y

plomalod |

Page 101



‘wJey pajejal joyooje Buipoey ul pabebus aie sian
yjoq 1ey) ainsua |im Abajens ay} Jo uonejusws|dwi ay] loyebo)
Bupjiom aise sianp om) asay) JI 1oedwi ue aaey Ajuo |im ABajens
|[OYO2|e SJud)| "S9oUaIayIp |BD0] JO JUNOJDE 8Ye) pue |9Ad] ybnoloq
ousip pue Alunoo je siauled abebus |im yoeoudde diysisuped
anlsuayaldwod Ajny v “sanljiqisuodsal Buipely pue Ajajes Ajunwuwod
Sey pue aJed |[eID0S pue uonesnpa Jo uoisiaoid ayy Jo} djgisuodsal
S| 1ounod Aunod eyl -Aejes Ajunwwod 0} pue  Buisuaol|
0} Bunejas sanqisuodsal aAey sjousip pue sybnolog ‘joyooe
0} uoneal ul saljiqisuodsal 8ABY S|IOUNOD J0MlSIp pue ybnouoq
8y} pue [1ounod Aunod ay} ylog -sued jsow ul s|IDUN0) ysued
SEe ||loM Se juswuianob [Boo| JO SsJal} oM} yum eale able| e si jusy

‘ssa00.4d
olbajens oy} JO [9AS] AIBAS B Pa)NSU0D puB PBAJOAUl 8] |[IM
suonesiuebio Ajunwwod pue AIRJUN[OA ‘SI9JBO puB SJ9sSh 92IAI9S

Juswoaalby ealy |00
ay} pue diysiauped oibajels 8207 ay} Jo sueld ay} 0} Ul SY00|
[0yooe uo Miom Aue jey) ainsus 0} sjuswabuelie seudoiddy °
djey buiyoass
J0 Buipaau sjdoad 0} pue 21gnd ay} 0} sabessawl JuUd)SISUOD °
|[oyooje Aq pasneod wuey ayj bulonpas 0} yoeoidde JusisiSuod .
apel) pasuadl| ay) Se |[om se suolesiuebio Ajunwwod pue
Aejunjon ‘Alojnje}s usamjaq UOIBUIPIO0D pue uoljetadood) °
uonew.lojul jo buueys sjeudoiddy °
paAaIyoe SaWo9)No
ay) pue passalppe aq 0] sanss| ay) Jo Bulpue)siapun paleys vy °
‘Sl a18y] jey}
os suonesiuebio jo abues e abebus jim Abojesis siyj Joyooje 0}
asuodsal vA1}08)je Ue ainsus 0} [eljussse si yoeoidde diysisuped vy

yoeouaddy diysiaulied v ‘v

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘Buppiom diysisuped
uo paseq S| leyl dYomewedy olbolel}s jsngol e 189S O] o
JUBWIS2JI0US Me| ‘AIBSSa08u alaym
‘pue uoneonpa jo swuwelbosd e ybnolyy swsjqoid pajejel
[oyoole bBuidojansp sjdoad BunoA pue ualpjiyo juenaid o] °
Aljigisuodsal |e1o0s Jo asuas
aleudosdde ue yum pue me| ay} UIYIM 0B S)ULIP dlj0yodje
JO 9|es pue uononpodd 8y} ul PaAjoAuUl 8soy) ey} Buunsua
AQ epeJ; pasualll ayy ul saonoeld sjqisuodsal abeinoous o] °
Juswieal) pue aouepinb ‘uonewuoyul bupjoss
S|eNpIAIpUI 1O} S92IAJISS 0} SS900B ASEO pue JIMS aINsud 0] °
wa)sAs aonsnl jeuiwio
ayl 1noybnolyl juswieal] pue suonusAloul  dleudoidde
$S$900E 0] sJapuayo Bulgeus AQ pue JnoiAeyaq |e1o0s-ljue pue
abewep |eulwld ‘awd JUS|OIA pajejal-joyooje Buionpas Aq
JUBWUOIIAUS Jajes e a)eald pue Ajajes Ayunwwod syowold o] °
asnsiw |oyooje Jo joedwl ayj Jo Buipue)siapun pue ssaualeme
olignd Buiseasour Aq wuey peojejps |oyode jusnaid o) o
:a1e ABoje)s siy) Jo soAloalqo ay |

SaAlo3[qQ "¢

Page 102



-8q oym ajdoad jo uolodoid sy} asealoul 0} 6 DWO02INO
BWLID JO [9A8] ||BISAO 8] 8oNpal 0) 0l dwo21nQO
asnge |0yoo|e aonpal 0} SINOABSPUD 9| awo9lNQO

‘(YV1) Wuswaalby ealy [e007 JUSY 8Y) O} UolIppe U]

Jojeoipul ay} subisS [ejiA ul pajoliw ale s}eble) asay] ‘saoue)s
-gns 9|11e|0A J0 |joyooje ‘sbnup ol Buisn Ajuanbaly ajdoad
BunoA jo uoiuodoud sy} 8dnpad 0} pasu ay) 0} Si18jal | YSd

‘sajel
uoiIssiwpe [ejdsoy pajejal uliey-joyoafy buionpal Jo 1able) e
sjas ,sbnup pue joyooje Ag pasneod wliey ay) aonpay, :GZ VSd

(VSd) uswealby a21A18g 21|gnd S,8010 SWOH 8y}
sassalppe ue|d A1aaljep ABajelis |00y 1USY 8yl 1ey) Juenoduwi si |

(unoineyaq
Bunjey ysu Bulonpal - z awo2INo) ue|d s,91doad BunoA pue uaipjiyd
AbBajeng |oyooly pue Bniq s,991j10d 1Usy] °
'so|bajel)s 90Us|0IA dl3sewod °

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

1102-800¢C
Aoljo4 BuisuadlT Jo sjuswale)s [1ouno) Joulsig pue ybnolog

sue|d Aaaliaqg (1 Dd) 1sni] a1en Aewld
selbajens A1ajes Allunwwo) (sdya)) sdiysisuned
uononpay Jeplosig pue  awu) joWsiq  pue  ybnolog

:aJe salbajeu)s [eoo| Aoy ualing

"0} Y|l 0} DUOBWOS pue op 0} Buiylewos ‘ob 0} aleymawos
way) buinb ‘ejdoad BunoA Buamoduwa 10} UOISIA By}

1IN0 S}8S Yoiym Jaded )Y JUBWIUIBAOSD) Y — SIBHBW YINOA
‘g|doad BunoA Buowe asnsiw |oyooje apyoe} 0) sdais

Jenojed N0 18S YdIUM — 800Z UEld UOHOY [OYOIJY YINOA
"SI9PUSYO 10} 8snsiw

|[oyooje Buissaippe Joj ABajels e — 80IAI9S UOIIB]OId [BUOlIBN
- 900z A1enijeq Jo) ABejens v — SiepusyQ buisnsiyy joyooly
|Ooyod|e 10} 82IAI8S padueyu]

AlleuoneN e saypuapl UYdIYym — $00Z JOBHUOD 49 MON
900¢ Y

uoljonpay awil JusioiA 8y} pue sasiwald pasuadl| JO |0JJUod
pue juswabeuew ay) suionob yoiym g£ooz oy buisusoig
8y} SB UdNs JuswWadJojud [0yodle O} payull uone|siba
S92IAJISS Juswieal) |oyodle Jo AlaAljep pue juswdol|aAap 8y} Jo}
YIOMaWEel) 8y} S18S YdIYM — 8Snsipy [0YOI|y J10) 81e0) JO S[opOop
2 OSNSIW [oyooe Buneqwod o) palejal suim Big, Jo Jequinu

B sailjuapl pue away} Jofew e se uoionpal wliey |oyodle
sey yoiym - Abejens yyesay onqnd ayy - yyeeH buisooyd
w'¥00¢ Ul

paysignd Ajeuibuo Abejesys uononpsy wlieH  |oyooly
leuoeN 8y} uo sjepdn 00Z 8U} - [BIO0S 9[qISUSS 8jes

: aJe salba)els jeuoneu Asy Jualin)

"salfo)el)s |eo0| pue [euoneu Bunsixa 108|je. 1snw ABajeus siy |

syul o169jeng Aay g

Page 103



(g SieMuLIp Juspuadap 000‘0E Pue
sJe)uup |njwliey pue snoplezey 000‘00Z INOge aie alsay) Jusy Uj

uapuadeop AjjeoisAyd agq Aew soseo aloAas ul pue
Bupjuup yum wejqoud sjuiap e aAey - siajuup Juspuadaq °
‘[eyusw Jo |eaisAyd
8q Aew yoiym ‘wliey pejejdl-|oyode BWOoS JO BJUSBPIAS
Jeajd moys oym yaam Jad |oyooe JO syun (G JoA0 BujuLp
usWw pue SsjuUN G§& JOAO BupuuLp usWOoM - SISNULIP [NjuleH °
‘asn
|oyod[e Jisy} Jnoge SDIAPE Jolq Woly Jeuaq (s (Im Asyy Ing
Je} 0s swa|qoid pajejal-joyooje uesubls papioAe aney Aew
sJo)ulp 8say| "yoam Jad [oyooje Jo suun g 0} dn pue suunLg
ueyj aiow Bupnjuup usw pue yeam Jad [oyooje Jo syun G¢ 0} dn
pue sjun {| ueyj alow BupjuLp UBWOM - SI9ULIP shoplezeH °
: @Soll0b8)ed 981y} OUl PapIAIP 8q UBD SISXULIp 8say |

‘puelbug
JO 1segj oy} pue uopuoT jo asoy} ueyy Jaybly aie ng ‘suoibal
JByJo }SOW Ul Uey) JOMO| aJe Sajel 8Say| Sjunowe papusawwoosl
Apjoam 8y} poesdxs Ssojews) JO 9%G'G pue Sdew JO Y%Ll
JUSY U] "UBWOM IO} %@ pue usw 1o} %0z Al@rewixoidde payoeal
sey Yoam e Aep auo jses| 1e Bupulp abuiq 1se3 yinosg ay} ul synpe
Jo uoiodoud sy  -gidoad BunoA pue uswom Buowe Ajeroadss
quayl ul Buiblewa aise Bupjuup onews|qold jJo sulened ‘1oAemoOH
"SI9XUIP-UOU JO YSlI MO| JBy}id ale uonendod s juay jo Ajuolew ay]

92UdpPIAT |e207] :|0YOI)Y Jo }oedw| ay] g

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘aseasip pue Asueubaud jo ysu a9y}
Buisealoul ‘joyoaje yonw 00} Bunjurip Jaye xas ajesun
pey Buiaey o) pajiwpe aAey sp|o Jedahk pz-9| UdASS

Ul SUO pUE UBWOM XIS Ul BUO ‘UdW dAl} Ul dUO uey) IO o
‘'swa|qo.d
[oyooje |eyualed Ag pejosye uaipjiyo uolw ¢ o} dn o

‘slead ua) jsed ay} Jano 9,6/
JO sl B — asnsiw |oyode wod} Bunnsal sieplosip |eJnoireyaq

pue |ejusw Joj |eudsoy o0} suoissiwpe (000‘9ZL J9AQ o
"JuswijeaJ) |oyoale jsijeroads uo Jeak yoes juads uoliw 563 o
‘'sawl} yead je suoissiwpe 39V Jo %0/ 0} dn o
"JapJosIp
olignd pue swuo palejas |oyode Buipoer uads uoliq £/3 o
(000°09¢) @snqge ansswop Jo syusploul payodal
le Jo piiy} e pue (Uoljiw Z'|) SSWHD JUS[OIA || JO jley punoly .
"9SNsIW [oyoole yjim Aem awos
ul pajeroosse aJe yoiym Jeak sad syjesp sjgejuanald 000°‘Z2 °
-»dpNoul

asnsiw |oyooje JO SJSOD |eIOUBUIL pUB uewnNny [enuue ay) ‘Ajjeuonen

92UdPIAT [euUOl}BN :[OYOI]Y jJo }oedw] ayl .

"‘asnsiw [oyoo|e 0} asuodsal ay) Buidojensp
Jayyny Joy seapl asodoud 0y Ajlunuoddo ue papnoul Yyoiym juans ue
yum Lodal saniwwio) 10919S 8yl payoune| Alunod ayl 800z AINr uj

‘spadxa
|[euoneu pue siapinoid 92IAI9S ‘S|IOUNOD [BO0| ‘uoljejuasaldal Jasn
90IA8s Bulpnjoul siapjoyayels Asy UlIM UOIe}NSUOD SAISUSIXS ue
punoJe padojaAsp Sem YOIym ‘@snsijy [OYO|y UO 99)ILUWIOY) 109|9S
(D9M) s 1ouno) Aluno) jusy Jo Woday ayy uo spjing Absajens siy|

uone}nsuoy Ispjoysyels ‘9

Page 104



"/-900¢ Ul €0% 0} 900¢-500Z

ul g/z wol} ‘pasealoul sey pajsalie ajdoad BunoA jo Jequinu

8yl "/-900Z Ul 0S6'G O} 9-G00Z Ul ZE.L'G wolf pasealoul
S9OUSYO MUUP JO) S}S8lEe }npe JO Jaqwnu a8y} ‘Jusy U °

'2-900¢

ul $G°L 01 8-/661 Ul SUOISSIWPE G88 WO} pajqnop jsoul|e sey
U8y Ul suoissiwpe |ejdsoy oioads-joyodle Jo Jaquunu ay | °

"L/Z 0} GL| WOJ} pasealoul

wswieal; ul gdoad BunoA jo Jaqunu sy} pousad oawes

3y} U] "2-900¢ O} 9-G00¢ WOl pIa|gnop uey) aiow ssnsiw
[oyooje oy} Juswieal) Buiobispun Juay ul s}npe jJo Jaquinu ay | °

‘(Jauey] pue sjemg ‘Aemdaysg

‘Quoisple|l\ ‘weysaAels) ‘plojeq ‘pIojysy) SIOUISIP UDBASS

ul obeiane |euolbal pue [euoneu a8y} Yjoq ‘uey} Jaybiy Jo ‘se
awes ay} s| |oyooje 0} a|gelnqulle S90USYHO0 |BNXSS JO d)el ay| .

‘(Jauey] pue siems ‘Aemdayg ‘weyseaels) ‘piojieq)

sjoulsip oAl ul abelane jse3 yinos sy} ueyy Jaybly S| pue

(1oueyl pue weyseAels) ‘plojueq) S}oUISIp 9ady} ul abeiane
[euonjeu 8y} ueyy Jaybiy SI SWIO JUSIOIA Pa)e[BI-|OYOd|Y .

‘(lauey L

pue s|eMS ‘weyseAels) ‘plojeq) SouIsIp Jnoj ul abesane

1se3 yinos ay) ueyy Jaybly pue (Jdueyl pue weyssAels

‘pJojieq) sloulsip Juey daiyl ul obelaAe aAoge S| [oyodle

0} 9|gengue awd JO |9A9] dy}) ‘JonamoH -abeiane [euoljeu
83U} MOJ|aQ SI JudY| Ul SWO JUSIOIA pUB BWIID Paje|al-|oyod|y .

'S9OUBMO||B JuBwW|gesIp

alonas U0 syjouaq  Auoedeoul  pawied  ‘ wsioyoole,
upm pesoubelp ‘uay ul ejdoad QQF'y INOGE GOOZ Ul e
© -}ey} sejealpul | ejep Isyio

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘g|doad BunoA
Jo} suoissiwpe |eydsoy pajejal |oyooje Jo s|ons| abelane anoge
sey os|e Aemdayg ‘e|doad BunoA pue sjnpe yjoq Jo} suoISsiWpe
|[endsoy pajejal [0yooje Jo s|oAd| abelaAe aAoge sey Yolym lauey |
JO0 uondaoxa ay} Yym siojedlpul yjesay ayy Joj abeisae |euoneu ay
punoJe ale Juay Jo seale }so|\ ‘eale Ajioyjne |eoo| Ag umop uayolq
wJey pajejas |oyodje JO SIOjedipul |edlsliels uasjuanas sapiaold
@A01BAIBSqO Y)|eaH 21|gnd 1S9AA YLUON paJosuods JusWwuldanos) ay |

‘loyooje Jo asn
ay} uo uaup|iyo vy} Buneonpa pue Bulousnjjul ul syualed Jo 8|0l By}
sasiseydwa aosuepinb ay| pasinladns ag pinoys uoidwnsuod Jisy)
pue }9aMm B 80UO0 UBY) 8J0W |OYOO|e SWNSUO0I JOU pP|noys Spjo Jeak
/1-Gl ‘Os|y ‘usw BunoA 1o} sjun {-¢ pue uswom BunoA 1o} spun
£-Z Po99oXxa Janau pjnoys /| — G| pabe asoy) jey; Aes 0] uo seob
} 'G1 Jopun 8soy} AQ pawnsuod 8q JoAdu p|NoYs |oyooje ‘sased
9SOU] U| °|oyode ualp|iyo  Jdivy)
Mojje 0] asooyo Aew sjuaied swos
1eyl sebpsimoudoe ] -uondo 1saq
pue 1salyjjeay ay} SI |oyoo|e WoJ) 99}
pooyp|Iyo e jey) sajels aouepinb ay|

‘leanoeud si papinouad
90IApE  BYl JByleym pue sjualed
J8y] pue ojdoad bHBunoA ‘ualpjyo
0] pajedIuNWWOoD SI  uolew.loul
8y} MOY UO $S8sndoj UONe}NSuod
8yl ‘600z Alenuep ul uoneynsuod 1o}
[oyoole ssjdoad BunoA uo aouepinb
pases|al JOSIADY [BJIPSIN JBIYD MN
dy} pue puejbuz Joj JBOIYO [edlpaN
JoIyQ  eyy ‘uospleuog wer] JIS

-

ey ‘ﬁ’v Wi, B

-,
&

:9|doad BunoA pue ualip|iyd

Page 105



‘padojanap Buiaqg jenpialpul ue jo |enusiod |eal ay} 0} spes| Buisnoy
a|gels leyy sI swwelbold 8y} JO |enuassa alod a8yl ‘s|eydsoy
‘6@ sooinosel Jojas olgnd Jayjo jJo obesn ‘ssausssdwoy
‘oouesinu  pooysnoqybidu  ul  uononpas By} 0}  S8INQLIU0D
awweJsboid ay] -seniunuoddo juswAojdwa pue ‘Buluiel) ‘uoneonpa
ssaooe 0] |epualod oyl ypm ‘Aunwwod syl ulyium pabebus
-a1 pue pojesbojudl ©g 0} |oyoole aosnsiw oym ojdoad
d|geua 0} saolnes uoddns bBuieol pue ‘paseq-uolepowwodde
uolssiwwod  swuwelbold o|dosd Bumoddng ey 8yl

‘@ouspuadapul
Jojealb oaasiyoe pue Aouspuadop JO N0 SAOW O] UONOIppe
aoue)sqns Jo joyooje yum ajdoad Buidjay 01 pajesipap si swwelboid
aouspuadapu] Buiwoddng DODOYM BY JO Sspuess a8yl Jo suQ

‘1snu| diysisuped Aempsyy pue jusy
pue jsni] piemusy 8yl ‘sbueyd 1o} UONOY ‘SANEIIU| UOIONPSaY
awillD ‘uIog Buluin] ‘YD) :epnjoul saiousby  Jusy JO 8joym
ay] SS0JOB S82IAISS Juswi)eal) Jo abues e apinoid 0] suonesiuebio
Alejunjon  pue Aiojneis jo  AlBlBA B SUOISSILUWOD | VAN

‘fjuno)
ay)] SS0JIoR S92IAISS Juswieal) palejal-bnip pue joyooje Jo Bulojiuow
aouewlopad pue Buuoissiwwod oywads 8y Joj o|qisuodsal

Aousbe ay) sI (Lyvay) wes| uonoy |oyodly pue bBnig uay ay|
S992IAI9S Judwieal] }npy — buluaddeH Ajjuairing s jeypa L6

‘PaPdE]}
aqg |Im Aayy moy pue sdeb Aey saynusapl 0| uonoss pue Buluaddey

ApealJje sI Jeym Jno S}as uolj0as SIY| "duop aq O} SPesu aIow ng
‘9SNSIW [0YOoo|e 8[}oL] 0] 1USY Ul UsMelspun usaqg Sey YIom Yyonjy

BuiuaddeH Ajjuaiiny s|jeyp ‘6

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

"uJ9ouo09 Jealb Jo ale salojoslel) asay |
‘obe Jaiuea ue wouy pue aiow BuiwNsuod ale op Oym asoy) ‘|loyoole
Bunuup ase ojdoad BunoA Jama) ybnoyje jeyl umouy osfe si }|

"000°€Z J0 uoiBal 8y} Ul 8q p|No2 JuUdY UI sjualed Juspuadep

[OYOJe Yjim ualp|iyd JO Jsaquinu ayj jey) pajewlsa si °

'9/500¢

ur €0 0} 9/G00Z Ul 8/ WOJ} pasealdoul SaoUdlo paje|al
[oyoole Joj pejsasle sidoad BunoA jo Jaquinu a8y} Sy U| °

*J9)s16a. uonosjoud
PIYo ayy uo (%1'9G) ualp|iyo 008 Ajglewixosdde sy jey
J9A0 JO onsLvyoeleyo |elualed e si (asnsiw sbnip pue joyoole
10} y10q) asnsiw aoue)sgns 1ey) pajewinss usaq sey )l ‘Jusy uj °

Page 106



ol

' syjods 1oy, Ajnuspl 0} JapJo ul sapuabe Jayjo
pue ao1j0d ay) ‘sessauisng usamlaq aouabijjeiul Jo abueyoxa
By} 9A|0AUI Yolym padojonap uaaqg aAey Sawayos Yojepa qnd,

'sqnd sy ul Jels ay} Jo Jnoineyaq a|qisuodsal A|jeloos js9)

0} siaddoys Ais)sAw Jo asn ayew ‘Bupjuup ajqisuss Bunowold
1e pawie sawayos Jayjo i1sbuowe ‘ureyo gnd uoodsiayiopn
a8yl pue swesN ploydeys Auedwoo paseg-jusy ayr ylog
‘uoneJsado pue juswabeuew

Jo spiepuels ybly ojensuowsp jeyl Awouods  awi
-ybiu ayy ul joyooje Buljjes sessaulsng asoy} 0} S8)ediiad
spJeme yolym awayos Buisijeinos Jsjes, ayl paulol aney juayj
ul sesiwalid pasuadl| Auep
-g|doad abelapun

0] Pp|os sem  |oyoole
wisyj Jo pJiy} e jnoge ul jeyy
punoy pue ‘saseyoind }so)
LGl pawuopad spiepuels

Ul aJe saAlenul Jo Jaquinu vy

‘Aingiajue)

pue JnogJeH sliejspeolg ul seale 9aJ) [0yooje Buiysiigels3
"seale JnoIABYa( |e1o0s-ljue Jo uoneubisap ay|

‘9| Jo abe ay} Jopun sjdoad BunoA swoy puas pue

s|jenpiAlpul aAdnisip asladsip 0} adjod 8y} pue salnloyine
|eoo| a|qeua yoiym siamod (£00g) 10V Jnoineyag |e100S-iuy
"'S90UBY0 paje|al-|oyoo|e Joj }salie pJiy}

e Joye (sQgsy) sieplQ Inoineyag |e10os-njuy buinssi se yons
saljjeuad SBAJOAUI YdIYym JSAOQ Ul BWSBYIS SIS daly], 8yl
WD J8)op

0} pue 21gnd 8y} Jo} adueinsseal apiaold o} sjods joy, awi
-1yBiu pajebie) josed s19210 YoIyMm Ul So1joe) 1oalb pue 1o9)),
‘asnsiw

|[oyooje Jo saouanbasuod a8y} Jnoge ules| 0} SUOISSSS puslie
}Shw slapuayo alaym uonnoasold 0} aAjeuss)e ue apiaoid
0} Wie yolym sawayds |[eusjal Buuonne) |euonipuo),

s|enpiAlpul 0} (SQNd) JoapJosiq Joj saoioN Ajjeusad jJo asn ay]

Buipes] juey Jeak iseT . Juay ul sdyao Isow Aq paydope
-Buipes usaq 8ABY UOIYyM Seale Juswadlojus |oyoodle Jo ash ayJ °
a|qisuodsas ojowoud 0] ooe(d "Jnoineyaq aandnusip Buniqiyxe

:opnjoul S8y “wJey pajejal joyooje Bulonpal

Page 107

"'SONUBA
ybiu a)e| g pue s|vBloy | ‘s8I0)S
pue sjaysewladns g¢ Buisudwos
‘Aep B sInoy Hz uado asay)
JO /G yoiym jo ‘joyooje Ajddns
Jo ||@s 0} pesudgl sesiwaid
00S‘9 Ajolewixoidde sey ua)

Buisuasiq — buiuaddey
Apauny s|  jJeym ¢6

0] 9921|0d U8y pue splepuels Buipes] se yons sauabe Jauped
[BO0] JO JUBWWWOD 8y} o8l SaAneniul oyoads Jo Jaquinu

‘(mojaq xoq
99s) Buipusayo pue sejes abe Jopun aonpaJ 0} aAleiul Aousbe-inw
e :diysiouped [oyodly Auunwuwo) juay ay) sey osje Alunood ay|

‘ABajens 0 L0z Spiemo] 8y} ul palosjjal SI Seouayo
pa|[@N}-|0yooe YjIMm |eap 0} |IounoD) AJUno?) Jud)| JO JUBSWHWWOD 8y |
fojeg fjlunwwon — Buluadde Ajuasing sjjeypn 2°6

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay




Ll

"sloyeas wnjAse pue saabnjol ‘S|OOYOS Wealjsulew ul Jou ale
oym ajdoad BunoA asoy) ‘ajdoad BunoA Jspe pad 00| ‘siapuayo
BunoA yum 10e1U0D Bupjew uo sesnoo) pue ajdoad BunoA
Jo sdnoub a|geJsaujnA U0 s8sSNO0) uoiuaAIBiu| Aue] pejeble|

:UOlJUBABIY pue UoiUSAISIU| Alue]

"alsqom AJ0joaliq 824n0say

JUS) 8y} UO puno} 8Qq UBD UuOoljBUWIOUl JBYWNn4  “siaquinu
10BJUOD Sk [|om se douepinb pue aoiape [nidjay sapinoid
1eyy ualpjiyo pebeuss) jo sjualed Joj pieog Buipienbajeg
suaipjiyy ey ayy Agq paysiignd useq sey J9pooq v
‘uoneonpa |oyooje pue Bnip Ayenb ybiy

JOAI[BpP 0} S|00yos poddns pue $821n0sal 9)euUlpIo0d O} PaLLLIO)
usaq sey dnois Buusesls uoneosnpg sbnig e pue dnolg
ABojens JSHJ e Aq usasiano si Abajeng siy] ~ojdoad BunoA
[le 0} 3HSd Auenb ybiy Jeaep o0} uoddns pue sa8dinosal
soIYns yum sonoeldd wuopun Jo) swie Syl — 800z Ul
paonpold sem sj00yds Jua) ||e Jo} JHSd uo Abajens vy L1102
WwoJ} wnjnoLuNg [euoneN ayj jo ued Aiojnjels B awo2aq [[IM
JHSd 1By} Ajjuadas pasunouue usaq Sey }| asnsiw |oyoole
Inoge uopednpa sapnoul yolym (3HSd) uoneonp3 yiesH
pue |eIo0S ‘|euosiad jJo awuwelboid B BABY S|O0OYOS U
‘Bupjiom Jo [opowl

Jenoied siy) Jo syjuswdojoAsp a4njnj WLIOUL ||IM UOIBN|BAS
3y} pue 82IAI8S UInoA a8yl Aq pauoddns sI @snoH “osnsiw
aouelsqns 0] 9|gelaujna 1sow Ajenusiod pue uoisiaoid
weaJisulew oapisino aq Aew oym ojdoad BunoA s)abie;
1| ‘sebessaw yjeay olngnd yum pauiquod oajdoad BunoA
Jo)} ooejd Bunesw paleoo| Ajjenusd e bBuipinoid yuow Aq
yjuow S)oLISIP 8y} punod saaow asnoH "yoeoidde Bunexiew
[e100s e sasn yolym ubiedwed asnoH ayl ybnoiyr paitaAlap
Buieq s ubledwes siy] -asnsiW [OYodle JO S}09le 8y}
‘sbuiy} Joyjo 1sbuowe ‘Jo ssausaleme J1ay} 8sealoul 0} J1apJo Ul

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

ajdoad BunoA e peajebie) ubiedwed yjesy aignd Buniy-piey
B JO UONONPOJIUl 8Yl SPUSWIWOdal 0L0Z Spiemo] 1o oG 10bie] o
:UoIeONpP3 |BSISAIUN PUB UOIJBDIUNWWOD)
:opnjoul 8say |
"Juswiyeal) 1sijeloads 0} paliajal usaq aney oym ajdoad BunoA
JO slaquinu pasealoul Ul pa)nNsal OS|e SABY UOljudAISuUl AjJesa ul
JUBWIISOAUI Ul Sasealdul JuUaday Juay ul aidoad BunoA oy aoe|d ui sI
Juswieal) pue Juswdojonap 92J0I0M ‘UONUBAIBIUI AlJed ‘uoneonpa
[ESISAIUN pue uofedlunwwod Jo swuwelboid aaisusyaidwod vy

a|doad buno) — BuiuaddeH Ajjuairing sj3eypa v'6

‘louno? 101ISIg SYEOUBASS pue |1ouno) Al Aingisiue) ‘1ouno)
1oL)sIQ Jouky L ‘dnoID SpIEpUE)S [0YOD|Y JO [Iejoy BU) ‘821jod Jud)
‘spJepuels Buipes] sy s iouno) Aluno) sy Aq uni si JvOM

"uoneoIuap! Jo Jooud J0j GZ Japun S)00| Oym suoAue Bupse
apnjoul ey} S9|es |oYyodje 1o} S¥0ay Juabulis 0) Jlwod Asyy Ji “Bul
-uleJ) pue poddns yum sispely apiaoid [jIm uone)paldde dvoM vV

‘payoune| aWayos uoneyipaiode JyDM 8yl pue
paosunouue sem seaJe Jojid 8y} JO UOISUS)XS UB §O0Z JOQWSAON U]

‘Jouey |
pue Ainquayue) ‘ebpuquap3 ul pajojid Ajjeuibuo sem sawayos ay |

‘'seale 9SOy} Ul JnoiABYyaq |eIoos-ljue pue Bupjuup
abe-Japun Jo Junowe ay} aonpal 0} aidoad BunoA 1o} saiiAloe pue
‘suspiem Ajunwwod pue ao1od Aq sjosied ‘sigjieias Joy Buluiely
JO uoleUIqWOD B SBsSN — )N 8y} Ul puly s} jo isable| 8y} - JVOM

diysiauped |oyoo|y Ajunwiwiod) juay - uoijoe jo sjdwex3y

Page 108



¢l

"10edw! wnwixew Joj sanuoud pue salbajel)s paje|al-iaiul
apisbuoje paJaAllep 8q |IIM pue SBAds[qo payuspl 8y} aAsIyoe
0] yoeoudde diysisuned e uo puadap A[n} |Im siy) saibajens s uay]
[Ie yim sy -sjualed Buisnsiw soueisgns yim aAll oym ajdoad BunoA
pue ualp|lyd 1O} pajeloosse SsalNoYIP 8y} Jo swos Buissaippe
uels 0] wie im ABajens wieH usppliH e Jo juswdojprsp ay]

"Julod SISO Yoeal saljiwe) usym
aleo ul dn Buipus Auew 00} yym ‘Wwoddns a6 Jansu Aldwis uonenys
SIy} ul s1a1ed BunoA 1sop\ "s|gelaulnA Aenoued pue uspply yjoq sl
wa|go.d [oyooje ue yym jualied e Jaye Buoo| siaied BunoA jo dnoib
SIyl °seojoJ Buled ojul padlo} usaq aAey ualpiyd J1vyy ‘Buneyjigep
0S Bwo0299q sey bBupjuup sjualed B oJOYM SBSEBO BWOS U|

"901e0S 00] ale sjualed BupjuLp-01UOIYD pue siaied BunoA
yjoq poddns 0} sadiaeg ‘pooyjnpe ojul abewep |eoibojoyoAsd
wud)-buo| aousuadxs ued siayulp wajqold Jo ualp|iy) ‘|ooyos je
aouewJopad Jood pue jInb ‘uonejosi jo sbulda) 0} pes| ued Bupjuup
suaied e ‘siay)o Joj Inqg ‘@dod jnoge jsnl ued uaip(iyo Auepy “way}
punoJe Ajiwey} ay) Ing ‘Jaxuup ayj isnl Jou s}osye asnsiw |0yodly

wiieH usppiH — BbuiuaddeH Ajjuaiing sjJeym S°6

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘puUssaARIS) pue pJojeq pue judy jse3] jo sued

Jayjo 0} Buipuedxa sI pue JaAO(Q pue Jauey] Ul sajelado )
'Sanss| |oyodje 1o Bnip pue y)jeay |ejusul SABY OUM SI9pualjo
BunoA yum syuom j08foud sisoubelq jenq ssbuey) ay
‘Buipuayo uo Ajpanisod joedwi 0} sispuayo BunoA yjm

}JoM |oyooje pue Bnup oyoads sapnoul siy] ‘siasn wa|qoud
se passasse ale oym ojdoad BunoA 1o} SuOlUSAISIUI BUO O}
auo saplrold Juswieal; Ajunwwod sajdoad BunoA isieloadg

;Juswiead jsijeloadg

*10}08S AJBjUN|OA pue AJUNWWOoD 8y} WO SI9XIoM

UInoA 0} a|qejieAe apew usaq sey Buluiel} uonuaAlaul joug
‘oljews|qoud jou aie

OYyM 9SOUY} 10} SUOIUBAIBIUI pue asn onews|qold Buissesse
‘ssaualeme |oyooe pue sbnip ul aolopiom sajdoad BunoA
pue ualip|iyo ayj Joj Buiuiesy jo swwelboid e si Buluieny 1sSNQ

:Juswdojona( 924010

‘oswwelbold sjooyos AyjjesH paosueyug ay)

JO ped se sjooyds ul palaaldap Bulaq Ajjualind si pue adualjisal
pling pue JnoiAeyaq Buiye) ysu Jisy) 8onpal 0} paubisep
ajdoad BunoA 1o} uonuaAisiul Jusuodwod [NW e s 1Sy
"SUOIUBAIS]UI Jalig [0Yo2|e BulldAljap Ul paulel) SIa)Jom

AqQ palenlep alem 8sayl ‘6007 JoWwWNS Ul pasu pajejal
|[Oyo2je JO seale ul pauoissiwod aiam sjoaloid Aleuoisianig
"9u0]SpIel\ Ul sjooyds ul padojansp

usaq sey uonuaAaild passnooy |oyooe jo swwelboid vy
‘'ssaualeme pue uoljeonpa ybnoly) asnsiw aoueysqns

wous s|doad BunoA PBAIp 0} swie ‘(Isni] pJemua) oy}
Aq pasanlep) swweibold poddng uonuaAlaul |oyodly a8yl

Page 109



€l

padjay aq pinom sienplaipul 000‘gl (%01) pepiroid sem ssadoe
JO |9A9] [ewIUIW B JI Jey) pajewnsa sl )| "Ajunod ay} ul SadIAIeS
Juswjeal] Jo uoisinocid-lepun ue sI aJay) eyl pasiubooal s

jusuwieal] }INpy - UOIY 10} sanliold €01

"JU9y{ Ul |oyod|e 0} asuodsal aAIj08Ye ue
Buiuuidispun yoeoudde diysisuped syy jdope |[Im SuolROIUNWIWOYD)

‘Buneylew [eioos Buipnjoul suoluaAIaUIl
pajabie) jo swwelboid e ybnouayy swajqold pajejal
|[oyooje Buidojonsp ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyo Juaaaid o °
‘osnsiw
[oyooe jo joedwi a8y} jo bBuipueisiepun pue Sssauaieme
olgnd Buisealour Aq wliey paje@l [oyooe usaaid O] °

:soAj0a[qo oi10ads Buimoi|o) By JoAllep
0] se ||jom se ‘ABajens siy} ul a1aymas|d 1no }8s saAldalqo oibajel)s
8y} ||e uoddns 03 padojpAep aqg |[IM SBIJIAIOE  SUOEJIUNWWOY

"oousalpne 1ab.e) ay) ul sjeob [einoineyaq aAnisod

Buinsiyoe 0} yoeoisdde Bunexiew [eioos e jdope pjnoys subledwen
1oedwl wnwixew 8)eald 0} pasn ale sabessow pue spoyjow
Jua)sisuod Buunsus Ag ‘senssi pajejal |OYode UO SUONEDIUNWWOD
pue uoneonpa aAoidwl 0} palinbal sI yoeoisdde peojeuIpto-00 Y
uoljesIuUNWWOoY) - UOIJOY 10} saioLd Z'0l

‘jueniodwi aq os|e

[IlM Buipuayo pajejal |[oyodje uo ejep Jajag ‘sesiwald pasuadl| Yjym
swo|qo.d juioduid 01 ¥y Wol} papasau sI uolewdoju] “‘Buiuueld o}
a|ge|ieAe ejep aulj@seq }sngoJ SI 81ay} Jey} ainsua ||Im SIy| ‘osnsiw
|[oyodje jnoge ejep aseys pue }09||09 0} aq |[Im Ayoud oibelens v
ABajeng - uonoy oy sanuold L0l

uonoy 104 ssijliold 0L

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘loyooje Jo/pue sbnip asnge sjuaied

9SOUM €~/ ualp|iyo Joyj yJom dnoib sepiroid sjems pue Janoq
‘Ancuajue) ‘Juey ul (YoM Ag uni) josfoid ybiuns ayy
"82I1AIBS |0Yo2Je pue Bnip 8y} pue swes) saljiwe

pue ualp|iyD usam}aq MJom julol ainsus pue juswieal) O}ul
— |oyooje pue sbnup — sjualed Buisnsiw asoue}sqns syoel) jsey
J1aA0( pue jauey] ul joafoid sjusled Buisnsiw aouelsqns ay |
asnsiw joyooe

|elualed 0y sasuodsal anoidwi pue ssaualeme asiel 0] Buiuies
Aousbe nnw ssapirnoud pieog ualpliyd bBuipienbojes jusy
‘sjualed Buisnsiw aouesqns yym ajdoad BunoA Jo spasau ayy
1e Y00] 0} paysiigelse usaq sey dnoib Bupjiom wieH usppiH v

Page 110



142

"J1N padouejeq pue pauueld e Jo
1uswdojansp ay) ainsus 0} pue (3 N) Awouoos awiy 1ybiu syl uiyum
AlaAjoaye asnsiw joyooje abeuew 0y aq [m Ayuoud Buiobuo uy

‘sa1b9)eI}S 90UB|OIA D1}SBWOP |BJ0)
8y} 0] Ul yul| |im ABajelis [oyooje 8y "92USJOIA D1}SSWOP JO SWIIOIA
Algissod pue siojenadied bBunebie} swwelboisd Aue jo ped oq
[lIM suonuaAlaiul [oyoole ‘sjedoidde aiaym ‘pue 82US|OIA J1}SBWOP
JO aieme opew aq [IM siayuup wajqosd yum Bupom asoy]
‘panosdwi 8q |m pue Jood SI SIy} UO B}ep [BOO| ‘JOASMOY  :8DUS|OIA
onsawop jo uoiodoud Jueoiubis e 0y Jojoe} A10INQLIUOD B SI |0y

‘yoeoidde ue se palapisuod aq ||Im suosiid
ul uoneonpa Jaad ‘uosud Buines| uo Ajojelpawuwi juswieal) ojul
9A0OW 0} 9|ge 8q }Shw pue SUOIJUBAIBJUI pue a2IApe Yim pajabie) aq
(M waysAs uosiid ay) ul ale oym swajqold joyooje yum ajdoad 2007

's1eplQ Buluueg Juuq pue siapiQ Jnoireyag
[BID0S-IUY 1O S)OBJUOD JNnolneyag o|qeidaddy Uuo U0 SWwa)sAs
JapuayO Allold pue ouljold pue sjuswabuelly uonoslold 2lignd
Aousby-nnjy 8y} ul ajdoad 03 suoljuaAlaul [oyodje Jo uolisianoid
ay] pue [eusjoy 1saly ‘Buluonnesn |euonipuo) ‘sjuswalinbay
Jjuswijeal] [|0Yod|y JO 8snh a8yl apnjoul [IM SIy] ‘|oyode 0} anp
swa|qold Buiousiadxs 1Sl i OYM 8SOY] pue SIopusyo usyunip
elsisiad Yjoq J0j SS82IAISS juswieal) 0) walsAs aonsnl jeulwo
ay) woJ} sAemyled ale alay) ey Buunsus uo snooy e si Ajuoud vy

"sjuswidojanep Jo Jequinu e aJinbal [jIm siy] ‘|oyooe

0] pa)ul| JnoIABYS(Q [BI00S-ljuB pue awuo apjoe) o) Aluoud e si
Ayojeg Ajlunwiwio) - uondYy o) sanuoLd 0l

€102 - 0102 ABajesys |oyoI|y Jud)y

‘wesAs juswebeuew asuewsopad
e Jo uoneoidde oyl ypm pue sainseaul BWOJIN0 JO WI)SAS
B JO 1X8Ju09 8y} Ulyyim padojaAsp aq 0] pasu |[IM SBJIAISS Juswieal |

"speau Jlay) ssalppe 0} padojorsp aq |Im Aemyied a1eo
e pue sjuslo Jo dnoib juepodwi ue s SIy] "Jusweal) Ul 8soy) uey)
a|gelaulnA aiow pue Yysu Jaybiy 1e aq Aew sjualo abebus 0} ynoiyIp
9say | "suoissas Jo 9|dnoo e ‘se Ma) se ‘Jaye 1no dodp ||IM S82IAISeS
Juswieal) [oyoo|e JBJue OymM SusIP 1o %09-0v Alerewixoiddy

‘osdejal Juanaid 0} JapJo Ul ‘Juswieal) [0Yodle |eluapisal pue
suosud ‘sjeydsoy wolj pabieyosip asoyy Aejnoied ‘esnsiw joyoole
wolj Bulienodal sienpiAlpul Joy DD Aq paleyjioe) aq |m Buisnoy
paJa)ays Atesodwa) |euonippy ‘Buisnoy Japeq alinbai 1o ssajpwoy
ale oym ojdoad 0} paloyo agq 0} pasu |IM Sa2IAIBS d)eldosddy
'sdnoub Jenoied Uoj padojeAsp ©Q 0] pesu OS|e  SBJIAIeS

‘obewep-uielq paje|al-|oyoo|e aAey Oym
a|doad Joy} s|qisuodsal sI oym uo palinbai si Aje|) “J1epJosip [elusw
pue asnsiw |oyoole jo sisoubelp |enp e yum sjdoad 1oy papasu
S| Juswieal} ojul 8JNoJ J1y10ads Y "8dIApe |eloueuly Jo poddns Buluiel)
pue juswAojdwa se yons sadIAIes punosedeim Buipnioul ‘aiedsaye
J8)}8q 10} poau payjuapl ue s| a1ay} ssadold ayj Jo pus Jaylo sy} I

‘'sbupas aonsn( jeulwlo pue 3 g v ‘eded Asewud 68
Buijes 1sije1oads-|oyooje-uou Ul SI9)ULP |njwJiey pue snoplezey Joj
SuoiuUaAJaul Jalg pue Buluaalds Jo uononpodjul 8y si Ajuoud Asy v

‘0oe|d ul Ind aq |Im S82IAI8S [0YyOod|e ojul Bulob seainosal
ay} bBuiseasoul Jo swwelsbosd paulelsns ¥ %G Ajuo Apuaiind
sI uoibal ay} ul SS820k JO |9A8] 8y} 1By} S}sabbns ejep JUSWUIBA0L)

-a|doad 000'9¢
0] Juawieal) apinosd pinom (9%,02) 82IAI8S JO [9A8| poob  “Jeak yoes

Page 111



Gl

Buiye) ¥su Jaylo ul paAjoAul 8q 0} AjoyI| aiow aJe |oyooje asnsiw
oym ajdoad BunoA -ajdoad BunoA 1sbuowe asnsiw joyodje Buionpal
se [|]am se |oyoole Buisnsiw Ajjeonews|qold agq Aew oym 1o asnsiw
[oyoole Jo Msu }e oym didoad BunoA jo uopeoynuspl Jales ay)
Bulgeus ul jenuassa sI uonuaAaid pue uonuaAIdlul AlJea BAI08Y]

:UolUBABI4 pue uoiuaAlalu| Alueg

"@SNs|W [0Yyoo|e JO sway} ay) 0} uoneldepe
o} palojdxa aq |Im ‘Yiesy |enxas pue BulALp Yuup ‘esnsiw Bnip se
yons ‘sanssi yjjeay pajejal Jayjo yum Buiesp saAneniul |njssaoong

"9SNSsIW [0yoo|e 0} uoinejal ul Buipnjoul Jnoineyaq s ajdoad
BunoA abueyo 0} sidweyne juanbasgns ojul }ing 8q ued Bulules|
MOy 98S 0] paulwexs oq 0] Spadu |opow ay| ‘selouabe ajdnjnw
yum 1oepod ul sidoad BunoA Buibulq je aAjoays usaq sey asnoH

‘'sjualed yum
}IOM Oym sjeuolssajold asoy} pue sjuaied yjoq ul melp o} Juenoduwl
aq M )] ‘sjepow ajos poob oq pue uonewsoyul poob ajdoad
BunoA pue ualp|iyo sy} aAIb 0} 8|qe 8q 0} pasu sjualed ‘|oyoole
1In0Oge uoljewJojul alow juem sjualed jey) sajedlpul yoleasal |20

‘padojanap aq 0} spaau sbuilds 34 ul uoleonps
|oyooje pue bBnip juaisisuod Buunsus 0] yoeoudde uy -yoeoidde
ue Se palopISuod 8q OS[e ||IM uolednpa 18dd ‘pauoddns aq |Iim
S9SINU |00YdS pue SI8YdoEes) Yjog Joj uone}ipalooe JHSd "esodind
Joj 3 ale syndul asay} ey} ainsus 0} juenodwl SI ) pue siy} Jo
9100 8y} aJe |00YIS Ul Suossd| (JHSd) uoneonp3 yjjeaH pue |eloos
[euosiod ‘uonldwnsuod |oyodle d|gISUSS pue ajes jnoge pasiel
Qg [M ssaualeme ‘Jenoied u| |EJA SI |[0Yodje jnoge uoiednpa
‘paseq aouspins ‘sleudoldde anledal sidoad BunoA (e jey) Buunsug

:uoiedNp3 |eSISAIUN PUE SUOIjBedIUNWWOD
a|doad Buno pue ualipjiyd - uoidy 10} sanLolid 901

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘paiidde ale saijjeuad jey) ainsua pue
suoslad abe Jepun 0} |[oyoole A|[ddns oym siajielal Aljuspl 0} SLOYS
JIoy} asealoul pjnoys selousbe tsuped pue spiepuels Buiped)

‘Buioijod jeuonippe Aiessadau
JO 1S0D 8y} SpJemo} ainguiuod 0} AJUIDIA JIBY} Ul JNOIABYSQ [BID0S
-lJue paje|al-|oyoaje aonpal 0} suonoe Juswajdwi o} Buljie; sesiwaid
alinbal ued yoiym ‘sauoz Japlosiq |0Yoo|y pue seale daly |oyodle
JO JuswWYsI|geIS® 8y} 0] USAIG ©q UBD UONRISPISUOD ‘|NJSS82oNSUN
usaq aAey sjdwepe |eonoeld JBYlo ||B UBYM ‘UOSal ISe| B Sy

‘sloplo aoe|d 21gnd pajeubisap pue siamod |esiadsip ‘smainal
90Ud9I1| 9|dwexa Jo} ‘JOpIOSIP pue BWIID paje|al-|oyode aonpal 0}
paJapisuod aq [m uone|siba] ajelidoidde Jo asn ‘Aiessadau aJaypn

‘Buyuiip a|qisuodsa.ll
ajowold pjnoo jeyy saibajesis 1ayjo pue syuup yos Joj saoud ybiy
Buibieyo ‘syulp oloyooje Bununoosip jo aonoeld sy abeinoosip
0] Y99S 0} 8Qq |IM Juswald A8y Y ‘InolABYyS(Q |eloosihue pue
BWLID pajejal-|oyodje aonpal 0} sqnjo pue sqnd ‘SouUd2I-JO YIMm
3om 0} 1ouno) Aluno) ay) sadinbais Abajens Loz spiemol 8yl

¢S9UNWwWo juanjye aiow se syybu

9S8y} JO asn yonw se Bupjew saunwwod paAudap Ajeioos aiow
ale pue sesiwald was|qotd JO SMBIASJ XY98S pue suoljejussaidal
ayew o0} pabeinoous Buieq oygnd sy} Jo siequaw aJse Jejnoljed
u| "paJojuow 8q pInoys €00z 1oV Buisusdi ayj jo uoneoldde syl
Buisual - uolldy 1oy sanoud G0l

Page 112



9l

"9SNsIW |oyod|e Jo sway) 8y} o} uoneldepe
JoJ paiojdxa aq |IM ‘Yijesy |enxas pue BuIALIp Yuup ‘esnsiw Bnip se
yons ‘sanssi yjjeay pajejal Jayio yum Buiesp saAneniul |njsseoong

"aWoY WoJ) Julp
Bupey sjdoad BunoA 1o joyoole jo Alddns |ejuaied sy} juaaaid o)
SHI0YD Se ||oM Sk ‘s1eal)s oy} uo Bunjulip wouy ajdoad BunoA LeAIp 0}
saljiAljoe aAljeula)e apinold 0} suoye Ag paiuedwoodoe aq ||IIm SIyL
'saoe|d o1gnd ul Bupjuup abelspun apoe} 0} pue Buiseyoind }s9} Jo
subiedwes Jejnbas ybnouy) sejes abelapun apoe] 0} wenodwi si |

:Alddng

‘90lopjiom s a|doad BunoA
pue uaJp|lyd 8y} S$Soloe pash
Ajuaisisuod aq pue qyD ol
pajelbajul g 0} spasu bBuluien

|leuajel pue bBuusslds 1SNA
"90J0J}I0OM
s9|/doad bBunoA pue uaip|iyo

8y} SSOJoB popusixe oq 0}
speau Bululely uonuaAlslul Joug
‘g|doad BunoA j1sbBuowe asnsiw
[oyooje Buionpal 1B 9AI08YS
]SO0 @Je  SuOlUBAIBUI  jalg

:Juswdojaraq 82J0OAN

way} buissaippe
JOo sAem 1s8q oy} pue walsAs
ayl ur sdeb pue sabeyoo|q
8y} Ol  yoJessal  Jayuny
Aq pessaippe oq 0} aAeYy ||IM

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

deb siy] -senuam) Ajes a1y} Ul S82IAISS juswiead) ynpe Buipusne
slaquinu ayj ul dip e s 818y} ‘SadIAI8S [0Yodje pue Bnip yym joejuod
ul Buiag se palnuapl aie spjo Jeah gL-L | ybnouyly 'SodiAIes jnpe
0] s82IAIBS s,8|doad BunoA wouy uonisuel) sy} SI uISdU0D Jejnoiued v

‘loyooje asnsiw Ajjeonewsajqoid oym ajdoad BunoA asoyy
0] 9|ge|leAB 0] pPaau SUONUBAISUI Jusweal) Allunwwod 1sielnadg
;Juswieal] Ajunwwo) isijeloads

‘s1y) dojonsp 01 Aemiapun S| JJO0M pue uoljusAlaluI
paseq yjeay e ypm Ayanoe siyy jusweldwod 0} SsI wie ayl
"SIy} JO }nsal e se wa)sAs aonsnl jeuiwlo ayy Jsjue jou op ajdoad
BunoA 1eyy ainsus 0] juenoduwi si 1 pue ajdoad BunoA o) pspiroid
g 0] suoiuaaiaul Joj Allunuoddo ue sspiaold siy] seoeid ongnd
ul joyooje Buisn wol} aidoad BunoA dojs o) paubisep suonualaul
aonsn[ [euiwo Jo abuel B 0) SI9ja Ue|d UONOY |OYOJyY YINOA 8y

‘1uoddng
yinoA pajebie| se yons sesuodsal ajelidoidde 0y spes| pue joyooje
0] pajejal sannoIp sayiuapl 4D ay} 1eyl ainsud 0} Alessaosu aq
[IIM 3] “Spaau payiuapl yum ajdoad BunoA |e 1o} |00} JuswSSasse ue
apinoid |Im (dyD) Ylomawel JUSWSSISSY UOWWOY) |euolieu ayl

1saybiy
ale swJley pajejal |oyode aiaym seale Ajuspl 0} 9|ge Si Judy ul
a|doad BUNOA 1O} JUBWSSASSY SPOaN [0Yodly 8yl "Sadlales Jobie)
0] o|doad BunoA jo sdnoib sjgelauinA Ajjuapl 0} 3|ge SI JUSWISSaSSe
sSpaau |oyooly s.8|doad BunoA ey a8yl ‘wley pajejas |oyodle
1O )su Je 1sow aJe ajdoad BunoA alaym sease pue ajdoad BunoA
Jo sdnoub sjqesauina Bunabie} salinbal uonuanlajul Ajles aAI03)]

"JNOIABYS( [BIOO0S ljue pue
awlo YinoA ‘esn Bnip ‘Bupjows ‘xas ajesun Ajes a8yl sinolaeyaq

Page 113



Ll

‘pleog 1vvay
oy} pue preog YesH olland juey 8y} o} podas [im dnosb syt

uoneqoIJ Juey e 010 USY e
sisnij, a1e)

Arewrd oml S .Aunod oYL e

Q0IAIOS UOSLI INH  ®

[1ouno) AJuno) Jusy e ILVVAuoy e
:wody diysiequiaw aAey |im dnoub siy |

‘sjablie] ay) Bunesw ul swajqotd swoalaAo djay
pue saainosal Ajuapl ‘sjebie} uejd uonoe ayj uo suodal ssalboud
BAI92al |[IM pue SISeq Alyjuow-iq B UO }9d8W |[IM YdIYyM paysl|gelsa
usaqg sey dnoig) Bules1S [0YOoyY UO uondy uay Aousbe-pnw vy

"INOIABYS( [B100S-jUB puB WL paje|al-joyoo|e ‘sjoadse Jayio
1sBuowe ‘yum [esp o) Bupiom Apessje ale ‘10)08s AJBjunjoA 8y} pue
seljuoyINe yjjeay ‘edIAI8S UOIBqOld 8] ‘Salioyine |eoo| ‘edljod
8yl woJ sleqwiaw Buipnpul ‘sdiysieuped uononpay Jeplosiq
pue sw) ‘sjdwexs J04 ‘}SIxe Apealje Juay| Ul 8snsiW |oyodje YlIm
Buijesp je pswie uoneiogqe(|od Jusuodwood-i}NW JO SW.IO) |elonss

“YJOMaLel) JaPIM
B Ul P8jeuIpIood pue US8SISA0 8q ||IM SUONOE 8say) [|e ‘JoASMOH

"g|eOSaWI} 8y} pue ajqisuodsal Aousbe sy} ‘parsiyoe aq 0} suoloe
ay) :pebeuew aq |Im 1861e) yoee moy saynuapl ueld AisAlep eyl

sjuswabue.ly 92UBUIBAOL) “L|

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

‘pauayibualils aq os|e p|noo sadiAles uoddns s,ajdoad
BunoA pue s,uaip|iyd pue SBJIAISS SJUB|OIA D1}SBWOP UBBM]E] SHUIT

"uaJp|Iyo J1vy) pue sjualed Buisnsiw
[oyoo|e yloq IO} SSJIAISS pue asnsiw |oyodfe |ejualed jJo Jpne ue
apN|ouUl P|N0Y SJUBWISSASSY SPasN d16ajeliS Julor “sue|d juswieal |
Bnig pue |0yodly pue sjuswealby ealy [B007 ‘sueld d16ajens
[e007 se yons ‘sueid |BoO| Jayjo Ojul s}abie} saljiwe} pue |oyooe
3Ul| pue sanss| asnsiw |oyodje Ajiwey uo Ajjeso| pes| 0} ,uoidweyd
|oYyoo|y, ue Amuspl pjnod pJeog ualpjiy) Buipienbajeg o0 oyl

‘Bunjup ,syusied Jisy) Jo Jnsal e se aJed ul pade|d
uaJp|Iyo JO Jaquinu 8y} aonpal o} }obie) e 8q p|nood aisy] ‘esnsiw
[oyoole [ejyuaied Aq pajosye ualipiyo jo Bulegem pue yjesy sy}
8seaJoul 0} paysi|gelse aq pjnod Juswaaiby 82IAI8g dlignd Mau Y

.¢,8]01 Bunualed unoA ul noA djay em ue) ¢juaied e nok aly, Sl
)se Ajauninol pjnoys a9IAIas [0yodje }npe AJaAs ajiym ‘saljiwe) asay}
yoeal 0} saainosal pue Buluiel; ay) paau saoIAIes sialed BunoA ay ]

‘ojelidoidde alaym ‘10j08s juswieal) |oyoole ayl Yim
uoddns ajeulplo-0o way) djay 01 aoe(d ul sjo20)0.d Jaies|o ale alay)
1ey) pue ayl| Ajlwey Jo Ayjenb ay) bunosye si asnsiw |ejualied alaym
soseo Ajpuapl 0} paddinba ale wa)sAs uoneonpa pue aJed |eloos
Japim ay} ul Bupiom asoy) jey) 8insus 0} pPasu |eal e Os|e S| 818y
‘'swia|qo.ld |oyodje wol J8A028d UBIP|IYo JIdy) pue sjualed yjoq divy
0] Buipuny pue pyoddns Ja)aq aABY MOU }ShW S82IAISS jJuslljeal) pue
anssi sy} ssalppe 0} unbaq Ajaieq aney saioljod joyooje ‘AjjeuoneN
"J8)s16a. uonosjoid pliyo ayy uo (9% 1°9G) ualp|iyo 00g Ajeyewixoidde
3y} jley Jano jo onsusjoeleyd |eyuated e s| (asnsiw bBnip pue
[Oyo2je yjoq) asnsiw aouesqns jey} pajewi}se uaaq sey j ‘Juay uj

WwiieH UsppliH - uoljdy Joj saiuolid L0}

Page 114



8l

‘epuabe uoneonps pue Ajejes |euosiad
pue Ajunwuwod ‘yjesy ayj poddns 0} dom [im dnole Buueslg
[OYOO|yY UO UOlOYy U8y  ‘Wa)SAs 8y} Ul aIaymas|d suolionpal
10 sujauaq ay) buleys pue juswisaaul bunsixa uo Bulpjing yoeoidde
diysiauped pajeuiplooo e sI ABajelis ay) JO 1004 By} 1B S8l JIBYAA

"MOJ|0} P|NOYS SUOISSIWpPE paje|al |oyoo|e
|[eudsoy pue AousBiawg pue juspiody uodn spuewsp ‘sesuodsal
aouejnqwe ul uononpal ¥y "Awouods awin ybiu 8yl uiyum
pajeloosse abewep [BUIWILIO pue INOIABYSQ [BIDOS IJUB JO S|9A3|
aWaJIXd8 B8y} JBJunod 0} Loya a8y} 0} ajnquiuod |Im Absjens ayl

"000 ‘G63
s| Joddns Buijeoyy, ul JuswisaAul Jualnd ay) pue ajdoad Buiuoddng

BIA paJaAlep sI Buisnoy Joy poddns ajdiouud ay]  -saniiqisuodsal
pue s9J0J JI9Y} JO UOISUdIX® Ue Se SadIAIBs 8y} jo bBuideysal
e Aq peJanlep pue sebpng weasis ulew Bupsixe syl ulyym
paAalyoe aq 0} Aoy SI SIy} Inq Alessaoau aq [|IM JUSWISSAUI JBYMN4
"'sawo2}n0 aAosdwi pue Jnoineysq ul 8bueyd ulelsns 0} [BluasSse
9Q |[IM SuOljuUBAJIBIUI [oyodle uoddns 0] S8dIAIBS punode dedm
Jo gjol Bunnguiuoo sy jo uoniuboosl ay) sdojonap Abajels siyl sy

'000°220°C3
[enba |IM s8JIAIeS
9SO} Ul juswisaAul
3aJ1p - 0L/600C Ul

"9AIjoNI)Sap
pue 2lj0BYD BW099q
sey ojl| Jiay} ojdoad
Qwos 1oj alaym
pua 0luoJyo, ay} e
spoau ay) bBunssw

€102 - 0102 ABajen3s |0yoI|y Juay

0} paInquuod osje sey }| ‘uoddns aalejussald Jo} saiiunuoddo Jayo
1By} S8IIUNWWIOD UIYJIM SB2IAISS JO UOIIBUIPJO0D 8Y) puB uoljeuloul
0] SS900B ‘JUBWISSASSE Ja)leq O} pajnquiuod sey SIy|  "sanljioel
juswieal] pue sainsesw uonusaald loddns jeyy sedinIes Ol
JUSWIISOAUI MBU [BlIUBISONS 9peW SO2IAISS U)eaH SJud) 60/8002Z Ul

"JuswdoljaAap o} eale |Bo1IO B se siy) sjuloduld
pue papaau sI jey) sisAjeue }s00 ay)} jo Auxajdwod ay} sasiubooal
ABajens siy| -onews|qoid sI ‘YJom woly wsiesjuasge wol) buisue
1S00 uapply 8y} Jo ‘yyesay pue Buiolod ein papiroid unoireysq
JUS|OIA JO [el00S-Jue Se Uons asnsiw |oyode Jo ssouanbasuoo
ay} Jo senpiaipul  spoddns  Apoadip  Jsyue  jey}  SOOIAISS
JO 1800 8y} jo ainoid sjeinooe ue Buluieb ‘yons sy ‘siesah Auew
Jo} epuabe asnsiw 9oUBISONS 8Yl UIYJIIM BAIJR[S] USppIY By} usa(q
Sey |oyooly -asnsiw joyooje AQ pasned wiey ay} JO SuIaduod |eoo|
pue [euolleu Buimolb josjjel 0} padojensp usaq sey Abajess syl

$921N0S3aYy ‘S|

‘¥l ¥Sd @insesw
0] pasn aq |IM yoiym Asaing jidng 1usy 8yl pue snjieL se yons

S|00} apnjoul [IM 8say] "AjeAnosye painseaw aq o) Abajens siy)
J0 Joedwl ay) a|qeua [IIM yoiym Buisuadll pue Ajajes pjiyo ‘buiag-jem
Ajlunwwod ‘yyesy SsoIoe Sainsesw awoolno Jo 18s e dojaAsp 01 8q
[im dnoub ABajeuis joyooje Buiobuo ayy 1oy sassasold Aay ayy Jo auQ

‘]oyo9je jo yoedwi
By} JO SaINSEaW BAIJ08Yd JSOW 8y} aJe SJ0}edlpul Yoiym Jes|o )i sl
JON "sainseaw yons pjing 0} YdIYM UO 1SIXS JoU SS0p ejep auljdseq
By} Juswow ay} 1y ¢Jases ualp|iyo ale Jo Buinosdwi yjeay sl ‘owo
SS9| alay] ale "6'@ sainseaw awWO2INO alinbal [IM SIY] 'SS800NS
Sl Jo slojeoipul poob dojaasp 0} pasu ay) sasiubooal Abajens siy|

sainseaw awooinQ ‘Z|

Page 115



6l

€102 - 0102 ABajes}s |0YyoI|Y Judy|

‘[opow e si abewi ay} ul pajoidap
uosiad Aue pue Ajuo sasodind aAnesisn||i Joj pasn Bulag aJe Juswinoop siy} ulyym sabew |y

8002 YoJe\ [10unoD AJuno) jusy Hoday aspiwwo?) 1098|8S asnsI|\ [0Yod|yY

610 oydmu-mmm

SUOIJE}NSU0D

MN"A0B JSOp MMM :600Z UOIBHNSUOD 8ouepIng) [oyod)y pue ajdoad BunoA

'G00Z ‘YleaH jo Juswpeda ‘pue|bul Joj JuswsSsassy SpPasN |0Yodjy [euoleN
002 92U} ((dHVYNY) 108loid yoseasay juswissassy Spasap |0yooly ‘e 1@ puowwniq
‘G002 ‘UYlesH jo Juswpedaq ‘puejbul Joj JUSWSSSSSY SPasSN |0Yod|y [BuolEN
002 9} ((dHVNY) 108loid yoseasay juswissassy SpPasp |0yooly ‘e 3@ puowwniq
900Z — sJasnsi\ [0Yo2|y Jo} a1e) Jo s|apoj\ — Aouaby Juswieal] [euoneN

‘YyesH

10 Juswpedaq ‘GOz "19Isea sadloyo Jalyljeay bBupew :yyesH buisooy) Buusaigg
‘yileaH Jo wewuedaq ‘¢00g "JoISed sadloyo Jalyyeay bupew :yyesH buisooy)
'£00g ‘Hods pue elps|y ‘@inynd

Joj Juswneda( ‘s|IS pue uoileonpl Joj Juswyedaq ‘@21 SWOH ‘UjesH jo
juswpedaq ‘ABajeng |oyooly [euoneN ay) ul sdajs jxau ay] :|eloos '9|qIsuas ajes

l

'seouslaley

Page 116



By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A Agenda ltem 10

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 May 2010
	3 Revenue & Capital Budget Outturn 2009-10, Roll Forward and Key Activity Indicators
	4 Response to Government Savings Announcement
	5 Treasury Management
	Item   - TM - Appendix 1
	Item   - TM - Appendix 2
	Item   - TM - Appendix 3

	6 An Alcohol Strategy for Kent
	Item  - Appendix - Final Kent Alcohol Strategy

	10 The Future of Older Persons' Provision in Kent County Council

